
 

Enquiries relating to this agenda please contact Stephen Loach Tel: 01609 532216 
or e-mail stephen.loach@northyorks.gov.uk 

Website: www.northyorks.gov.uk 
OFFICIAL 

 
Agenda 

Notice of a public meeting of 

Planning and Regulatory Functions Committee 

  

To: Councillors Peter Sowray OBE (Chairman), 
David Blades (Vice-Chair), Eric Broadbent, 
Caroline Goodrick, Robert Heseltine, David Hugill, 
Mike Jordan, John McCartney, Zoe Metcalfe, 
Clive Pearson and Chris Pearson. 

Date: Tuesday, 8th March, 2022 

Time: 9.00 am 

Venue: Remote Meeting via Microsoft Teams 

 
Under his delegated decision making powers in the Officers’ Delegation Scheme in the Council’s  
Constitution, the Chief Executive Officer has power, in cases of emergency, to take any decision  
which could be taken by the Council, the Executive or a committee. Following on from the expiry of  
the Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority and  
Police and Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020, which allowed for  
committee meetings to be held remotely, the County Council resolved at its meeting on 5 May  
2021 that, for the present time, in light of the continuing Covid-19 pandemic circumstances,  
remote live-broadcast committee meetings should continue, with any formal decisions required  
being taken by the Chief Executive Officer under his emergency decision making powers and after  
consultation with other Officers and Members as appropriate and after taking into account any  
views of the relevant Committee Members. This approach was agreed by full Council at its  
February meeting following a review, and will be the subject of a further review and consideration  
at the May AGM of the County Council. 
 
The meeting will be available to view once the meeting commences, via the following link - 
www.northyorks.gov.uk/livemeetings     
 
Recordings of previous live broadcast meetings are also available there. 

 
Business 

 
1.   Welcome by the Chairman, Introductions and Apologies 

 
 

2.   Minutes of Previous Meeting - To agree as an accurate record the 
Minutes of the meeting held on 22nd February 2022 

(Pages 3 - 8) 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

http://www.northyorks.gov.uk/
http://www.northyorks.gov.uk/livemeetings


 

 
OFFICIAL 

 
3.   Declarations of Interest 

 
 

4.   Public Questions and/or Statements  
  

Members of the public may ask questions or make statements at this meeting if they  
have given notice (including the text of the question/statement) to Steve Loach of  
Democratic Services (contact details provided on the Agenda) by  
midday on Thursday 3rd March 2022. Each speaker should limit themselves to 3  
minutes on any item. Members of the public who have given notice will be invited to  
speak:- 
 
• at this point in the meeting if their questions/statements relate to matters which  
are not otherwise on the Agenda (subject to an overall time limit of 30 minutes); 
 
• when the relevant Agenda item is being considered if they wish to speak on a  
matter which is on the Agenda for this meeting. 
 
 

5.   C1/19/00899/CM - Planning application for the erection of a ready 
mix concrete plant and associated aggregate storage on land at 
Washfold Farm, Leyburn, North Yorkshire - Report of the 
Corporate Director, Business and Environmental Services 
 

(Pages 9 - 48) 

6.   C1/18/00013/CM - Planning application for the variation of 
condition no's 2, 5 & 8 of Planning Permission Ref. 
C1/15/250/PA/F dated 7th November 1994 to facilitate an 
extension to the permitted area of extraction, an amendment to 
the restoration design and to alter the period for completion of all 
mineral operations from 31st December 2017 to 31st December 
2024 and the restoration of the site from 31st December 2018 to 
31st December 2025 on land at Pallett Hill Quarry, Catterick 
Village, North Yorkshire - Report of the Corporate Director, 
Business and Environmental Services 
 

(Pages 49 - 
108) 

7.   Other business which the Chairman agrees should be considered 
as a matter of urgency because of special circumstances. 
 

 

 
Barry Khan 
Assistant Chief Executive 
(Legal and Democratic Services) 
 
County Hall 
Northallerton 
 
28 September 2022 
 
 
For all enquiries relating to this agenda or to register to speak at the meeting, please contact  
Stephen Loach, Democratic Services Officer on Tel: 01609 532216 or by e-mail at:  
stephen.loach@northyorks.gov.uk  

Page 2

mailto:stephen.loach@northyorks.gov.uk


 

NYCC Planning and Regulatory Functions Committee - 
 Minutes –22 February 2022/1 

 

OFFICIAL  

North Yorkshire County Council 
 

 

Planning and Regulatory Functions Committee 
 
Minutes of the meeting held remotely via Microsoft Teams on 22 February 2022 at 2pm. 
 
Present:- 
 
County Councillors Peter Sowray (Chairman), David Blades, Eric Broadbent, Caroline Goodrick, 
David Hugill, Mike Jordan, Chris Pearson and Clive Pearson 
 
Apologies were submitted by County Councillors Robert Heseltine and Zoe Metcalfe 
 
 

The meeting was available to watch live via the County Council’s website and a recording of the 
meeting is now available on the website via the following link www.northyorks.gov.uk/livemeetings 
 

 
Copies of all documents considered are in the Minute Book  

 

 
266. Welcome and Introductions 
 
 The Chairman welcomed everyone to the meeting and made the following statement:- 
 You will have seen the statement on the Agenda front sheet about current decision 
 making arrangements within the Council, following the expiry of the legislation   
 remote committee meetings. I just want to remind everyone, for absolute clarity, that this  
 is an informal meeting of the Committee Members. Any formal decisions required 
 will be taken by the Chief Executive Officer under his emergency delegated 
 decision making powers after taking into account any the views of the relevant 
 Committee Members and all relevant information. This approach was agreed by full 
 Council at its February meeting following a review, and will be the subject of a further 
 review  and consideration at the May AGM of the County Council 

 
267. Minutes of the meeting held on 18 January 2022  
 
 Resolved - 

 
 That the Minutes of the meeting held on 18 January 2022, having been printed and 
 circulated, be taken as read and confirmed by Members and signed by the Chairman as 
 a correct record at the next available opportunity.  
 
268. Declarations of Interest 
 
 There were no declarations of interest. 
 
269. Public Questions or Statements 
 
 The representative of the Assistant Chief Executive (Legal and Democratic Services) 

stated that, other than those that had indicated that they wished to speak in relation to the 
application below, there were no questions or statements from members of the public.  

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2

http://www.northyorks.gov.uk/livemeetings


 

NYCC Planning and Regulatory Functions Committee - 
 Minutes –22 February 2022/2 

 

OFFICIAL  

 
270.1 Planning application for the Variation of conditions 1, 6, 7, 10, 14, 20, 24, 26, 27, 30 
 of planning permission C1/14/00747/CM to revise working times for Phase 3 and 
 the restoration scheme at Middleton Lodge Quarry, Kneeton Lane, Middleton Tyas, 
 Richmond; and 
  
270.2 Addendum to substantive report to application 
   
 Considered -  
 

 The report of the Corporate Director, Business and Environmental Services requesting 
Members to determine a planning application for the Variation of conditions 1, 6, 7, 10, 
14, 20, 24, 26, 27, 30 of planning permission C1/14/00747/CM to revise working times  

 for Phase 3 and the restoration scheme at Middleton Lodge Quarry, Kneeton Lane,  
 Middleton Tyas, Richmond 
  
 The application was subject to an objection having been raised in respect of this 
 proposal on the grounds of visual amenity and was, therefore, reported to this  
 Committee for determination. 
 
 Michael Hodges, Breedon Trading Ltd, Planning & Estates Manager for the applicant 

addressed the Committee, stating the following:- 
  
 “Good afternoon ladies & gentleman, my name is Michael Hodges and I am the 

Planning & Estates Manager for the applicant in respect of the quarry development at 
Middleton Lodge and Barton. 

 
 As you are aware, this application was submitted following the withdrawal of a previous 

application which sought, amongst other things, to amend the approved restoration 
scheme in Phase 2, also known as the ‘Quarry Garden’. The main aim was to raise the 
final floor levels to enable the proposed lake therein to drain naturally by gravity. This 
would be more sustainable than completing the restoration at a lower level as pumping 
in perpetuity with all the continued energy/fuel consumption that would entail would be 
required to ensure the quarry does not flood. 

 
 In order to raise the final floor level in Phase 2, the application provided for the removal 

of the material contained in the screen mound to the north of Phase 1, known as Mound 
‘C’ and deposition thereof in Phase 2. This would have entailed the removal of the trees 
planted on the mound. Following this it was also proposed to remove four ash trees on 
the northern boundary of Phase 1 and extract the stone underlying Mound ‘C’. Whilst 
the application included a number of other elements, the proposal to remove Mound ‘C’, 
the trees and extract the underlying stone gave rise to a number of concerns and 
objections. As a result the Company resolved to withdraw the application and submitted 
this current application which provides for raising the final floor levels in Phase 2 by a 
combination of leaving mineral unworked in the base of Phase 2 and backfilling with 
scaplings and clay arising from the mineral extraction in Phases 2 and 3. This removed 
the need to use the material contained in Mound ‘C’ for restoration in Phase 2. As a 
result of this, the current application no longer provides the removal of the mound, the 
trees planted on it, the four ash trees or the extraction of the underlying stone. 

 
 It is perhaps worth noting that it could be considered that leaving mineral which has the 

benefit of planning permission for extraction unsustainable. Certainly planning guidance 
encourages the working of permitted reserves to their fullest extent. Nevertheless the 
Company considered on balance that the submission of this revised application was 

Page 4



 

NYCC Planning and Regulatory Functions Committee - 
 Minutes –22 February 2022/3 

 

OFFICIAL  

appropriate in the circumstances.  
 
 The previous application also included proposals which would enable quarrying 

activities to continue all year round in Phase 3 of the development. The conditions 
attached to the current planning permission restrict working in Phase 3 to winter months 
only and therefore the application proposed the amendment of these to allow working to 
continue all year round to enable quarrying operations to be completed by 2028 as per 
the planning permission. This proposal is retained in the current application. Not only 
will amendment of the relevant conditions to allow year round working in Phase 3 
enable quarrying operations to be completed by 2028 it will also enable Phase 2 to be 
restored as soon as possible as the material in Mound ‘C’ that would have been used 
will now have to be derived from the quarrying operations in Phase 3. 

 
 It should be noted that the restrictions preventing working in Phase 3 during summer 

were proposed by the applicants, James Allison and Sherburn Stone Co Ltd, when the 
original application for the development at Middleton Lodge was submitted, the aim 
being to prevent any impact on visitors to the garden in the summer months not to 
protect the amenity of the surrounding locality. James Allison, the owner of Middleton 
Lodge, has confirmed that they have not had any issues with the quarrying operations 
to date and would like to see them continue all year round in order for them to be 
finished by 2028. 

 
 However, the Company does recognise the concerns/objections raised by the residents 

of Kiln Head Spring and North Road Farm regarding Mound ‘C’ and the tree planting 
thereon. The mound and tree planting were put in place at the commencement of the 
development to mitigate views from these properties and are now well established. As 
can be seen from the accompanying photographs which were taken in summer, the 
foliage present on the trees during the summer months will indeed mitigate views of 
Phase when working is being proposed. 

 
 Nevertheless following a number of meetings/discussions with the residents, the 

Company undertook to replace some of the trees on the top of the screen mound which 
had failed, most likely due to previous poor maintenance. This replacement planting 
was undertaken at the end of the last tree planting season and a maintenance 
programme for all the trees on the mound was then put in place. The replacement trees 
were recently inspected and found to be largely doing well. 

 
 As a matter of interest, it has recently come to our attention that it is not just the trees 

on the screen mound that the residents are concerned about but also a gap between 
the eastern end of the mound and Acre Howden Wood which will potentially afford them 
views into the working area. With this in mind and with James Allison’s agreement 
which is much appreciated, we will look to undertake further tree planting in that gap 
before the end of the current planting season i.e. before the end of March should help to 
mitigate views of the quarry through it.” 

   
 Following the public statement a representative of the Head of Planning Services 

presented the Committee report, highlighting the proposal, the site description, the 
consultations that have taken place, the advertisement and representations, planning 
guidance and policy and planning considerations.  The report also provided a 
conclusion and recommendations 

  
 Detailed plans, photographs and visual information were presented to complement the 

report. She addressed issues raised within the public statement during her presentation.  
 

Page 5



 

NYCC Planning and Regulatory Functions Committee - 
 Minutes –22 February 2022/4 

 

OFFICIAL  

 The Planning Officer also highlighted the addendum report to the substantive 
application, highlighting changes to the substantive report following the adoption of 
Minerals and Waste Joint Plan (MWJP) on 16 February 2022. The report highlighted 
changes that were required to the recommendation within the substantive report, further 
to the adoption of the Joint Plan. Members noted the adoption of the Joint Plan, the 
necessary changes required to the recommendation for the substantive report and 
agreed to proceed taking account of this written update which explained the impact of 
the adoption of the Minerals and Waste Joint Plan which occurred on 16th February 
2022. 

 
 Members undertook a discussion of the application and the following issues and points 

were highlighted during that discussion:- 
 

 A Member noted that the objection related to additional planting being requested 
by the objector and he asked whether alterations to the condition(s) could 
address this. In response it was stated that this was the case, with alterations to 
conditions 1, 8 and 25 detailed in the application for the applicant to undertake 
additional planting in the area highlighted by the objector. Clarification of the 
additional area of planting was provided to the satisfaction of the applicant’s 
representative and Members through photographic evidence within the 
presentation. It was noted that the photograph indicating the area that the 
objector had requested additional planting had been taken from their property. 

 Clarification was provided in relation to the differences between this application 
and the original. It was noted that the amended restoration plans did not include 
a fountain, but had a water feature that drained through to a beck at the rear of 
the site, through gravity. A Member asked whether the gravitational drainage 
would be effective and whether the local Internal Drainage Board had given 
advice on this. In response details were provided as to how the water would 
drain and it was stated that the Internal Drainage Board had been consulted and 
were satisfied with the plans. 

 It was noted that the existing planting highlighted within the presentation would 
remain, and further planting would be undertaken to complement this. 

 A Member asked why conditions 7 and 20, which had only recently been 
adopted, were now being varied by this application. In response it was stated 
that the conditions referred to had been the subject of an appeal, which had 
resulted in them being put in place much later, however, the variations were 
required for the revised application. 

 
 Resolved: - that the following be referred to the Chief Executive Officer for 
 consideration under his emergency delegated powers:- 

 
  That the application be approved for the reasons stated in the report and in 

 accordance with the conditions outlined, subject to the amendment to the 
 recommendation outlined in the addendum to the substantive application report 
 following the adoption of the Minerals and Waste Joint Plan, as detailed, subject 
 to the completion of a Deed of Variation under Section 106A of the Town and 
 Country Planning Act 1990 to ensure that the terms of the Original Section 106 
 Undertaking’ and subject to the amendments to the conditions relating to planting, 
 as outlined above. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 6



 

NYCC Planning and Regulatory Functions Committee - 
 Minutes –22 February 2022/5 

 

OFFICIAL  

271. Items dealt with under the Scheme of Delegation     
 

 Considered -  
  
 The report of the Corporate Director - Business and Environmental Services outlining 

items dealt with under the Scheme of Delegation for the period 15 December 21 to 18 
January 2022 inclusive. 

  
  Resolved -  
  
  That the report be noted.  

 
272.  Publication by Local Authorities of Information about the handling of Planning  
 Applications 
 
 Considered -  
  
 The report of the Corporate Director - Business and Environmental Services outlining the 
 County Council’s performance in the handling of ‘County Matter’ and County Council 
 development planning applications for Quarter 3, the period 1 October to 31 December 
 2021.  
 
  Resolved -  
  
  That the report be noted. 
 
The meeting concluded at 2.45pm 
 
SL 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

North Yorkshire County Council 

 

Business and Environmental Services 
 

Planning and Regulatory Functions Committee 
 

8 MARCH 2022 
 
C1/19/00899/CM - PLANNING APPLICATION FOR THE PURPOSES OF THE ERECTION 
OF A READY MIX CONCRETE PLANT AND ASSOCIATED AGGREGATE STORAGE ON 

LAND AT WASHFOLD FARM, LEYBURN, NORTH YORKSHIRE, DL8 5JZ 
ON BEHALF OF METCALFE FARMS 

(RICHMONDSHIRE DISTRICT) (MIDDLE DALES ELECTORAL DIVISION) 
 

Report of the Corporate Director – Business and Environmental Services 
 

1.0 Purpose of the report 

1.1 To determine a planning application for the erection of a ready mix concrete plant 
and associated aggregate storage on land at Washfold Farm, Leyburn, North 
Yorkshire, DL8 5JZ on behalf of Metcalfe Farms. 

1.2 This application is subject to four objections raised by local residents on the grounds 
of potential impacts upon local roads; road safety; increase in HGVs; access road 
should be constructed or usable before permission; diversification from agricultural 
use to agricultural / industrial complex; creation of quarry; visual impact; limited jobs 
/ economic benefits; unacceptable impact on Leyburn residents including those 
living on Moor Road; noise, vibration, dust and health impacts; lack of buffer / 
screening mound insufficient for nearest residential property; further landscaping 
required. The application is, therefore, reported to this Committee for determination. 

 
2.0 Background 

Site Description 

2.1 Washfold Farm lies approximately 1.3 kilometres north-west of the town of Leyburn. 
Plan 1, appended to this report, shows the application site itself and Plan 2 shows an 
extract from an aerial photograph.  The site is located off the Whipperdale Bank which 
runs, via Moor Lane, north-westwards out of Leyburn and continues north-west past 
Bellerby Camp, in the direction of the village of Grinton in Swaledale.  The site lies to 
the south of the Redmire Road (C34) road that links the village of Redmire, eastwards 
via Bellerby Camp (at a crossroads with the Leyburn to Grinton road), to the A6108.  
The A6108 is the main road between Leyburn and Richmond, and thence to the A1 
motorway.  The other main settlements near to Leyburn are Catterick Garrison, which 
is approximately 10 kilometres to the north east, and Bedale, 16.5 kilometres to the 
east.  

 
2.2 The buildings at Washfold Farm comprise existing agricultural and commercial 

business-related infrastructure.  The farm was, and still is a dairy farm of approximately 
850 hectares, with cows and sheep on this and adjacent farms.  The family business 
also includes agricultural and haulage contracting, and general purpose agricultural 
buildings (planning permission ref. no. 18/00516/FUL, dated 1st October 2018) to the 
south-west border of the site, as shown on Plan 3 appended to this report.  The farm 
complex comprises five separate business units, employing over 215 members of staff. 
The two-storey main office building in the centre of the site, adjacent to the site’s 
weighbridge and hardstanding areas as turning ground for vehicles using and 

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



 

commrep/2 

2 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

associated with the various industrial businesses on site, extends to some 10 hectares 
in area.  The most recent addition is a commercial & automotive repair business 
dealing with all types of vehicles.   

 
2.3 The environs of the application site are rural in nature, being largely characterised by 

open countryside. The surrounding landscape comprises agricultural land together 
with Bellerby Moor to the north (parts of which are used for military purposes) and the 
operational Leyburn (Black) Quarry to the south/south-west on the western side of 
Whipperdale Bank.  As the crow flies, the application site is approximately 650 metres 
from Whipperdale Bank and 425 metres from the Redmire Road (C34) road.  However, 
on the site, itself, there already exists external lighting mounted on several of the earlier 
referred buildings and also lighting columns where vehicles circulate.  

 
2.4 The residential development of the town of Leyburn is situated to the south/south east 

of the Washfold Farm; the nearest residential properties including: Moor Farm and 
Trap House approximately 190 metres north-west of the application site, Stonecroft 
approximately 290 metres south and Sycamore House approximately 510 metres 
south-south east of the application site.  With the exception of Moor Farm and Yarker 
Bank Farm (approximately 1000 metres to the south-east), there are no views of the 
application site from any residential property due to the undulating topography and 
existence of extensive mature trees and vegetation around the farm. There are no 
views to the proposed site from the Redmire Road (C34). However, there is a limited 
view towards the application site from Whipperdale Bank approximately 450 metres 
north-west of the primary access to Washfold Farm.  This is currently off Whipperdale 
Bank along a purpose built access northwards past the properties of Sycamore House 
and Stonecroft.  

 
2.5 The following constraints affect the site and are shown on Plan 4 appended to this 

report: 
 Environmental constraints: 

o Impact Risk Zones identified by Natural England for the Lovely Seat – Stainton Moor 
Site of Special Scientific Interest are relevant for certain types of development, and, as 
in this case, the development includes extraction and/or potential for air pollution;   

o Lovely Seat – Stainton Moor Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI) - 99 metres north-
east of the access track; 

o North Pennine Moors Special Area of Conservation, Special Area of Protection and 
Important Bird Area - 99 metres north-east of the access track; 

o Site of Importance for Nature Conservation – the SINC at Black Quarry is over a 
kilometre distant from the proposed development; 

 Cultural heritage constraints: 
o Scheduled Ancient Monument – there are none within 500 metres of the proposed 

development; the nearest being 870 metres northeast of Washfold Farm; 
o Listed Buildings – none are within 1 kilometre of the site or access track; 
o Leyburn Conservation Area – more than1 kilometre from the site and access track; 

 Highway-related constraints: 
o SusTrans National Cycle Route (No.71) – from Leyburn (via Whipperdale Bank) to the 

village of Grinton is over 500 metres from area of proposed development; 
o Public Rights of Way – there are none within 500 metres of the site; the nearest being 

to the west of Whipperdale Bank; 

 Other constraints: 
o Nottinghamshire Coalfield consultation area – the application area lies outside the 

development high risk areas that are identified to the north-west of the C34 road; 
o Environment Agency – the site is located within Flood Zone 1, so is at low risk of fluvial 

flooding.  Areas of Flood Zones 2 and 3 lie approximately 155 metres to the south-
west/south of the proposed development; 

o Agricultural Land Classification – Grade 4. 

  

 
Page 10



 

commrep/3 

3 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

Planning History 

2.6 The application site has been subject to adaptation as a result of economic change 
over the years through rural diversification.  Russell's PLC (a supplier of agricultural 
equipment and supplies) is based at the site including increased mechanical repairs, 

welding, body repairs and re-spraying facilities including associated MOT testing for all 
types of vehicles.  In May 2021, planning permission was granted by the District 
Council for a building to house ‘Wensleydale Vets’ veterinary practice.  The planning 
history relating to the proposed development site that is most relevant to the 
determination of this application is as follows: -  

 18/00516/FULL - Construction of two general purpose agricultural buildings 
This was granted by the District Council on 1st October 2018 and the buildings would be set down 
into the landscape by the removal of limestone. The extraction from that area has been completed, 
the buildings in position and a tree belt that was a requirement of the planning permission has been 
planted; 

 19/00246/FULL - Construction of a new service road access to Washfold Farm, comprising 
the re-positioning, improved layout and surfacing of an existing access off the C34 Redmire 
to Catterick road.   
The County Council was consulted on the application, as Mineral Planning Authority, because it was 
indicated that the construction works for the new access road would involve a combination of building 
up ground levels to meet the public highway and excavation of the higher ground nearer to the farm 
complex with an unspecified quantity being exported off site.  However, it was understood that that 
quantity exported would be minimal and as such deemed to be incidental to the development.  
Planning permission was subsequently granted by the District Council on 1st July 2020 and under 
construction during 2021; 

 19/00256/FULL - Erection of ready-mix concrete plant and associated aggregate, storage 
bays along with a service access road.   
Following discussions during the summer of 2019 between the County and District Councils and the 
Applicant, this application was withdrawn and submitted as a ‘county matter’ (now the subject of this 
report);    

 19/00828/FULL - Construction of two general purpose agricultural buildings (revised Site 
Location Plan, Flood Risk and Surface Water Drainage Assessment).   
The County Council was consulted on the application, as Mineral Planning Authority, due to there 
being an estimated 45,000m3 (approximately 67,000 tonnes) of limestone to be removed/processed 
as aggregate product for use on the farm complex, or exported.  No mineral planning objections were 
raised and the application was subsequently granted by the District Council on 7th May 2020.  Mineral 
extraction has now been completed and the buildings are in position; 

 20/00168/FULL - Extension to existing yard to create additional machinery storage along 
with extension to existing agricultural workshop.   
The County Council was consulted on the application, as Mineral Planning Authority, due to there 
being an estimated 50,000m3 (approximately 75,000 tonnes) of limestone to be removed/processed 
as aggregate product for use on the farm complex, or exported.  No mineral planning objections were 
raised and permission was subsequently granted by the District Council on 23rd July 2020. Minerals 
extraction has now been completed and the buildings are in position; 
 

 20/00541/VAR - Variation of Condition 1 attached to Planning Permission 19/00246/FULL 
(dated 1st July 2020) to replace the approved proposed site layout drawing with a revised 
plan to create a Flood Attenuation Area supplemented by Flood Risk Assessment.  
The County Council was consulted on the application due to the existence of an estimated 50,000m3 
(approximately 75,000 tonnes) of limestone to be removed/processed as aggregate product for use 
on the farm complex or exported.  No mineral planning objections were raised and permission was 
subsequently granted by the District Council 7th  May 2021, but it is understood construction has yet 
to commence; 

 20/00661/FULL - Excavation to create a rainwater harvesting and storage pond. 
The County Council was consulted on application, as Mineral Planning Authority, due to there being 
an estimated 40,000m3 (approximately 60,000 tonnes) of limestone to be removed/processed as 
aggregate product for use on the farm complex or exported.  No mineral planning objections were 
raised and permission was subsequently granted by the District Council on 14th March 2021, but it is 
understood construction has yet to commence;  

 21/00326/FULL - Extension of an existing yard area to create additional parking for 
machinery. 

Page 11



 

commrep/4 

4 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

The County Council was consulted, as Mineral Planning Authority, due to there being an estimated 
10,000m3 (approximately 15,000 tonnes) of limestone to be removed, and, if suitable, processed as 
aggregate product to be used on the proposed development with the remainder exported.  Permission 
was subsequently granted by the District Council on 12th May 2021 and, it is understood construction 
commenced during the summer of 2021. 

 
2.7 A letter, dated 28th May 2019, from the Agent for the applications 19/00246/FULL and 

19/00256/FULL included the following statement in respect of the source of material to 
be used in the RMC plant:  
“there is no reason as to why a proportion of the processed stone excavated to construct the 
new access road (and lesser about for the establishment of the RMC plant) could not be used 
in part for concrete production.  Furthermore… planning consent exists for limestone extraction 
at Washfold Farm (Consent No C1/78/412/MR granted in 2000) although works cannot proceed 
until a number of pre-commencement planning conditions are submitted and formally 
discharged. In the fullness of time, it is proposed that processed limestone from the “on-site” 
quarry would supply the RMC plant via an existing internal access route’. 

 
2.8 In order to provide context to the application under consideration, the above statement 

relates to an area of land to the north of Whipperdale Bank, within the current Metcalfe 
Farm land holding which benefits from an extant mineral consent.  This permission, 
originally granted on 5th July 1963 (ref. no. 2/4/588) and shown on Plan 8 appended to 
this report, was the subject of an application for the determination of new conditions 
that was subsequently determined (ref: C1/78/412/MR) on 5th April 2000.  The First 
Review of that decision under the Periodic Review of Mineral Planning Permissions 
was due by 5th April 2015. However, a request (ref: NY/2014/0392/MRR) to postpone 
the First Review relating to permission ref. no. C1/78/412/MR was confirmed on 24th 
February 2016 and the review has been postponed until 3rd April 2025. Notwithstanding 
this postponement, a separate application has been received by the County Council 
(ref. no. NY/2021/0165/FUL) which seeks permission for the purposes of the ‘creation 
of a new access to the quarry area permitted for minerals extraction under planning 
permission C1/78/412/MR’ and this is currently under consideration. 

 
2.9 Mineral extraction within the area covered by the old mineral permission ref. no. 

2/4/588 (north of Whipperdale Bank and shown on Plan 8) could not legally 
recommence until a scheme of working and restoration relating to this land has been 
submitted and approved under the terms of condition no.s 8, 10 & 32 of planning 
permission C1/78/412/MR and while limestone from that said land could potentially be 
used as a source of limestone for the proposed RMC plant, it would be dependent upon 
receipt of the requisite approvals or permissions to do so from the County Planning 
Authority and similar to the aforementioned receipt of an application proposing a new 
access, an application for the ‘approval of details reserved by condition no.s 8, 10, and 
32 of planning permission ref. C1/78/412/MR, which relates to the scheme of working 
and restoration, soil storage details and the aftercare scheme’ (application ref. no. 
NY/2021/020/A27) has been received and this is also currently under consideration. 

 
3.0 The Proposal 

3.1 Planning permission is being sought for the erection of a ready-mix concrete plant 
(hereinafter referred to as an RMC plant) and associated aggregate storage on land at 
Washfold Farm, near Leyburn on behalf of the Metcalfe Farms. As part of the 
development, it is proposed that limestone would be removed in order to enable the 
plant to be located at lower level within the landscape.  The 0.89 hectare application 
site (shown on Plan 1 appended to this report) is located approximately 50-60 metres 
to the north-west of the main complex of farm buildings which is currently used for the 
parking of vehicles and plant.  The application site currently lies partly at original ground 
level which is approximately 265-268 metres Above Ordnance Datum (AOD); and is 
partly at 260 metres AOD which is the excavated level of the area where two 
agricultural barns have recently been erected and two further agricultural barns closest 
to the site were permitted in 2020.   

Page 12

https://onlineplanningregister.northyorks.gov.uk/Register/PlanAppDisp.aspx?recno=1332
https://onlineplanningregister.northyorks.gov.uk/Register/PlanAppDisp.aspx?recno=3899
https://onlineplanningregister.northyorks.gov.uk/Register/PlanAppDisp.aspx?recno=9529
https://onlineplanningregister.northyorks.gov.uk/Register/PlanAppDisp.aspx?recno=11338
https://onlineplanningregister.northyorks.gov.uk/Register/PlanAppDisp.aspx?recno=1332
https://onlineplanningregister.northyorks.gov.uk/Register/PlanAppDisp.aspx?recno=3899
https://onlineplanningregister.northyorks.gov.uk/Register/PlanAppDisp.aspx?recno=11375


 

commrep/5 

5 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

 
3.2 The proposed RMC plant would occupy an area of less than 0.1 hectare (1,000 m2) 

and, rather than using the route from Whipperdale Bank, it would use the access road 
for HGV traffic from the Redmire Road (C34) road for the delivery of raw materials and 
the export of concrete.  This road, permitted by the District Council in 2020, has 
commenced construction.  It would connect with a service access road at the north-
east corner of the development site leading to a hardstanding area at a finished level 
of 265 metres AOD.  Four aggregate storage bays would be established to the north-
west of this area of hardstanding to enable the graded products to be stored and then 
separately loaded into the aggregate reception hoppers that would serve the RMC 
plant itself (see Plan 5 Site Layout appended to this report).  The aggregate in the bays 
would be retained by reinforced concrete panels (or interlocking concrete blocks) and 
transferred to the aggregate reception hoppers within the plant by a loading shovel.  
However, if the opportunity were to arise, a percentage of the HGVs could tip directly 
into the aggregate reception hoppers.  The individual storage bays would each have a 
holding capacity of 250 to 300 tonnes, whereas the aggregate reception hoppers within 
the plant itself would each typically have a capacity of 40 tonnes.   

 
3.3 The plant would use a fully computerised batching process to produce the batched 

concrete, using aggregate, cement, water and admixtures.  The overall installation 
would consist of a batch control cabin, aggregate reception hopper bays, cementitious 
silo, batch conveyors, mixing unit and loading chute.  The mixer tower that would 
discharge the material into the ready-mix concrete truck would be approximately 9.2m 
high, but located 7 metres below the higher ground level to the west (see Plan 6 
Sections appended to this report).  The mixing loading head would be enclosed on 
three sides and have an incorporated sprinkler system to control dust emissions.  The 
aggregate receptor hoppers and conveyors incorporated in the plant structure would 
be protected against wind turbulence so as to minimise airborne dust and this would 
be aided by the plant’s location below existing ground level giving shelter from the 
prevailing wind.  Two cement silos of a similar height would be set at the same lower 
ground level so that most of the structure would be below ground.  The silos would be 
clad with neutral ‘goose wing grey’ coloured panels.   

 
3.4 The aggregate used would typically be a mix of 45% sand and 55% stone.  The sand 

would be commercially sourced from established quarries such as those at Nosterfield 
or Scorton/Catterick.  Stone would either comprise limestone or gravel depending on 
the specification required by the end-user.  If gravel is required, then this would again 
be sourced on a commercial basis from a quarries such as those at Nosterfield or 
Catterick; whereas, if limestone is required, then this could be imported from one of 
the local quarries.  Deliveries to site of cementitious powders would be made only by 
tankers fitted with on-board relief valve and filtration system.  The two cement silos 
would be fitted with an automatic system to cut off delivery in the event of pressurisation 
or overfilling.  The concrete vehicles would enter and leave the plant from the lower 
level of the site.  Outside of operating hours, the concrete vehicles would be parked 
within the lower level of the concrete plant area or within the existing consented 
Metcalfe Farms yard area. 

 
3.5 It is anticipated that during a typical week, the plant would use approximately 1,000 

tonnes of imported primary aggregate (sand, sized-gravel and lesser amounts of 
limestone), equating to seven aggregate deliveries per day on average.  There would 
be also up to four tanker deliveries of cementitious powder per week.  It is envisaged 
that the plant would typically produce 90m3 of product per day, utilising three barrel-
mixer trucks which would be permanently based at the site, amounting to an estimated 
production of concrete from the RMC plant of 20-25,000m3 per year using the imported 
aggregate.  This would typically equate to 44 movements (22 in and 22 out per day) 
and a maximum of 54 movements (27 in and 27 out per day).  

 
Page 13



 

commrep/6 

6 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

3.6 During the ‘construction phase’ of the proposed development, a limited volume of 
limestone (some 7,700 tonnes) is proposed to be excavated to enable the plant to be 
located at a lower floor level below original ground level to allow mixer trucks to access 
the lower part of the plant (which would be consistent with the lower level of the existing 
farm yard area) as well as providing the benefit of ‘sinking’ the plant so as to minimise 
any visual impact. The ‘construction phase’ would involve earthmoving operations 
including the extraction of limited volumes of limestone to create the desired lower floor 
level.  This excavated material amounting to approximately 7,700 tonnes would be 
incidental to the development and likely to be used for farm track maintenance within 
the Washfold Farm complex.  This incidental mineral extraction area, totaling 0.1 
hectares, is shown on Plan 7 appended to this report and the Applicant envisages that 
this extraction would take six weeks.  The application details include a Construction 
Environmental Management Plan covering the proposed management of on-site dust, 
noise and vibration as Appendix D to the Supporting Statement. 

 
3.7 The majority of the operations associated with the proposed plant would be carried out 

during daylight hours.  However, during the winter months (half an hour either side of 
the operational hours) artificial external lighting around the site for health, safety and 
security requirements is proposed.  This lighting would be downward facing to minimise 
any potential adverse impact and would focus light down onto the immediate 
operational areas and not outlying areas.  The elevation of the floodlights would be 
limited to a maximum of 5 metres in height.  The intensity of lights would range between 
25 and 75 LUX, with the spread of light up to 30 metres away.  Light spillage to the 
rear of fixed units would be negligible and glare from lighting towers would be limited 
by shrouds.  The applicant is agreeable to the location of this lighting being subject to 
a requirement for the details to be approved as a submission under the terms of any  
planning condition that might be imposed prior to the ready mix concrete plant and 
associated aggregate storage development being brought into use. 

 
3.8 There are no restrictions on the existing hours of operation at the farm, but the 

application was accompanied by a Noise Impact Assessment which refers to the 
proposed plant operating between 0600-1900 hours Mondays to Fridays and between 
0700-1500 hours on Saturdays.  However, the proposed hours for soil/overburden 
removal and extraction of mineral are proposed to be between 0700-1800 Mondays to 
Fridays and 0800-1500 hours on Saturdays. The anticipated hours for blasts 
associated with the removal of the incidental limestone are proposed to be between 
1000-1600 hours on weekdays only, but the applicant explains that it is likely that only 
two blasts, in total, would be required. 

 
3.9 The application details proposed a landscaped mound to be created from soils stripped 

from within the application area and located to the north-west of the RMC plant area, 
close to the western boundary of the farm and lying between the development site and 
the properties of Moor Farm and Trap House.  The crest of that mound, having a gentle 
north-westerly outer slope and lying at 270 metres AOD (approximately a metre above 
the highest point of the proposed development) as well as being seeded as a 
calcareous grassland is understood to now be in place and seeded and therefore in 
position prior to any development as currently proposed. 

 
3.10 The Applicant considers that the facility would  provide an additional service to those 

already provided by Metcalfe Farms to local farms and small developments taking 
place in the Dales, as well as providing an additional seven permanent jobs within the 
Leyburn area (3 HGV drivers, 1 loading shovel driver, 1 batcher, 1 manager and a 
Sales/Accounts job).   

 
3.11 The application has been screened, as required under the Town and Country Planning 

(Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017 and, on 19th December 2019, 
confirmed as development falling within Category 5(b) Mineral Industry of Schedule 2 

Page 14

https://onlineplanningregister.northyorks.gov.uk/Register/DisplayImage.aspx?doc=cmVjb3JkX251bWJlcj0xMDkwNz9maWxlbmFtZT1cXGNvdW50eS5ueWNjLmludGVybmFsXERhdGFcYmVzLWRhdGFcQXBwLU1hc3RlckdvdlxwbGFubmluZ1xOWS0yMDE5LTAxNjgtRlVMXDIgU3VwcG9ydGluZyBEb2N1bWVudHNcUmV2aXNlZCBJbmZvcm1hdGlvbiBEZWMgMjAxOVxBcHBlbmRpeCBEIC0gQ29uc3RydWN0aW9uIEVudmlyb25tZW50YWwgTWFuYWdlbWVudCBQbGFuLnBkZj9pbWFnZV9udW1iZXI9MzAuMDAwMD9pbWFnZV90eXBlPXBsYW5uaW5nP2xhc3RfbW9kaWZpZWRfZnJvbV9kaXNrPTE3LzEyLzIwMTkgMTA6Mjc6NTc=
https://onlineplanningregister.northyorks.gov.uk/Register/DisplayImage.aspx?doc=cmVjb3JkX251bWJlcj0xMDkwNz9maWxlbmFtZT1cXGNvdW50eS5ueWNjLmludGVybmFsXERhdGFcYmVzLWRhdGFcQXBwLU1hc3RlckdvdlxwbGFubmluZ1xOWS0yMDE5LTAxNjgtRlVMXDIgU3VwcG9ydGluZyBEb2N1bWVudHNcUmV2aXNlZCBJbmZvcm1hdGlvbiBEZWMgMjAxOVxBcHBlbmRpeCBEIC0gQ29uc3RydWN0aW9uIEVudmlyb25tZW50YWwgTWFuYWdlbWVudCBQbGFuLnBkZj9pbWFnZV9udW1iZXI9MzAuMDAwMD9pbWFnZV90eXBlPXBsYW5uaW5nP2xhc3RfbW9kaWZpZWRfZnJvbV9kaXNrPTE3LzEyLzIwMTkgMTA6Mjc6NTc=
https://onlineplanningregister.northyorks.gov.uk/Register/DisplayImage.aspx?doc=cmVjb3JkX251bWJlcj0xMDkwNz9maWxlbmFtZT1cXGNvdW50eS5ueWNjLmludGVybmFsXERhdGFcYmVzLWRhdGFcQXBwLU1hc3RlckdvdlxwbGFubmluZ1xOWS0yMDE5LTAxNjgtRlVMXDIgU3VwcG9ydGluZyBEb2N1bWVudHNcUmV2aXNlZCBJbmZvcm1hdGlvbiBEZWMgMjAxOVxTdXBwb3J0aW5nIFN0YXRlbWVudCBfRGVjZW1iZXIgMjAxOS5wZGY/aW1hZ2VfbnVtYmVyPTE4LjAwMDA/aW1hZ2VfdHlwZT1wbGFubmluZz9sYXN0X21vZGlmaWVkX2Zyb21fZGlzaz0xNy8xMi8yMDE5IDEwOjUyOjQz
https://onlineplanningregister.northyorks.gov.uk/Register/DisplayImage.aspx?doc=cmVjb3JkX251bWJlcj0xMDkwNz9maWxlbmFtZT1cXGNvdW50eS5ueWNjLmludGVybmFsXERhdGFcYmVzLWRhdGFcQXBwLU1hc3RlckdvdlxwbGFubmluZ1xOWS0yMDE5LTAxNjgtRlVMXDIgU3VwcG9ydGluZyBEb2N1bWVudHNcUmV2aXNlZCBJbmZvcm1hdGlvbiBEZWMgMjAxOVxBcHBlbmRpeCBDIC0gTm9pc2UgUmVwb3J0LnBkZj9pbWFnZV9udW1iZXI9MjkuMDAwMD9pbWFnZV90eXBlPXBsYW5uaW5nP2xhc3RfbW9kaWZpZWRfZnJvbV9kaXNrPTE3LzEyLzIwMTkgMTA6Mjk6MDQ=


 

commrep/7 

7 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

to those regulations.  After taking into account the criteria set down within Schedule 3 
of those regulations, the characteristics of the proposed development (having a new 
floorspace of less than 1,000m2), the environmental sensitivity of the location and the 
types and characteristics of the potential impacts, the conclusion drawn, based on the 
scale, nature and location of the development, was that the proposed erection of a 
RMC plant and associated aggregate storage would not have significant impacts upon 
the environment and would not, therefore, constitute EIA development and any 
application would not require to be accompanied by an Environment Statement. 

 
4.0 Consultations 

4.1 The consultee responses summarised within this section of the report relate to 
responses to consultation undertaken on the 6th January 2020, with the exception of 
the Lead Local Flood Authority having been consulted on 14th February 2020. 

 
4.2 Richmondshire District Council (Planning) – advised on 3rd February 2020 that 

there were no objections, providing the County Council was satisfied with regard to 
the issues of highway safety, neighbour impact from noise and disturbance, surface 
water drainage and flooding, and landscape impact. 

 
4.3 Richmondshire District Council (Environmental Health Officer (EHO)) – replied on 

20th January 2020 with the following: 

Noise: 

The Noise Impact Assessment (NIA) had assessed the likely noise impacts of the 
operations of the proposed concrete batching plant activities (loading shovel, mixer 
truck loading and motors from the reception hopper) on the nearest residential property 
(Moor Farm).  The EHO noted that the NIA had included the operating times of 0600-
1900 Monday to Friday and Saturday 0700-1500 and advised that the hours of 0600 
to 0700 would be classed as ‘night-time’ and the remainder of the hours would be ‘day-
time’.  Day-time background noise levels had been measured for the NIA assessment 
and calculated for ‘day-time’ and ‘night-time’ based on noise from the activities 
described above.  The EHO noted the NIA report’s conclusion that, in relation to the 
National Planning Policy Framework and its associated Guidance, the ‘noise levels at 
the receptor accord with the ‘No Observed Effect Level’’ and considered that this was 
acceptable.  The EHO noted that the background L90 level used for the night-time 
calculations is that measured at around mid-day and that it was possible that 
background levels would be much lower at 0600 hours (depending on the activities at 
the farm / industrial activities at that time) meaning that the impact on external amenity 
could be greater than that indicated in the NIA.  However, the report has gone onto 
assess the internal impact (i.e. inside the bedrooms) using British Standard 
BS8233:2014 criteria and it was considered that the levels calculated at the receptor 
would meet this criteria. 

 Lighting: 

 With regards to lighting, the EHO noted reference in the Supporting Statement to 
artificial lighting during the winter months and recommended that the siting/use of the 
lighting is restricted by appropriate condition(s) to ensure that:  

 a lighting plan is agreed;  

 the lighting is not used beyond half an hour outside of any agreed operational hours; and, 

 any lighting is arranged so as not to shine directly towards any dwelling. 

The consultation response also advised that the concrete batching plants would be 
regulated as a permitted activity under the Environmental Permitting (England and 
Wales) Regulations 2016 by Richmondshire District Council. 

 
 In terms of the construction stage, the EHO considered that there could be some 

disturbance to nearby residential properties during the construction phase in terms of 

Page 15

https://onlineplanningregister.northyorks.gov.uk/Register/DisplayImage.aspx?doc=cmVjb3JkX251bWJlcj0xMDkwNz9maWxlbmFtZT1cXGNvdW50eS5ueWNjLmludGVybmFsXERhdGFcYmVzLWRhdGFcQXBwLU1hc3RlckdvdlxwbGFubmluZ1xOWS0yMDE5LTAxNjgtRlVMXDYgQ29uc3VsdGF0aW9uIHJlc3BvbnNlcyBSRUNFSVZFRFwyMDAyMDMgUmljaG1vbmRzaGlyZSBEaXN0cmljdCBDb3VuY2lsIFBsYW5uaW5nIHJlcGx5IE5ZMjAxOTAxNjhGVUxfUmVkYWN0ZWQucGRmP2ltYWdlX251bWJlcj00NS4wMDAwP2ltYWdlX3R5cGU9cGxhbm5pbmc/bGFzdF9tb2RpZmllZF9mcm9tX2Rpc2s9MTQvMDIvMjAyMCAxMTowNDowMA==
https://onlineplanningregister.northyorks.gov.uk/Register/DisplayImage.aspx?doc=cmVjb3JkX251bWJlcj0xMDkwNz9maWxlbmFtZT1cXGNvdW50eS5ueWNjLmludGVybmFsXERhdGFcYmVzLWRhdGFcQXBwLU1hc3RlckdvdlxwbGFubmluZ1xOWS0yMDE5LTAxNjgtRlVMXDYgQ29uc3VsdGF0aW9uIHJlc3BvbnNlcyBSRUNFSVZFRFwyMDAxMjAgUmljaG1vbmRzaGlyZSBEaXN0cmljdCBDb3VuY2lsIEVudmlyb25tZW50YWwgSGVhbHRoIHJlcGx5IE5ZMjAxOTAxNjhGVUwucGRmP2ltYWdlX251bWJlcj0zNy4wMDAwP2ltYWdlX3R5cGU9cGxhbm5pbmc/bGFzdF9tb2RpZmllZF9mcm9tX2Rpc2s9MjcvMDEvMjAyMCAxNzoxNTowMA==
https://onlineplanningregister.northyorks.gov.uk/Register/DisplayImage.aspx?doc=cmVjb3JkX251bWJlcj0xMDkwNz9maWxlbmFtZT1cXGNvdW50eS5ueWNjLmludGVybmFsXERhdGFcYmVzLWRhdGFcQXBwLU1hc3RlckdvdlxwbGFubmluZ1xOWS0yMDE5LTAxNjgtRlVMXDIgU3VwcG9ydGluZyBEb2N1bWVudHNcUmV2aXNlZCBJbmZvcm1hdGlvbiBEZWMgMjAxOVxBcHBlbmRpeCBDIC0gTm9pc2UgUmVwb3J0LnBkZj9pbWFnZV9udW1iZXI9MjkuMDAwMD9pbWFnZV90eXBlPXBsYW5uaW5nP2xhc3RfbW9kaWZpZWRfZnJvbV9kaXNrPTE3LzEyLzIwMTkgMTA6Mjk6MDQ=
https://onlineplanningregister.northyorks.gov.uk/Register/DisplayImage.aspx?doc=cmVjb3JkX251bWJlcj0xMDkwNz9maWxlbmFtZT1cXGNvdW50eS5ueWNjLmludGVybmFsXERhdGFcYmVzLWRhdGFcQXBwLU1hc3RlckdvdlxwbGFubmluZ1xOWS0yMDE5LTAxNjgtRlVMXDIgU3VwcG9ydGluZyBEb2N1bWVudHNcUmV2aXNlZCBJbmZvcm1hdGlvbiBEZWMgMjAxOVxTdXBwb3J0aW5nIFN0YXRlbWVudCBfRGVjZW1iZXIgMjAxOS5wZGY/aW1hZ2VfbnVtYmVyPTE4LjAwMDA/aW1hZ2VfdHlwZT1wbGFubmluZz9sYXN0X21vZGlmaWVkX2Zyb21fZGlzaz0xNy8xMi8yMDE5IDEwOjUyOjQz


 

commrep/8 

8 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

possible noise, dust and vibration, but expected this would be short-term (6 weeks) as 
indicated in the application form.  The Construction Environmental Management Plan 
(CEMP) did address mitigation and construction times and the EHO considered it was 
acceptable and that the impact would not be significant, but the EHO recommended 
that a planning condition be included to require compliance with the submitted CEMP 
and the construction times given in the CEMP. 

 
 The EHO considered that there was likely to be an impact on the nearby residential 

properties amenity due to the construction and operation of the plant, but did not 
consider this impact would be significant and did not object to the application subject 
to the inclusion of recommended conditions. 

 
4.4 Leyburn Town Council – confirmed on 21st January 2020 that it supported the 

application’s proposal to keep HGV’s out of the Town Centre.  It felt strongly that all, 
or as much traffic as possible, should approach the farm via the ‘tank road’, and not 
through Leyburn to minimise HGV movements through Leyburn and on Moor Road.  In 
addition, reference has been made that a new concrete plant would assist in the 
creation of the new access road and would broaden the economic base of the business 
and increase employment opportunities.  However, the Town Council considered 
strongly that the plant should not go into full production until the access road was 
completed. 

 
4.5 Bellerby Parish Council – confirmed on 28th January 2020 that it reiterated the 

comments made previously to Richmondshire District Council that largely supported 
the development’s bringing of employment into the area, mentioning that the landowner 
had worked with community in Bellerby taking into account their concerns over flooding 
through the planting of a large numbers of trees and development of ponds on the 
Washfold Farm site. 

 
 On 11th February 2020 they referred to a request from a group of residents that ‘the 

Parish Council liaise with Flood Risk Management, Planners and any other appropriate 
bodies to ensure all aspects (including the run off from Park Gill) are considered to give 
the best outcome for Bellerby’.  The Parish Council stated that assurances had been 
given by the Flood Management Team that the water flow would be taken into account 
as part of the planning process. 

 
4.6 Highway Authority – advised on 24th January 2020 that there were no objections to 

the proposal on the basis that that all Heavy Commercial Vehicle traffic associated with 
the operation of the concrete plant would use a new vehicular access which would join 
the C34 'Tank Road' to the north of the site, apart from those involved in local deliveries 
of prepared concrete. 

 
4.7 NYCC Ecology – replied on 8th January 2020 to confirm that although no 

environmental information had been provided, the development would be on previously 
cleared land that was already in use as part of the haulage yard.  Therefore, the 
proposal did not involve any tree, hedgerow or other established habitat removal and 
there were no concerns regarding the development’s footprint.  The Construction 
Environmental Management Plan included dust control during construction and 
adherence to this plan, to be secured by condition, was recommended.  
 

 The distance from the boundary of the North Pennine Moors Special Protection Area 
(SPA) and Special Area of Conservation (SAC) (approximately 550 metres) that also 
encompasses the Lovely Seat - Stainton Moor Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI) 
was noted.  The conclusion was that significant effects on the features for which the 
SPA/SAC/SSSI are designated (principally upland birds and moorland vegetation), 
was unlikely due to the development being ‘within a sizeable industrial site’ and 
separated by a number of agricultural fields and a road from the SPA.  Plus the site 

Page 16

https://onlineplanningregister.northyorks.gov.uk/Register/DisplayImage.aspx?doc=cmVjb3JkX251bWJlcj0xMDkwNz9maWxlbmFtZT1cXGNvdW50eS5ueWNjLmludGVybmFsXERhdGFcYmVzLWRhdGFcQXBwLU1hc3RlckdvdlxwbGFubmluZ1xOWS0yMDE5LTAxNjgtRlVMXDIgU3VwcG9ydGluZyBEb2N1bWVudHNcUmV2aXNlZCBJbmZvcm1hdGlvbiBEZWMgMjAxOVxBcHBlbmRpeCBEIC0gQ29uc3RydWN0aW9uIEVudmlyb25tZW50YWwgTWFuYWdlbWVudCBQbGFuLnBkZj9pbWFnZV9udW1iZXI9MzAuMDAwMD9pbWFnZV90eXBlPXBsYW5uaW5nP2xhc3RfbW9kaWZpZWRfZnJvbV9kaXNrPTE3LzEyLzIwMTkgMTA6Mjc6NTc=
https://onlineplanningregister.northyorks.gov.uk/Register/DisplayImage.aspx?doc=cmVjb3JkX251bWJlcj0xMDkwNz9maWxlbmFtZT1cXGNvdW50eS5ueWNjLmludGVybmFsXERhdGFcYmVzLWRhdGFcQXBwLU1hc3RlckdvdlxwbGFubmluZ1xOWS0yMDE5LTAxNjgtRlVMXDYgQ29uc3VsdGF0aW9uIHJlc3BvbnNlcyBSRUNFSVZFRFwyMDAxMjFfTGV5YnVybiBUb3duIENvdW5jaWwgcmVzcG9uc2UgTlktMjAxOS0wMTY4LUZVTC5wZGY/aW1hZ2VfbnVtYmVyPTM4LjAwMDA/aW1hZ2VfdHlwZT1wbGFubmluZz9sYXN0X21vZGlmaWVkX2Zyb21fZGlzaz0yOC8wMS8yMDIwIDE0OjUwOjI2
https://onlineplanningregister.northyorks.gov.uk/Register/DisplayImage.aspx?doc=cmVjb3JkX251bWJlcj0xMDkwNz9maWxlbmFtZT1cXGNvdW50eS5ueWNjLmludGVybmFsXERhdGFcYmVzLWRhdGFcQXBwLU1hc3RlckdvdlxwbGFubmluZ1xOWS0yMDE5LTAxNjgtRlVMXDYgQ29uc3VsdGF0aW9uIHJlc3BvbnNlcyBSRUNFSVZFRFwyMDAxMjhfQmVsbGVyYnkgY29uc3VsdGF0aW9uIHJlcGx5IE5ZXzIwMTlfMDE2OF9GVUwucGRmP2ltYWdlX251bWJlcj00My4wMDAwP2ltYWdlX3R5cGU9cGxhbm5pbmc/bGFzdF9tb2RpZmllZF9mcm9tX2Rpc2s9MjgvMDEvMjAyMCAxNzoyNDozOQ==
https://onlineplanningregister.northyorks.gov.uk/Register/DisplayImage.aspx?doc=cmVjb3JkX251bWJlcj0xMDkwNz9maWxlbmFtZT1cXGNvdW50eS5ueWNjLmludGVybmFsXERhdGFcYmVzLWRhdGFcQXBwLU1hc3RlckdvdlxwbGFubmluZ1xOWS0yMDE5LTAxNjgtRlVMXDYgQ29uc3VsdGF0aW9uIHJlc3BvbnNlcyBSRUNFSVZFRFwyMDAyMTFfQmVsbGVyYnkgUGFyaXNoIENvdW5jaWwgYWRkaXRpb25hbCBjb21tZW50cyBOWV8yMDE5XzAxNjhfRlVMLnBkZj9pbWFnZV9udW1iZXI9NDYuMDAwMD9pbWFnZV90eXBlPXBsYW5uaW5nP2xhc3RfbW9kaWZpZWRfZnJvbV9kaXNrPTEyLzAyLzIwMjAgMDk6MTI6NDM=
https://onlineplanningregister.northyorks.gov.uk/Register/DisplayImage.aspx?doc=cmVjb3JkX251bWJlcj0xMDkwNz9maWxlbmFtZT1cXGNvdW50eS5ueWNjLmludGVybmFsXERhdGFcYmVzLWRhdGFcQXBwLU1hc3RlckdvdlxwbGFubmluZ1xOWS0yMDE5LTAxNjgtRlVMXDYgQ29uc3VsdGF0aW9uIHJlc3BvbnNlcyBSRUNFSVZFRFwyMDAxMjRfSGlnaHdheSBBdXRob3JpdHkgcmVzcG9uc2VfTlktMjAxOS0wMTY4LUZVTC5wZGY/aW1hZ2VfbnVtYmVyPTQwLjAwMDA/aW1hZ2VfdHlwZT1wbGFubmluZz9sYXN0X21vZGlmaWVkX2Zyb21fZGlzaz0yOC8wMS8yMDIwIDE0OjQ2OjA0
https://onlineplanningregister.northyorks.gov.uk/Register/DisplayImage.aspx?doc=cmVjb3JkX251bWJlcj0xMDkwNz9maWxlbmFtZT1cXGNvdW50eS5ueWNjLmludGVybmFsXERhdGFcYmVzLWRhdGFcQXBwLU1hc3RlckdvdlxwbGFubmluZ1xOWS0yMDE5LTAxNjgtRlVMXDYgQ29uc3VsdGF0aW9uIHJlc3BvbnNlcyBSRUNFSVZFRFwyMDAxMDhfTllDQyBlY29sb2d5IHJlc3BvbnNlIE5ZMjAxOTAxNjhGVUwgV2FzaGZvbGQgRmFybSBSTUMucGRmP2ltYWdlX251bWJlcj0zNS4wMDAwP2ltYWdlX3R5cGU9cGxhbm5pbmc/bGFzdF9tb2RpZmllZF9mcm9tX2Rpc2s9MTAvMDEvMjAyMCAxNjoyNjo0NQ==
https://onlineplanningregister.northyorks.gov.uk/Register/DisplayImage.aspx?doc=cmVjb3JkX251bWJlcj0xMDkwNz9maWxlbmFtZT1cXGNvdW50eS5ueWNjLmludGVybmFsXERhdGFcYmVzLWRhdGFcQXBwLU1hc3RlckdvdlxwbGFubmluZ1xOWS0yMDE5LTAxNjgtRlVMXDIgU3VwcG9ydGluZyBEb2N1bWVudHNcUmV2aXNlZCBJbmZvcm1hdGlvbiBEZWMgMjAxOVxBcHBlbmRpeCBEIC0gQ29uc3RydWN0aW9uIEVudmlyb25tZW50YWwgTWFuYWdlbWVudCBQbGFuLnBkZj9pbWFnZV9udW1iZXI9MzAuMDAwMD9pbWFnZV90eXBlPXBsYW5uaW5nP2xhc3RfbW9kaWZpZWRfZnJvbV9kaXNrPTE3LzEyLzIwMTkgMTA6Mjc6NTc=
https://onlineplanningregister.northyorks.gov.uk/Register/DisplayImage.aspx?doc=cmVjb3JkX251bWJlcj0xMDkwNz9maWxlbmFtZT1cXGNvdW50eS5ueWNjLmludGVybmFsXERhdGFcYmVzLWRhdGFcQXBwLU1hc3RlckdvdlxwbGFubmluZ1xOWS0yMDE5LTAxNjgtRlVMXDIgU3VwcG9ydGluZyBEb2N1bWVudHNcUmV2aXNlZCBJbmZvcm1hdGlvbiBEZWMgMjAxOVxBcHBlbmRpeCBEIC0gQ29uc3RydWN0aW9uIEVudmlyb25tZW50YWwgTWFuYWdlbWVudCBQbGFuLnBkZj9pbWFnZV9udW1iZXI9MzAuMDAwMD9pbWFnZV90eXBlPXBsYW5uaW5nP2xhc3RfbW9kaWZpZWRfZnJvbV9kaXNrPTE3LzEyLzIwMTkgMTA6Mjc6NTc=


 

commrep/9 

9 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

would not remove any foraging or nesting habitat used by wider populations of SPA 
bird species and so a formal assessment under the Conservation of Habitats & Species 
Regulations 2017 was not necessary. 

 
 Further information regarding the screening bund was requested as the NPPF 

encourages developers to contribute to biodiversity net gain by creating habitats, for 
example the potential to create limestone grassland or upland woodland on the bund.  
Within a further response on 28th January 2020 in respect of the details of the seeding, 
the Ecologist advised that if the seed mix includes Common Knapweed, this should be 
of northern provenance as, from both landscape and ecology points of view, use of 
local/regional seed sources is encouraged where possible.  Secondly, that during the 
establishment period, arisings should always be removed, rather than spread over the 
plot. 

 
4.8 NYCC Landscape – replied on 28th January 2020 to confirm that there was not a 

landscape objection as generally the development would be set low in the landscape 
and well screened from wider views by topography and the proposed screen mound.  
However, as lighting was proposed, the details of a suitable lighting scheme should be 
obtained and secured by condition, to minimise adverse visual effects from light 
overspill and glare. 

 
4.9 Natural England – advised on 27th January 2020 that it did not object, as based on 

the plans submitted, it was considered that the proposal would not have significant 
adverse impacts on North Pennine Moors Special Area of Conservation and Special 
Protection Area and that in terms of the Habitats Regulations ‘a likely significant effect 
can be ruled out’.  Furthermore, the proposal would not damage or destroy the interest 
features for which the Lovely Seat - Stainton Moor Site of Special Scientific Interest 
was notified. Natural England only provides bespoke advice on protected species 
where they form part of a SSSI or in exceptional case and hence in this case it advised 
that Natural England’s standing advice should be applied. This online resource 
provides details of what action a developer should take in respect of a range of 
protected species in the event that protected species are discovered after development 
has started (for example in connection with bats). 

 
4.10 Environment Agency – raised no objection on 13th January 2020 and provided 

advice for the applicant regarding the use of excavated material on the site and that 
the Environmental Protection (Duty of Care) Regulations 1991 for dealing with waste 
materials were applicable to any off-site movements of waste. 

 
4.11 NYCC Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) – replied on 6th March 2020, confirming 

that the LLFA had used the best available flood mapping to review the application and 
considered that the proposed site would have little, to no, effect on the surrounding 
hydrology.  In addition, as no large areas of hard standing are proposed, the permeable 
area remains the same. 

 
 Notifications 

4.12 County Cllr. Karin Sedgwick – was notified on 6th January 2020. 
 
5.0 Advertisement and representations 

5.1 While the application was originally submitted in September 2019, it has been subject 
to revisions and these were submitted in the December of that year giving rise to 
consultation taking place in the early part of 2020. As a consequence, this application 
was advertised by means of two Site Notices posted on 7th January 2020, responses 
to which expired on 28th January 2020.  Site Notices were posted in the following 
locations: on the sign on the east side of the existing entrance to Washfold Farm from 
Whipperdale Bank and on a tree opposite the location of the proposed access to the 

Page 17

https://onlineplanningregister.northyorks.gov.uk/Register/DisplayImage.aspx?doc=cmVjb3JkX251bWJlcj0xMDkwNz9maWxlbmFtZT1cXGNvdW50eS5ueWNjLmludGVybmFsXERhdGFcYmVzLWRhdGFcQXBwLU1hc3RlckdvdlxwbGFubmluZ1xOWS0yMDE5LTAxNjgtRlVMXDYgQ29uc3VsdGF0aW9uIHJlc3BvbnNlcyBSRUNFSVZFRFwyMDAxMjhfTllDQyBlY29sb2d5IDJuZCByZXNwb25zZSBOWTIwMTkwMTY4RlVMIFdhc2hmb2xkIEZhcm0gUk1DLnBkZj9pbWFnZV9udW1iZXI9NDIuMDAwMD9pbWFnZV90eXBlPXBsYW5uaW5nP2xhc3RfbW9kaWZpZWRfZnJvbV9kaXNrPTI5LzAxLzIwMjAgMTI6MDc6NDU=
https://onlineplanningregister.northyorks.gov.uk/Register/DisplayImage.aspx?doc=cmVjb3JkX251bWJlcj0xMDkwNz9maWxlbmFtZT1cXGNvdW50eS5ueWNjLmludGVybmFsXERhdGFcYmVzLWRhdGFcQXBwLU1hc3RlckdvdlxwbGFubmluZ1xOWS0yMDE5LTAxNjgtRlVMXDYgQ29uc3VsdGF0aW9uIHJlc3BvbnNlcyBSRUNFSVZFRFwyMDAxMjhfTllDQyBMYW5kc2NhcGUgcmVzcG9uc2UgTlkyMDE5MDE2OEZVTCBXYXNoZm9sZCBGYXJtIFJNQy5wZGY/aW1hZ2VfbnVtYmVyPTQ0LjAwMDA/aW1hZ2VfdHlwZT1wbGFubmluZz9sYXN0X21vZGlmaWVkX2Zyb21fZGlzaz0yOS8wMS8yMDIwIDEyOjIwOjE0
https://onlineplanningregister.northyorks.gov.uk/Register/DisplayImage.aspx?doc=cmVjb3JkX251bWJlcj0xMDkwNz9maWxlbmFtZT1cXGNvdW50eS5ueWNjLmludGVybmFsXERhdGFcYmVzLWRhdGFcQXBwLU1hc3RlckdvdlxwbGFubmluZ1xOWS0yMDE5LTAxNjgtRlVMXDYgQ29uc3VsdGF0aW9uIHJlc3BvbnNlcyBSRUNFSVZFRFwyMDAxMjdfTmF0dXJhbCBFbmdsYW5kIGNvbnN1bHRhdGlvbiByZXBseTMwNTAyOCBOWV8yMDE5XzAxNjhfRlVMLnBkZj9pbWFnZV9udW1iZXI9NDEuMDAwMD9pbWFnZV90eXBlPXBsYW5uaW5nP2xhc3RfbW9kaWZpZWRfZnJvbV9kaXNrPTI4LzAxLzIwMjAgMTI6NTc6MDc=
https://onlineplanningregister.northyorks.gov.uk/Register/DisplayImage.aspx?doc=cmVjb3JkX251bWJlcj0xMDkwNz9maWxlbmFtZT1cXGNvdW50eS5ueWNjLmludGVybmFsXERhdGFcYmVzLWRhdGFcQXBwLU1hc3RlckdvdlxwbGFubmluZ1xOWS0yMDE5LTAxNjgtRlVMXDYgQ29uc3VsdGF0aW9uIHJlc3BvbnNlcyBSRUNFSVZFRFwyMDAxMTNfRW52aXJvbm1lbnQgQWdlbmN5IHJlc3BvbnNlIHRvIE5ZMjAxOTAxNjhGVUwucGRmP2ltYWdlX251bWJlcj0zNi4wMDAwP2ltYWdlX3R5cGU9cGxhbm5pbmc/bGFzdF9tb2RpZmllZF9mcm9tX2Rpc2s9MTUvMDEvMjAyMCAxMDoyOTo0MQ==
https://onlineplanningregister.northyorks.gov.uk/Register/DisplayImage.aspx?doc=cmVjb3JkX251bWJlcj0xMDkwNz9maWxlbmFtZT1cXGNvdW50eS5ueWNjLmludGVybmFsXERhdGFcYmVzLWRhdGFcQXBwLU1hc3RlckdvdlxwbGFubmluZ1xOWS0yMDE5LTAxNjgtRlVMXDYgQ29uc3VsdGF0aW9uIHJlc3BvbnNlcyBSRUNFSVZFRFwyMDAzMDZfTExGQSBSZXNwb25zZV9OWS0yMDE5LTAxNjgtRlVMLnBkZj9pbWFnZV9udW1iZXI9NDcuMDAwMD9pbWFnZV90eXBlPXBsYW5uaW5nP2xhc3RfbW9kaWZpZWRfZnJvbV9kaXNrPTA2LzAzLzIwMjAgMTU6MjA6MTY=


 

commrep/10 

10 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

site from the Redmire Road (C34).  A Press Notice appeared in the Darlington and 
Stockton Times on 10th January 2020, responses to which expired on 24th January 
2020.  

 
5.2 With respect to Neighbour Notification, in accordance with the County Council’s 

adopted Statement of Community Involvement, it was considered that, in addition to 
posting of the Site Notices, neighbour notification should take place for the following 
reason to ensure that effective attention of local residents was drawn the existence of 
the planning application: the existing Washfold Farm access is on a different road to 
the proposed access. 

 
5.3 Neighbour Notification letters were sent to eleven properties on 6th January 2020 and 

the period in which to make representations expired on 27th January 2020. The 
following properties received a neighbour notification letter:  
- Deer Park Cottage; 
- Moor Farm; 
- Trap House, Moor Farm; 
- Stonecroft, Washfold Farm; 
- Sycamore House, Moor Road;  
- Quarry Barn, Moor Road; 
- 1 - 5 Rangewardens Cottages, Moor Road;  
- CEMEX Materials, Moor Road. 

 
A total of four representations have been received raising objections on the grounds 
of:- 
 traffic: 

o the development is likely to have an unacceptable impact on local roads; 
o increase in heavy goods vehicles; 
o impact on road safety through Leyburn including on Moor Road; 
o planning permission for the concrete plant should only be granted once the proposed 

new access road is constructed and usable; 

 landscape & visual impacts: 
o creation of a quarry; 
o visual impact from Moor Road; 
o screening mound being insufficient and further landscaping required; 
o further diversification away from agricultural use creating a large agricultural-industrial 

complex on the outskirts of Leyburn; 

 impacts upon local amenity: 
o potential noise, vibration, dust and health risks; 
o inadequacy of noise and vibration assessments; 
o impact on enjoyment of property; 
o proximity to residential property and lack of a buffer zone. 

 economic impacts: 
o relatively small number of jobs and economic benefits are outweighed by the 

unacceptable impact on a large number of Leyburn residents including those of Moor 
Road; 

 
6.0 Planning policy and guidance 

The Development Plan  

6.1 Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires authorities 
to determine applications in accordance with the planning policies that comprise the 
Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. Furthermore, 
Paragraph 11 of the National Planning Policy Framework (2021) (and supported by 
the periodically updated national Planning Practice Guidance online resource) 
directs, at part c), the approval, without delay, proposals that accord with the 
development plan and, at part d), when the development plan is absent, silent or 
relevant policies are out-of-date, permission should be granted unless:  

Page 18

https://www.northyorks.gov.uk/sites/default/files/fileroot/Planning%20and%20development/Minerals%20and%20waste%20planning/Final_SCI_2013.pdf
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2004/5/section/38
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2004/5/contents
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1005759/NPPF_July_2021.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/planning-practice-guidance


 

commrep/11 

11 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

i.) the application of policies in [the NPPF] that protect areas or assets of particular importance 
provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed; or 

ii.) any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, 
when assessed against the policies in [the NPPF] taken as a whole’. 

6.2 In this instance, the Development Plan consists of extant policies contained within a 
number of planning documents.  These documents include the: 

 the Minerals & Waste Joint Plan (adopted February 2022) ; and, 

 the Richmondshire Local Plan 2012-2028 Core Strategy (2014). 

6.3 While NPPF Paragraph 48 directs weight afforded to policies of particular plans is to 
be dependent upon:  
 the stage of preparation of the plan (the more advanced its preparation, the greater the 

weight that may be given); 

 the extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the less significant 

the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given); and 

 the degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the  plan to the policies [in the NPPF] 

(the closer the policies in the  plan to the policies [in the NPPF], the greater the weight that 

may be given) 

both of the afore-mentioned documents that form the development plan post-date the 

publication of the NPPF and therefore prepared in the context of published national 

policy. However, for ease of reference, those paragraphs of the NPPF herein referred 

are provided, in extract, within Appendix A to this report. 

 
‘Development Plan’ document – the Minerals & Waste Joint Plan  

6.4 The Minerals and Waste Joint Plan (MWJP) was adopted on 16th February 2022 and 
prepared and examined post-publication of the NPPF. The policies most relevant to 
this application are: 
 

 Minerals policies: 
  MWJP Policy M01 Broad geographical approach to supply of aggregates 

Development management policies: 
 MWJP Policy D01 Presumption in favour of sustainable minerals and waste development 

 MWJP Policy D02 Local amenity and cumulative impacts 

 MWJP Policy D03 Transport of minerals and waste and associated traffic impacts 

 MWJP Policy D06 Landscape 

 MWJP Policy D07 Biodiversity and geodiversity 

 MWJP Policy D09 Water environment 

 MWJP Policy D11 Sustainable design, construction and operation of development 

 MWJP Policy I02 Locations for ancillary minerals infrastructure 

6.5 MWJP Policy M01 steers minerals and waste development proposals toward areas 
which lie outside the North York Moors National Park, Areas of Outstanding Natural 
Beauty and the City of York with a few identified exceptions to this. 

 
6.6 The relevant parts of MWJP Policy D01 in regards to presumption of sustainable 

development are that, in considering proposals, a positive approach, reflecting the 
NPPF’s presumption in favour of sustainable development, will be taken and that 
applicants will be worked with proactively to find solutions which mean that proposals 
can be approved wherever possible and secure development that improves the 
economic, social and environmental conditions in the area.  

 
6.7 MWJP Policy D02 steers minerals proposals, including ancillary development and 

transport infrastructure, toward sites where it can be demonstrated that there will be 

Page 19

http://pa-mgov/documents/s11258/Appendix%201%20-%20MWJP%20Policy%20document.pdf
https://www.richmondshire.gov.uk/media/9616/core-strategy-2012-28.pdf
https://www.northyorks.gov.uk/minerals-and-waste-joint-plan-examination
http://pa-mgov/documents/s11258/Appendix%201%20-%20MWJP%20Policy%20document.pdf


 

commrep/12 

12 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

no unacceptable impacts on local amenity, local businesses and users of the public 
rights of way network and public open space with proposals expected as a first priority 
to prevent adverse impacts through avoidance, with the use of robust mitigation 
measures where avoidance is not practicable (Part 1) and, within Part 2 of that  policy, 
encouragement is given to conducting early and meaningful engagement with local 
communities and to reflect the outcome of those discussions in the design of proposals 
as far as practicable. 

 
6.8 MWJP Policy D03 seeks to ensure, where road haulage is proposed, that there is 

appropriate infrastructure capacity to accommodate such traffic and would avoid giving 
rise to unacceptable impacts as well as any impacts being capable of being mitigated 
by means of access improvements and routing agreements etc.  

 
6.9 MWJP Policy D06 requires in Part 1) the protection of all landscapes from the harmful 

effects of development and lends support to proposals where: 
‘it can be demonstrated that there will be no unacceptable impact on the quality and/or character 
of the landscape, having taken into account any proposed mitigation measures’. 

 
6.10 MWJP Policy D07 requires proposals to demonstrate that there would be no 

unacceptable impacts on biodiversity, including on statutory and non-statutory 
designated or protected sites and features and that a very high level of protection will 
be afforded to sites designated at an international level, including SPAs and SACs with 
development which would have an unacceptable impact on these sites not being 
permitted (Parts 1) and 2)). 

 
6.11 MWJP Policy D09 lends support to proposals in its part 1) where: 

‘it can be demonstrated that no unacceptable impacts will arise, taking into account any 
proposed mitigation, on surface or groundwater quality and/or surface or groundwater supplies 
and flows’. 

 
6.12 MWJP Policy D11 seeks to ensure that the design, construction and operation of 

minerals and waste development incorporates measures appropriate and 
proportionate to the both the scale and the nature of the proposed development. 

 
6.13 MWJP Policy I02 recognises the importance of ancillary minerals infrastructure 

explaining: 
‘an important aspect of these additional activities, which are of industrial character, is that they 
all depend on the availability of mineral as a key raw material, but are not in themselves 
essential for the initial extraction and processing of the primary mineral itself’ 

and going onto say: 
‘where ancillary infrastructure is located at the site of extraction, this can have the benefit of 
adding value before the raw material leaves the site and thus help reduce the overall volume of 
material transported’.  

This  policy seeks, inter alia, to ensure against the generation of any significant 
additional adverse impact on local communities, businesses or the environment (part 
1 (ii)) or unacceptably increase road haulage (part 1 (iii)). 

 
 ‘Development Plan’ document – the Richmondshire Local Plan 2012-2028 Core 

Strategy 

6.14 With regards the second of the documents which comprise the ‘development plan’, 
namely the Richmondshire Local Plan 2012-2028 Core Strategy (adopted 2014) 
(herein referred to as (RLP-CS), the most relevant policies of this Plan include: 

 Spatial Principle SP1:  Sub Areas &  

o the Lower Wensleydale Spatial Strategy (LWSS) 

 Spatial Principle SP3:  Rural Sustainability 

 Spatial Principle SP5:  Scale and Distribution of Economic Development 

Page 20

https://www.richmondshire.gov.uk/media/9616/core-strategy-2012-28.pdf
https://www.richmondshire.gov.uk/media/9616/core-strategy-2012-28.pdf
https://www.richmondshire.gov.uk/media/9616/core-strategy-2012-28.pdf


 

commrep/13 

13 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

 Core Policy CP1:   Planning Positively 

 Core Policy CP2:   Responding to Climate Change, 

 Core Policy CP3:   Achieving Sustainable Development 

 Core Policy CP4:   Supporting Sites for Development 

 Core Policy CP7:   Promoting a Sustainable Development 

 Core Policy CP8:   Achieving Rural Sustainability 

 Core Policy CP12:   Conserving and Enhancing Environmental and Historic Assets 

 Core Policy CP13:   Promoting High Quality Design. 

It must, however, be acknowledged that none of these policies have been prepared 
and indeed adopted specifically with minerals and/or waste-related proposals as their 
primary focus. 

 
6.15 RLP-CS Spatial Principle SP1 (‘Sub Areas’) identifies ‘Lower Wensleydale’ as: 

‘an area of modest growth, reflecting the location of Leyburn within the sub area, which has a 
substantial capability to support its rural hinterland.  The scale of development in this sub area 
will also reflect its role in supporting and providing for the needs of the adjacent part of 
Richmondshire which lies within the Yorkshire Dales National Park’. 

 
6.16 The Lower Wensleydale Spatial Strategy (LWSS) directs that outside the Local Service 

Centre of Leyburn (the nearest to the proposed development): 
“sustainable development in accordance with Spatial Principle SP3 will be supported, 
particularly development which reflects the sub area’s role as an entry point and provides for 
the needs of the adjacent part of Richmondshire in the Yorkshire Dales National Park” 

 
6.17 RLP-CS Spatial Principle SP3 (‘Rural Sustainability’) promotes rural vitality and 

quality by priority being given to supporting rural sustainability, “protecting and enhancing 

its environmental assets and character, and sustaining the social and economic fabric of its 
communities, by [inter alia] promoting”: 

 a sustainable rural economy; 

 social and economic regeneration; and, 

 conservation or improvement of the rural environment…’ 

 
6.18 RLP-CS Spatial Principle SP5 (Scale and Distribution of Economic 

Development’) supports “small scale development…to meet local employment needs” 
outside those area identified within the policy. 

 
6.19 RLP-CS Core Policy CP1 (‘Planning Positively’) advises a positive approach that 

reflects the presumption in favour of sustainable development contained in the NPPF 
and proactive approach to find solutions such that proposals can be approved 
wherever possible, as well as seeking to secure development that improves the 
economic, social and environmental conditions in the plan area. 

 
6.20 Part 3 of RLP-CS Core Policy CP2 (‘Responding to Climate Change’) has as its 

focus ‘Climate Change Adaptation’ and requires all new development to be 
adaptable to climate change in terms of both its location, specific design and layout 
and, inter alia, seeking to reduce flood risk arising from surface water runoff from new 
development through design of development. 

 
6.21 Of particular relevance is an element of RLP-CS Core Policy CP3 (‘Achieving 

Sustainable Development’) which importantly expects consideration to be given to 
the prior extraction of any mineral resource within Mineral Safeguarding Areas. 
Although lying outside the proposed boundary of a Mineral Safeguarding Area within 
the Minerals and Waste Joint Plan, the application site is nevertheless within close 
proximity, some 500 metres; thereby rendering consideration of this element important 
in the determination of this application. 

 

Page 21

http://pa-mgov/documents/s11258/Appendix%201%20-%20MWJP%20Policy%20document.pdf


 

commrep/14 

14 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

6.22 Within Part 3, in particular, of RLP-CS Core Policy CP4 (‘Supporting Sites for 
Development’) it requires that development should not: 
a. impact adversely on the character of a settlement or its setting, important open spaces and 
views; designated and undesignated heritage assets and the character of the landscape;  
b. lead to the loss of/adverse impact on/or cause deterioration of important nature conservation, 
water bodies or biodiversity or geodiversity sites; 
c. result in the unacceptable loss of locally important open spaces or community facilities; 
d. be located in areas of flood risk or contribute to flood risk elsewhere; or, 
e. cause significant adverse impact on amenity or highway safety. 

 
6.23 RLP-CS Core Policy CP7 (‘Promoting a Sustainable Economy’) states that in order 

to develop and sustain the district’s economy, support will be given to a variety of 
proposals including small scale rural economic development to meet local needs 
therein listed as criterion (i).  

 
6.24 RLP-CS Core Policy CP8 (‘Achieving Rural Sustainability’) lends support, in Part 

1, to the social and economic needs of rural areas by encouraging the expansion of 
rural businesses (part b.) and diversification of the agricultural economy (part e.).  
Within Part 2, it lends support to social and economic regeneration of rural areas 
stating: 

In all cases, development should respond to climate change and be designed to be sustainable, 
consistent with the requirements of Core Policies CP2 and CP3; should not conflict with 
landscape character, amenity, environmental protection or nature conservation policies of the 
plan but should seek to enhance the environment; and should provide any necessary mitigating 

or compensatory measures to address harmful implications. 
 
6.25 RLP-CS Core Policy CP12 (‘Conserving and Enhancing Environmental and 

Historic Assets’) does not support development which:  
a. has a detrimental impact upon the significance of a natural or man-made asset; 
or 
b. is inconsistent with the principles of an asset’s proper management.   

With regards to Environmental Assets, the approach includes: 
b. landscape character of the plan area will be maintained, enhanced and, where appropriate, 
restored to ensure a sustainable future for the natural and historic environment; and, 
c. the biodiversity and geodiversity of the plan area will be maintained, enhanced and, where 
appropriate, restored to ensure a sustainable future for the natural environment. 

 
6.26 RLP-CS Core Policy CP13 (‘Promoting High Quality Design’) directs that high 

quality design of landscaping is a priority in all development proposals and, in part b., 
supports proposals that respect and enhance the local context and its special qualities, 
including its design features, landscape, social activities, historic environment and  
nationally and locally recognised designations.  It also instructs a balance to be made 
to limit the impact of light pollution from artificial light on local amenity, intrinsically dark 
landscapes and areas of nature conservation. 

 
7.0 Planning considerations 

7.1 As earlier referred, Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 
requires authorities to determine applications in accordance with the planning policies 
that comprise the ‘Development Plan’ unless material considerations, including any 
impacts upon interests of acknowledged importance, indicate otherwise.  

 

7.2 There exists a range of planning policies within the documents that form the 
‘Development Plan’ (Section 6.0 above refers) that need to be taken into account, as 
well as a number of other material considerations. In considering the relationship of the 
proposal to the ‘Development Plan’, Members are advised that proposals need to be 
judged against the ‘Development Plan’, as a whole, rather than against individual 
policies in isolation. Members are also advised to bear in mind the relative weight to be 

Page 22

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2004/5/section/38
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2004/5/contents


 

commrep/15 

15 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

attached to the applicable policies in the various elements of the ‘Development Plan’ 
relevant to this proposal against that which is laid down within national planning policy 
(Section 6.0 above again refers). The analysis that follows establishes the acceptability, 
or otherwise, of the proposal against relevant policies to establish whether 'in principle' 
the development either is, or is not, acceptable by virtue of the proposal’s degree of 
compliance and/or conflict with policies contained within each of the relevant 
‘Development Plan’ documents. It should be noted that it does not follow that where a 
proposal conflicts/complies with just one policy that a proposal must be deemed 
unacceptable/acceptable, but it is a question of the degree of conflict/compliance and 
the weight apportioned in a particular circumstance that gives rise to the final analysis. 

  
7.3 Within the paragraphs that follow this 'in principle' position in land use planning terms 

lies the analysis of the proposal in respect of the effects of the proposed development 
upon various interests of acknowledged importance and the establishment of whether 
there exist any 'other material considerations' that would outweigh/override the earlier 
referred 'in principle' position. In light of the extant ‘Development Plan’ policies, the 
main considerations in this instance are (please note, no inference of particular 
importance should be taken from the order in which the issues below appear): 

 highway matters: traffic & transport (including vehicle numbers, routing & and road safety); 

 landscape and visual impact; 

 local amenity (including hours of operation, noise, air quality (e.g. emissions and dust) 

vibration and light pollution; 

 flood risk, drainage and water quality; 

 biodiversity, habitats, nature conservation and protected species; and, 

 economic impacts. 

 

Principle of the proposed development 

7.4 Amongst the aims of the MWJP are those safeguarding important minerals resources 
and minerals infrastructure for the future, prioritising the long-term conservation of 
minerals through facilitating provision of sustainable alternatives to primary minerals 
extraction, including increasing the re-use and recycling of minerals and the use of 
secondary aggregates and planning for the steady and adequate supply of the minerals 
needed to contribute to local and wider economic growth, built development, quality of 
life, local distinctiveness and energy requirements, within the principles of sustainable 
development while, simultaneously, ensuring the sustainable use of resources in a way 
which protects the local environment, both natural and historic, as well as safeguarding 
the amenities of those living and working in local communities. These aims are 
consistent with the NPPF(2021) which recognises minerals are a finite natural resource 
and can only be worked where they are found and that ‘best use’ should be made of 
them (NPPF Paragraph 209 refers) as well as being consistent with the NPPF’s 
placement of ‘great weight’ upon the benefits of mineral extraction (Paragraph 211).  

 
7.5 The proposal currently under consideration meets these aims when taking into 

consideration that it would be a contribution to the county’s ability to maintain an 
adequate and steady supply of mineral to market; albeit acknowledged to be somewhat 
limited in this particular instance in light of the estimated mineral reserve available of 
7,700 tonnes. It would also provide a means of ensuring that a known mineral deposit 
beneath the site of the proposed development would, as far as possible, avoid being 
unnecessarily sterilised and would sustain mineral-related employment within the local 
economy. 

 
7.6 The extant land use planning policies against which to assess the acceptability, or 

otherwise, of the proposed development, in principle, mainly comprise MWJP policies 
M01, D01, D02, D11 and I02 of the Minerals and Waste Joint Plan. There are also 
other policies which comprise the ‘Development Plan’ in force for the area to which 

Page 23

http://pa-mgov/documents/s11258/Appendix%201%20-%20MWJP%20Policy%20document.pdf


 

commrep/16 

16 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

regard must also be had when considering the ‘in principle’ acceptability of the proposal 
i.e. policies SP1, SP3, SP5, CP1, CP3, CP7 and CP8 and the Lower Wensleydale 
Spatial Strategy of the Richmondshire Local Plan 2012-2028 Core Strategy (RLP-CS); 
though these policies must be acknowledged as not being prepared and/or adopted 
specifically with minerals and waste-related proposals as their focus. The assessment 
of the proposed development against these policies insofar as its acceptability, in 
principle, can be found in the paragraphs that follow below. 

 
7.7 The proposed development, whilst principally involving the erection of a ready-mix 

concrete (RMC) plant and associated aggregate storage, also proposes the incidental 
/ ‘prior extraction’ of the mineral which lies beneath. The application is therefore 
assessed against the policies relevant to the extraction of mineral as well as the 
principal development itself i.e. the RMC plant and its associated aggregate storage. 

 
7.8 Compliance with one element of the development plan, MWJP Policy M01, is readily 

achieved by dint of the fact that proposal lies outside those areas identified within that 
specific policy; namely the North York Moors National Park, Areas of Outstanding 
Natural Beauty and the City of York. As the paragraphs that follow within this section 
of the report outline, compliance is similarly achieved in respect of MWJP Policy D01 
which supports proposals that accord with the policies that comprise the ‘development 
plan’ where that achieves sustainable development; an overarching objective of the 
planning system.  

 
7.9 It is acknowledged that the site of the proposed development falls outside the boundary 

of any MWJP allocations, ‘areas of search’ for mineral or safeguarded areas identified 
within the Plan and, while the proposal would not constitute an extension to an existing 
quarry per se, it is nevertheless important to note that it involves the processing of 
mineral and ‘adding value’ to that mineral for the RMC market and would ensure the 
exploitation of some 7,700 tonnes of known and available mineral reserves that lie 
beneath the proposed site (an area of land of approximately 0.1 hectare (as shown on 
Plan 7 appended to this report)). Furthermore, exploitable mineral reserves are also 
known to exist and be available within the area of the extant mineral permission area 
under permission ref. no. C1/78/412/MR, dated 5th April 20001, shown on Plan 3 
appended to this report, which is valid until 21st February 2042. 

 
7.10 Part 1 of MWJP Policy D02 steers minerals proposals, including ancillary 

development and transport infrastructure, toward sites where it can be demonstrated 
that there will be no unacceptable impacts on local amenity, local businesses and users 
of the public rights of way network and public open space with proposals expected as 
a first priority to prevent adverse impacts through avoidance, with the use of robust 
mitigation measures where avoidance is not practicable. The development, as 
proposed within the application under consideration, is one such instance and 
therefore one that is capable of satisfying this particular MWJP policy which is 
consistent with NPPF Paragraph 209 as well as being aligned with the direction of 
travel of both RLP-CS Core Policy CP1 and criterion (i) of RLP-CS Core Policy CP7 
in lending support to development that can be regarded as being sustainable. This 
would similarly satisfy the extant ‘development plan’ policy of RLP-CS Core Policy 

                                                 
1 n.b. under the provisions of permission ref. no. C1/78/412/MR) dated 5th April 2000, any 
commencement of mineral working within the area delineated in yellow and annotated within 2/4/588 
as shown on Plan 8 appended to this report is prohibited until such time as the formal discharge of all 
relevant conditions. An application for the formal discharge of condition no.s 20 & 23 relating to noise 
and vibration respectively was recently approved on 4th November 2021 under ref. no. 
NY/2021/0219/A27 and an application for the formal discharge of condition no.s 8, 10 & 32 which relate 
to the scheme of working and restoration, soil storage details and ‘aftercare’ scheme respectively is 
currently under consideration. A further application (ref. no. NY/2021/0165/FUL) has been received 
seeking permission for the construction of a new access road to service the old mineral permission 
area. This too is currently under consideration.  Page 24

https://www.richmondshire.gov.uk/media/9616/core-strategy-2012-28.pdf
https://onlineplanningregister.northyorks.gov.uk/Register/PlanAppDisp.aspx?recno=3899
https://onlineplanningregister.northyorks.gov.uk/Register/PlanAppDisp.aspx?recno=3899
https://onlineplanningregister.northyorks.gov.uk/Register/PlanAppDisp.aspx?recno=1332
https://onlineplanningregister.northyorks.gov.uk/Register/DisplayImage.aspx?doc=cmVjb3JkX251bWJlcj0xMTM5MD9maWxlbmFtZT1cXGNvdW50eS5ueWNjLmludGVybmFsXERhdGFcYmVzLWRhdGFcQXBwLU1hc3RlckdvdlxwbGFubmluZ1xOWS0yMDIxLTAyMTktQTI3XDEzIE9mZmljZXIgUmVwb3J0c1wyMTExMDQgTGV0dGVyIG9mIGRpc2NoYXJnZSAyMCBhbmQgMjMgMDIxOSBhMjcgQTAwMjg4MC5wZGY/aW1hZ2VfbnVtYmVyPTE2LjAwMDA/aW1hZ2VfdHlwZT1wbGFubmluZz9sYXN0X21vZGlmaWVkX2Zyb21fZGlzaz0wNC8xMS8yMDIxIDE0OjUzOjU3
https://onlineplanningregister.northyorks.gov.uk/Register/PlanAppDisp.aspx?recno=11390
https://onlineplanningregister.northyorks.gov.uk/Register/PlanAppDisp.aspx?recno=11338


 

commrep/17 

17 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

CP3, in general, and part 4 of that policy, in particular, which importantly, in principle, 
expects consideration to be given to the ‘prior extraction’ of any mineral resource. 
Notwithstanding the application site per se lying some 500 metres outside the 
boundary of a nearby proposed Minerals Safeguarding Area (as set out within the 
Minerals and Waste Joint Plan) rather than lying within such an area, the principle of 
‘prior extraction’, nevertheless, remains both an important and a material consideration 
aligning with the general thrust of the Joint Plan.  

 
7.11 The existence of the mineral deposit has been established not only as a consequence 

of mineral extracted incidental, and prior, to the construction of two agricultural 
buildings permitted by Richmondshire District Council in 2018, but also by the 
existence of the earlier referred extant mineral permissions in close proximity to the 
site of the proposed development.  

 
7.12 Furthermore, compliance is also considered to be achieved by the proposal when 

additionally assessed against the spatial principles expressed within the local 
Richmondshire Local Plan 2012-2028 Core Strategy; namely, RLP-CS Spatial 
Principle SP1 & the Lower Wensleydale Spatial Strategy which acknowledge 
moderate growth through sustainable development supporting and providing for the 
needs of the local community and sustaining the rural economy (to which the proposed 
development could contribute) and employment through RLP-CS Spatial Principle 
SP3, RLP-CS Spatial Principle SP5 and parts and Part 1b) & e) of RLP-CS Core 
Policy CP8 (to which, again, the proposed development could contribute). The 
proposed development at Washfold Farm has the capability to provide support, in the 
form of a supply of concrete to Leyburn and the economy of the surrounding rural area 
including the adjacent part of Richmondshire which lies within the Yorkshire Dales 
National Park, which at its closest lies within 5-6 kilometres of the application site.  
Furthermore, it would directly provide seven new jobs.   

 
7.13 In considering the ‘in principle’ acceptability of the proposed development, due regard 

must also be had to the sustainable development elements within MWJP Policy D11 
which seeks to ensure that the design, construction and operation of minerals and 
waste development incorporates measures appropriate and proportionate to both the 
scale and the nature of the proposed development. In particular, it seeks the 
minimisation of greenhouse gas emissions (Part 1 i)); an aim achieved by the 
proposed development in seeking to be located at an optimum market distance to 
reduce the haulage miles as far as practicable. The use of renewable/low carbon 
energy (Part 1 iii)) and the reduction in the use of resources such as water (Part 1 iv)) 
are not only imperatives of the ‘development plan’, but also economic imperatives too, 
mutually self-reinforcing. Part 1 viii), seeking sustainable planting schemes with 
ecological benefits, is also achieved through the proposed landscaping and mounding.  

 
7.14 The information accompanying the application is considered to be both adequate and 

satisfactory in order to determine the proposal’s acceptability ‘in principle’, but before 
bringing to a close the consideration of the acceptability of the development ‘in 
principle’, due regard must also be had to MWJP Policy I02 relating to ancillary and 
secondary operations. This recognises the importance of ancillary and secondary 
operations and lends policy support, explaining the sustainability benefit that “where 
ancillary infrastructure is located at the site of extraction, this can have the benefit of 
adding value before the raw material leaves the site and thus help reduce the overall 
volume of material transported”. 

 
7.15 On the point of sustainability, this is a matter that has arisen as an outcome of statutory 

publicity (i.e. the notices on site and in the press as well as neighbour notifications) to 
which this proposal has been subject. It is acknowledged that concerns have been 
raised by those in the community in relation to the scale of development that has 
already taken place at Washfold Farm.  In addition to the developments referred to in 

Page 25

http://pa-mgov/documents/s11258/Appendix%201%20-%20MWJP%20Policy%20document.pdf
https://www.richmondshire.gov.uk/media/9616/core-strategy-2012-28.pdf


 

commrep/18 

18 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

Section 2.0 above, over the past twenty years, the farm has expanded in a variety of 
ways including buildings for livestock, a milking parlour, creation of slurry lagoons to 
deal with livestock effluent and conversions for flats and a cottage for workers.  While 
new developments inevitably bring about change in the locality; many of these will have 
been subject to the planning process under the jurisdiction of the District Council and 
opportunities for participation in the process will have presented themselves. While, of 
course, the built environment context of an application is considered to be material to 
its determination, the receipt of objections on the grounds of previously permitted 
developments, such as objections founded upon a perceived creation a large 
agricultural-industrial complex on the outskirts of Leyburn, are not. The context of the 
built environment in the vicinity of a proposal is a material consideration, but each case 
must be assessed and determined upon its own individual merits. It is important to note 
that those with whom the County Council has consulted for their expert advice has not 
given rise to similar concerns as those raised in objection by local residents.  

 
7.16 The above identified Minerals and Waste Joint Plan policies of M01, D01, D02, D11 

and I02 together with the local extant policies of SP1, SP3, SP5, CP1, CP3, CP7 and 
CP8, of the Richmondshire Local Plan 2012-2028 Core Strategy also identified above, 
collectively lend support to the ‘in principle’ acceptability of the proposed development. 
The proposed development, as a result, is not considered to be in significant material 
conflict with the MWJP’s spatial distribution-related / locational policies; nor is it 
rendered in significant material conflict with the general aims of the policies of Chapter 
17 (‘Facilitating the sustainable use of minerals’) within NPPF(2021) (particularly 
Paragraph 209 and Paragraph 211). 

 
7.17 Subject to the proposed development being capable of being implemented without 

unacceptable harm to interests of acknowledged importance, the principle of granting 
planning permission for this development is considered to be acceptable for the 
reasons thus far explained. However, the issue must be addressed as to whether there 
exist any other material considerations that are of such material significance as to find 
the development proposed in this particular instance unacceptable in land-use 
planning terms (i.e. indicating a view contrary to this ‘in principle’ acceptability of the 
proposed development) and this is discussed in the paragraphs that follow. 

 
 Assessment of the proposal against other policies and material considerations: 

Highways matters: traffic & transport (including numbers of vehicles, routing & and 
road safety) 

7.18 Those ‘Development Plan’ policies of most relevance to which regard must be had 
when considering the transport implications of the proposed development include Part 
1 of MWJP Policy D03 which seeks to ensure there appropriate infrastructure capacity 
exists to accommodate traffic associated with proposed development and avoid giving 
rise to unacceptable impacts as well as any impacts being capable of being mitigated 
and Part 1 (iii) of MWJP Policy I02 which seeks to avoid unacceptable increases in 
the overall amount of road transport; consistent with NPPF(2021) Paragraph 104 and 
Paragraph 111 and Part 3)e) of Core Policy CP4 of the Richmondshire Local Plan 
2012-2028 Core Strategy. 

 
7.19 As earlier referred, Washfold Farm is an established site with existing agricultural and 

commercial businesses and diversification into the supply of ready-mix concrete would 
lead to further HGV traffic on to the public highway.  While the application refers to an 
access route to the north of the site (onto the Redmire Road (C34)) being proposed to 
be used as the primary route for both access and egress, it is understood that its 
construction commenced under the terms of the District Council’s planning permission 
(ref. no. 19/00246/FULL) which was subsequently varied (ref. no. 20/00541/VAR) by 
the District Council on 7th May 2021 for a revised  site access layout to enable the 

Page 26

http://pa-mgov/documents/s11258/Appendix%201%20-%20MWJP%20Policy%20document.pdf
https://www.richmondshire.gov.uk/media/9616/core-strategy-2012-28.pdf
https://www.richmondshire.gov.uk/media/9616/core-strategy-2012-28.pdf
https://www.richmondshire.gov.uk/media/9616/core-strategy-2012-28.pdf


 

commrep/19 

19 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

creation of a flood attenuation area.  The acceptability of the access to the proposed 
application site from the Redmire Road (C34) has thus already been established. 

 
7.20 Section 3.0 of this report summarises the elements of the proposed development and 

explains the proposal envisages 44 daily vehicle movements (i.e. 22 in and 22 out per 
day) and a maximum of 54 daily vehicle movements (i.e. 27 in and 27 out per day).  It 
is acknowledged that local residents as well as Leyburn Town Council have raised 
highway concerns. One resident considered that the development should only be 
granted once the access road was built and others expressed general concern about 
the impact on local roads, the increase of HGVs and potential impact on road safety 
through Leyburn including on Moor Road (which leads from Whipperdale Bank south-
east into Leyburn). However, in respect of the individual comment about the access, 
the access construction has commenced and, insofar as more general comments, 
several of these responses were made on the basis of Moor Road being the main route 
from the site; whereas, the principal routing is proposed to be more distant from the 
town of Leyburn via the site entrance on the Redmire Road (C34).  Furthermore, the 
Applicant has confirmed that HGV drivers would be ordered to follow instructions with 
regards travel direction.  

 
7.21 It is noted that the Highway Authority, from whom expert opinion has been sought, has 

raised no objection to the proposed traffic movements on the basis that the proposed 
access for this development is that which is taken from the C34 'Tank Road' to the 
north of the site except for access for local deliveries. Indeed none of the recent 
planning permissions have placed a restriction on the volume of traffic leaving, nor has 
the Highway Authority indicated that the Redmire Road (C34) is approaching capacity 
and, on that basis, it is considered that the estimated traffic envisaged to be associated 
with this proposed development is acceptable in land use planning terms and the 
proposal is not considered to have any significant adverse impact on highway safety 
rendering it compliant with Part 1 of MWJP Policy D03 and Part 1 (iii) of MWJP Policy 
I02 as well as part 3) e) of RLP-CS Core Policy CP4. 

 
7.22 Notwithstanding, in light of the representations received in connection with highways 

matters, it is considered in this instance, prudent to recommend the imposition of a 
planning condition which could serve to control the bringing into use until such time as 
it is confirmed that the access has been constructed in accord with the conditions of 
planning permission ref. no. 20/00541/VAR and, therefore, should planning permission 
be forthcoming, condition no. 3 in the schedule of  conditions within Section 9.0 of this 
report is recommended for consideration by Members. As a consequence, subject to 
the proposed condition no. 3, the use of this access in connection with the development 
and the proposed transport links to move the concrete product to the market and 
receive the imports of sand, gravel, stone and cementitious material is considered to 
be acceptable and there is nothing to indicate that the development would have an 
unacceptable adverse impact on local roads or highway safety or give rise to severe 
residual cumulative impact. 

 
Landscape and visual impact 

7.23 Those ‘Development Plan’ policies of most relevance to which regard must be had 
when considering the landscape and visual impacts of the proposed development 
include Part 1) of MWJP Policy D06 which seeks to ensure against any unacceptable 
impact on the quality and/or character of the landscape, having taken into account any 
proposed mitigation measures and part a) of Core Policy CP4 and Core Policy CP13 
of the Richmondshire Local Plan 2012-2028 Core Strategy; which similarly seek 
protections against landscape harm; consistent with NPPF(2021) Paragraph 130, 
Paragraph 174 and Paragraph 211(b). 

 
7.24 The proposed development lies in excess of a kilometre from the built-up edge of 

Leyburn and approximately 1.3 kilometres from the village of Bellerby.  With respect to Page 27

https://www.richmondshire.gov.uk/media/9616/core-strategy-2012-28.pdf


 

commrep/20 

20 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

landscape impacts, prior extraction in connection with previous developments (e.g. the 
agricultural buildings) permitted by the District Council have already taken place at 
Washfold Farm and have sought to position those buildings less prominently in the 
landscape and the prior incidental extraction of limestone on the site before the 
commencement of the construction of the proposed development would similarly place 
the RMC plant at a lower level, such that the plant would lie below the ground level of 
the land to the west overall.  The proposed landscaped mound to the north-west of the 
proposed development, as described in Section 3.0 above, and the landscape planting 
that was a requirement of permission ref. no. 18/00516/FUL (as shown on Plan 3), 
which is understood to have already been planted, would both serve to screen the 
proposed development such that any landscape impacts arising would be further 
mitigated. 

 
7.25 In terms of visual impacts resulting from the proposed development, any views from 

Whipperdale Bank would largely be prevented by the undulating topography between 
that road and Washfold Farm where the application site is situated and views south 
and south-east from the Redmire Road (C34) toward the proposed site would also be 
prevented by similarly undulating topography. Potential views from a short (75 metre) 
length of road, approximately 400 metres north-west of the existing entrance to 
Washfold Farm off Whipperdale Bank, would be screened by the aforementioned 
recent planting. Any potential for views further afield from the east would be screened 
by the topography of the land and the landscape planting already undertaken in respect 
of permission ref. no. 18/00516/FUL to the east/north-east of the proposed 
development and is considered to be important to its potential visual impact mitigation. 
Moreover, any adverse effects upon visual amenity of the residential property to the 
north of the proposed development, Moor Farm, are mitigated by existing buildings and 
dry stone walls as well as being sought to be further mitigated by the proposed 
screening mound on land which separates the two and identified on Plan 5 appended 
to this report. 

 
7.26 Although representations have been received raising objection in respect of the 

proposed development referencing potential landscape and visual impacts of the 
proposal such as the perception of the creation of a quarry; visual impact from Moor 
Road; screening mound being insufficient and further landscaping required and a 
further diversification away from agricultural use creating a large agricultural-industrial 
complex on the outskirts of Leyburn, these have not been borne out within any of the 
comments received from experts with whom the County Planning Authority has sought 
views. It is acknowledged that the proposed development introduces plant, industrial 
in nature, within the local landscape. However, with appropriate mitigation measures 
proposed to assist in visually screening the development, including the ‘sinking / 
lowering’ of the ground levels upon which the development is proposed to be situated 
and the proposed development’s limited scale (in terms of height, massing and 
footprint), the proposals are considered to be acceptable in land use planning terms. 

 
7.27 Notwithstanding the absence of significant adverse landscape and visual effects 

arising from the proposed development, it is considered prudent to ensure the 
implementation and maintenance of the measures put forward by the applicant in 
mitigation and it is therefore recommended, should planning permission be 
forthcoming, that a planning condition be imposed upon any grant of permission being 
necessary to secure the maintenance of the landscaping shown on the applicant’s 
submitted Site Context Plan drwg no. WF/NY/19/106 dated 06/12/19 (see Plan 3a 
appended to this report) and this is recommended to be achieved via the proposed 
condition no. 2 as set out within Section 9.0 below. The landscape and visual impact 
of the development can also be further controlled by the imposition of recommended 
condition no. 11 below with regards the proposed screening mound. 

 

Page 28

https://onlineplanningregister.northyorks.gov.uk/Register/DisplayImage.aspx?doc=cmVjb3JkX251bWJlcj0xMDkwNz9maWxlbmFtZT1cXGNvdW50eS5ueWNjLmludGVybmFsXERhdGFcYmVzLWRhdGFcQXBwLU1hc3RlckdvdlxwbGFubmluZ1xOWS0yMDE5LTAxNjgtRlVMXDIgU3VwcG9ydGluZyBEb2N1bWVudHNcUmV2aXNlZCBJbmZvcm1hdGlvbiBEZWMgMjAxOVxBcHBlbmRpeCBBIC0gV0YtTlktMTktMTA2IC0gU2l0ZSBDb250ZXh0IFBsYW4ucGRmP2ltYWdlX251bWJlcj0yNy4wMDAwP2ltYWdlX3R5cGU9cGxhbm5pbmc/bGFzdF9tb2RpZmllZF9mcm9tX2Rpc2s9MTcvMTIvMjAxOSAxMDozNDoxNw==


 

commrep/21 

21 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

7.28 Subject to the imposition of these conditions, as recommended, it is considered that 
the siting and scale of the proposed development are acceptable, as the limestone 
extraction enables the proposed RMC Plant to be constructed such that it is less 
prominent within the landscape in conjunction with the proposed landscaped mound  
such that the development would not have an unacceptable impact on the local 
environment and will therefore be compliant with Part 1) of MWJP Policy D06 and 
part a) of RLPCS-Core Policy CP4 in that there are safeguards against any significant 
adverse impact upon the character of the landscape or visual amenity; consistent with 
the landscape requirements of NPPF(2021) Paragraph 130, Paragraph 174 and 
Paragraph 211(b). 

 
Local amenity (including hours of operation, noise, air quality (e.g. emissions and dust) 
vibration and external lighting 

7.29 Those ‘Development Plan’ policies of most relevance to which regard must be had 
when considering the impacts of the proposed development upon local residential 
amenity include part 1) of MWJP Policy D02 and Part 3)e) of Core Policy CP4 , Core 
Policy CP8 and Core Policy CP13 of the Richmondshire Local Plan 2012-2028 Core 
Strategy; consistent with NPPF(2021) Paragraph 174(e) & 211(c). 

 
7.30 It is acknowledged that representations have been received raising objection in respect 

of the proposed development summarised as potential noise, vibration, dust and health 
risks; inadequacy of noise and vibration assessments; impact on the enjoyment of 
property; proximity to residential property and lack of a buffer zone. 

 
 Noise 

7.31 The proposed hours of operation within the revised application details of December 
2019 are summarised in Section 3.0 of this report. These were accompanied by a 
Noise Impact Assessment (NIA) produced by a consultant commissioned by the 
applicant. 

 
7.32 The proposed hours along with the accompanying Noise Impact Assessment (NIA) 

have been assessed by the relevant expert, the District Council’s Environmental Health 
Officer (EHO) with whom the County Planning Authority has consulted for their views 
on issues important to local residential amenity and, in this particular instance, the NIA 
has not been found wanting. Although the EHO referred to matters such as background 
noise levels relative to mid-day levels, it was acknowledged that the NIA had also 
assessed the potential internal impact within neighbouring property bedroom 
accommodation using British Standard criteria. The EHO considered that there could 
be some disturbance to nearby residential properties during the construction phase in 
terms of possible noise, dust and vibration, but expected that this would be short-term 
and capable of control by the imposition of suitable conditions to limit the development 
to being undertaken in accordance with the application details.  The proposed routing 
of vehicles is such that it is not considered that there will be any significantly 
unacceptable adverse impacts arising from vehicular emissions on neighbouring 
properties or, indeed, on the residents nearer the town of Leyburn including those 
residing along Moor Road.  It is material to the consideration of the application that the 
applicant has submitted a Construction Environmental Management Plan (dated 
December 2019) which sets out the site management and control measures in relation 
to noise and this has been noted by the EHO as being acceptable. 

  
 Dust 

7.33 The ready mix concrete plant is proposed to be of modern design and would include a 
sprinkler system to control dust emissions. The aggregate receptor hoppers and the 
conveyors would be integrated into the structure such that they would be fully protected 
from wind whipping; thereby, minimising dust emissions.  While there are residential 
properties nearby situated at Moor Farm and Trap House, the location of the proposed 

Page 29

https://www.richmondshire.gov.uk/media/9616/core-strategy-2012-28.pdf
https://www.richmondshire.gov.uk/media/9616/core-strategy-2012-28.pdf
https://onlineplanningregister.northyorks.gov.uk/Register/DisplayImage.aspx?doc=cmVjb3JkX251bWJlcj0xMDkwNz9maWxlbmFtZT1cXGNvdW50eS5ueWNjLmludGVybmFsXERhdGFcYmVzLWRhdGFcQXBwLU1hc3RlckdvdlxwbGFubmluZ1xOWS0yMDE5LTAxNjgtRlVMXDIgU3VwcG9ydGluZyBEb2N1bWVudHNcUmV2aXNlZCBJbmZvcm1hdGlvbiBEZWMgMjAxOVxBcHBlbmRpeCBDIC0gTm9pc2UgUmVwb3J0LnBkZj9pbWFnZV9udW1iZXI9MjkuMDAwMD9pbWFnZV90eXBlPXBsYW5uaW5nP2xhc3RfbW9kaWZpZWRfZnJvbV9kaXNrPTE3LzEyLzIwMTkgMTA6Mjk6MDQ=
https://onlineplanningregister.northyorks.gov.uk/Register/DisplayImage.aspx?doc=cmVjb3JkX251bWJlcj0xMDkwNz9maWxlbmFtZT1cXGNvdW50eS5ueWNjLmludGVybmFsXERhdGFcYmVzLWRhdGFcQXBwLU1hc3RlckdvdlxwbGFubmluZ1xOWS0yMDE5LTAxNjgtRlVMXDIgU3VwcG9ydGluZyBEb2N1bWVudHNcUmV2aXNlZCBJbmZvcm1hdGlvbiBEZWMgMjAxOVxBcHBlbmRpeCBDIC0gTm9pc2UgUmVwb3J0LnBkZj9pbWFnZV9udW1iZXI9MjkuMDAwMD9pbWFnZV90eXBlPXBsYW5uaW5nP2xhc3RfbW9kaWZpZWRfZnJvbV9kaXNrPTE3LzEyLzIwMTkgMTA6Mjk6MDQ=
https://onlineplanningregister.northyorks.gov.uk/Register/DisplayImage.aspx?doc=cmVjb3JkX251bWJlcj0xMDkwNz9maWxlbmFtZT1cXGNvdW50eS5ueWNjLmludGVybmFsXERhdGFcYmVzLWRhdGFcQXBwLU1hc3RlckdvdlxwbGFubmluZ1xOWS0yMDE5LTAxNjgtRlVMXDIgU3VwcG9ydGluZyBEb2N1bWVudHNcUmV2aXNlZCBJbmZvcm1hdGlvbiBEZWMgMjAxOVxBcHBlbmRpeCBEIC0gQ29uc3RydWN0aW9uIEVudmlyb25tZW50YWwgTWFuYWdlbWVudCBQbGFuLnBkZj9pbWFnZV9udW1iZXI9MzAuMDAwMD9pbWFnZV90eXBlPXBsYW5uaW5nP2xhc3RfbW9kaWZpZWRfZnJvbV9kaXNrPTE3LzEyLzIwMTkgMTA6Mjc6NTc=


 

commrep/22 

22 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

RMC plant at a lower height AOD would aid the control of air disturbance arising from 
the prevailing wind; thereby, again, reducing the potential for emissions from the RMC 
plant’s operation.  Furthermore, the control of deliveries by tankers with appropriate 
valves and filters and the automatic system to prevent overfilling or pressurisation 
would also ensure control of the deliveries of cementitious powders and reduce the 
potential for any dust nuisance.  As earlier referred in respect of the consideration of 
noise, the applicant has submitted a Construction Environmental Management Plan 
(dated December 2019) which similarly sets out the site management and control 
measures in relation to dust and this has been noted by the EHO as being acceptable. 

 
 Vibration 

7.34 With regards to vibration, the applicant anticipates that the extraction of the incidental 
limestone in the location of the proposed RMC plant would only require two blasts.  The 
EHO has not expressed the opinion that the information within the application was 
inadequate to assess the impact on amenity.  Nevertheless, in the interests of local 
amenity, it is considered that restrictions in terms of the hours during which blasting 
could be permitted to take place would be prudent and, in this particular instance, also 
including the requirement for 48 hours notification of proposed blasts and a restriction 
to only the removal of material sufficient to undertake the proposed development. As 
earlier referred in respect of the consideration of noise and dust, the applicant has 
submitted a Construction Environmental Management Plan (dated December 2019) 
which similarly sets out the site management and control measures in relation to 
vibration and this has been noted by the EHO as being acceptable. 

  
7.35 In summary and in terms of: 

 noise, subject to control via the imposition of the recommended condition no.s 4 to 7; 

 dust, subject to control via the imposition of the recommended condition no. 4; 

 vibration, subject to control via the imposition of recommended condition no.s 4, 8 & 9 

in Section 9.0 below, it is considered that the development would be capable of being  
operated without any significant unacceptable adverse impact upon residential amenity 
rendering the proposed development to be considered to be compliant with part 1) of  
Policy D02 and Part 3)e) of Core Policy CP4 of the Richmondshire Local Plan 2012-
2028 Core Strategy; aligning with the policy direction of NPPF(2021) Paragraph 
174(e) and 211(c).   

 
External lighting 

7.36 With regards to the potential impact of artificial lighting around the site for health, safety 
and security reasons, the applicant is agreeable to the location of this lighting being 
agreed prior to its installation and it is, therefore, a matter considered capable of being 
addressed through the imposition of a planning condition (namely no. 13 as set out 
within Section 9.0 of this report) in order to protect the amenity of local residents; 
thereby rendering the proposed development compliant with Part 1) of MWJP Policy 
D02 and Part 3)e) of Core Policy CP4 and Core Policy CP13 of the Richmondshire 
Local Plan 2012-2028 Core Strategy; aligning with the steer of NPPF(2021) Paragraph 
174(e) and Paragraph 185(c). 

 
Flood risk, drainage and water quality  

7.37 Those ‘Development Plan’ policies of most relevance to which regard must be had 
when considering the impacts of the proposed development upon flood risk, drainage 
and water quality include MWJP Policy D09 and Part 3)d) of Core Policy CP4 of the 
Richmondshire Local Plan 2012-2028 Core Strategy; consistent with NPPF(2021) 
Paragraph 154. 

 
7.38 There are no surface watercourses in the vicinity of the proposed RMC plant site and 

the site is located within Flood Zone 1 i.e. at low risk of flooding.  Furthermore, it is not 
located within any groundwater protection zones. It is not considered likely to contribute 

Page 30

https://onlineplanningregister.northyorks.gov.uk/Register/DisplayImage.aspx?doc=cmVjb3JkX251bWJlcj0xMDkwNz9maWxlbmFtZT1cXGNvdW50eS5ueWNjLmludGVybmFsXERhdGFcYmVzLWRhdGFcQXBwLU1hc3RlckdvdlxwbGFubmluZ1xOWS0yMDE5LTAxNjgtRlVMXDIgU3VwcG9ydGluZyBEb2N1bWVudHNcUmV2aXNlZCBJbmZvcm1hdGlvbiBEZWMgMjAxOVxBcHBlbmRpeCBEIC0gQ29uc3RydWN0aW9uIEVudmlyb25tZW50YWwgTWFuYWdlbWVudCBQbGFuLnBkZj9pbWFnZV9udW1iZXI9MzAuMDAwMD9pbWFnZV90eXBlPXBsYW5uaW5nP2xhc3RfbW9kaWZpZWRfZnJvbV9kaXNrPTE3LzEyLzIwMTkgMTA6Mjc6NTc=
https://onlineplanningregister.northyorks.gov.uk/Register/DisplayImage.aspx?doc=cmVjb3JkX251bWJlcj0xMDkwNz9maWxlbmFtZT1cXGNvdW50eS5ueWNjLmludGVybmFsXERhdGFcYmVzLWRhdGFcQXBwLU1hc3RlckdvdlxwbGFubmluZ1xOWS0yMDE5LTAxNjgtRlVMXDIgU3VwcG9ydGluZyBEb2N1bWVudHNcUmV2aXNlZCBJbmZvcm1hdGlvbiBEZWMgMjAxOVxBcHBlbmRpeCBEIC0gQ29uc3RydWN0aW9uIEVudmlyb25tZW50YWwgTWFuYWdlbWVudCBQbGFuLnBkZj9pbWFnZV9udW1iZXI9MzAuMDAwMD9pbWFnZV90eXBlPXBsYW5uaW5nP2xhc3RfbW9kaWZpZWRfZnJvbV9kaXNrPTE3LzEyLzIwMTkgMTA6Mjc6NTc=
https://www.richmondshire.gov.uk/media/9616/core-strategy-2012-28.pdf
https://www.richmondshire.gov.uk/media/9616/core-strategy-2012-28.pdf
https://www.richmondshire.gov.uk/media/9616/core-strategy-2012-28.pdf
https://www.richmondshire.gov.uk/media/9616/core-strategy-2012-28.pdf
https://www.richmondshire.gov.uk/media/9616/core-strategy-2012-28.pdf


 

commrep/23 

23 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

to flood risk elsewhere. The assessment of the flood risk issues has included 
consideration of the proposed access which has been determined to be acceptable 
following the grant of permission ref. no. 19/00246/FULL for the new service road to 
Washfold Farm from the Redmire Road (C34).  The construction of the access road 
includes provision for a Flood Attenuation Area to the west of the access.  The District 
Council’s decision to grant planning permission in respect of application ref. no. 
20/00541/VAR is expected to expand the flood attenuation capability in the area of the 
access close to the Redmire Road (C34) road and enhance the management of flood 
water as is sought by Bellerby Parish Council. Furthermore, the Lead Local Flood 
Authority (LLFA) considers that the development would have little, to no, effect on the 
surrounding area.  No objections have been raised by the Environment Agency that 
would indicate that there is any risk of non-compliance with MWJP Policy D09.  
Furthermore, it is considered that the development does not present any impacts on 
surface or groundwater resources, or on flooding as required by Core Policy CP2 and 
Core Policy CP4 part 3)d) of the Richmondshire Local Plan 2012-2028 Core Strategy. 

 
Biodiversity, habitats, nature conservation and protected species  

7.39 Those ‘Development Plan’ policies of most relevance to which regard must be had 
when considering the impacts of the proposed development upon biodiversity, 
habitats, nature conservation and protected species include MWJP Policy D07 and 
part 3)b) of Core Policy CP4 and Core Policy CP12 of the Richmondshire Local Plan 
2012-2028 Core Strategy; consistent with NPPF(2021) Paragraph 174. 

 
7.40 Natural England has confirmed that it considers that the proposal would not have 

significant adverse impacts on North Pennine Moors Special Area of Conservation and 
Special Protection Area that is 99 metres from the site and that in terms of the Habitats 
Regulations ‘a likely significant effect can be ruled out’.  Moreover, although the 
application site lies within Impact Risk Zones specified for the Lovely Seat - Stainton 
Moor SSSI, Natural England has confirmed that the proposal would not damage or 
destroy the interest features for which the Lovely Seat - Stainton Moor SSSI was 
notified.   

 
7.41 In taking into consideration Natural England’s position and the recommendation of 

County Council’s adviser on matters of ecology that the Construction Environmental 
Management Plan should be secured by planning condition, it is considered that, 
subject to recommended condition no.s 2 and 4, the proposed incidental extraction of 
the limestone in order to facilitate the lowering of the RMC plant development site 
within the landscape and the erection and use of the RMC plant itself will not have an 
unacceptable effect on the biodiversity and nature conservation interests of the 
ecological designated sites in the vicinity. 

 
7.42 With regards to safeguarding against any potential unacceptable impacts of artificial / 

external lighting around the site upon biodiversity, habitats, nature conservation and 
protected species, lighting details would require to be approved prior to installation via 
the requirements of the proposed recommended condition no. 13 which would serve 
to reduce any impact on native species in the area as sought by NPPF(2021) 
Paragraph 185.  The proposal is considered to be compliant with MWJP Policy D07 
and Part 3)b) of Core Policy CP4 in respect of biodiversity in that it will not lead to a 
loss of, or adverse impact on, or cause deterioration of important nature conservation 
sites such as the Lovely Seat - Stainton Moor SSSI to the north, or local water bodies 
or biodiversity in the area.  Furthermore, it is also advisable that the attention of the 
applicant is directed to the standing advice provided by Natural England regarding 
protected species within an informative.  Advice provided by the County Council’s 
adviser on ecology has been taken into account in the recommendation within Section 
9.0 of this report and particularly reflected in proposed condition no. 11; thereby 
contributing to the aims of Core Policy CP4 part 3)b) and Core Policy CP12 of the 

Page 31

https://www.richmondshire.gov.uk/media/9616/core-strategy-2012-28.pdf
https://www.richmondshire.gov.uk/media/9616/core-strategy-2012-28.pdf
https://www.richmondshire.gov.uk/media/9616/core-strategy-2012-28.pdf
https://onlineplanningregister.northyorks.gov.uk/Register/DisplayImage.aspx?doc=cmVjb3JkX251bWJlcj0xMDkwNz9maWxlbmFtZT1cXGNvdW50eS5ueWNjLmludGVybmFsXERhdGFcYmVzLWRhdGFcQXBwLU1hc3RlckdvdlxwbGFubmluZ1xOWS0yMDE5LTAxNjgtRlVMXDIgU3VwcG9ydGluZyBEb2N1bWVudHNcUmV2aXNlZCBJbmZvcm1hdGlvbiBEZWMgMjAxOVxBcHBlbmRpeCBEIC0gQ29uc3RydWN0aW9uIEVudmlyb25tZW50YWwgTWFuYWdlbWVudCBQbGFuLnBkZj9pbWFnZV9udW1iZXI9MzAuMDAwMD9pbWFnZV90eXBlPXBsYW5uaW5nP2xhc3RfbW9kaWZpZWRfZnJvbV9kaXNrPTE3LzEyLzIwMTkgMTA6Mjc6NTc=
https://onlineplanningregister.northyorks.gov.uk/Register/DisplayImage.aspx?doc=cmVjb3JkX251bWJlcj0xMDkwNz9maWxlbmFtZT1cXGNvdW50eS5ueWNjLmludGVybmFsXERhdGFcYmVzLWRhdGFcQXBwLU1hc3RlckdvdlxwbGFubmluZ1xOWS0yMDE5LTAxNjgtRlVMXDIgU3VwcG9ydGluZyBEb2N1bWVudHNcUmV2aXNlZCBJbmZvcm1hdGlvbiBEZWMgMjAxOVxBcHBlbmRpeCBEIC0gQ29uc3RydWN0aW9uIEVudmlyb25tZW50YWwgTWFuYWdlbWVudCBQbGFuLnBkZj9pbWFnZV9udW1iZXI9MzAuMDAwMD9pbWFnZV90eXBlPXBsYW5uaW5nP2xhc3RfbW9kaWZpZWRfZnJvbV9kaXNrPTE3LzEyLzIwMTkgMTA6Mjc6NTc=


 

commrep/24 

24 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

Richmondshire Local Plan 2012-2028 Core Strategy consistent with NPPF(2021) 
Paragraph 174 e) and Paragraph 185. 

 
Economic impacts 

7.43 The applicant has explained that the farm has previously adapted to economic change 
through appropriate rural diversification and anticipates the establishment of a ready 
mix concrete plant (along with attendant HGVs) would provide a further sustainable 
activity providing additional local employment opportunities within the Leyburn area, 
support to local businesses and providing the means to be able to contribute to 
economic growth through the provision of RMC to construction projects within the local 
area; consistent with the aims of Core Policy CP3 and CP8 of the Richmondshire 
Local Plan 2012-2028 Core Strategy. 

 
8.0 Conclusion 

8.1 As referred earlier within this report, under the provisions of Section 38(6) of the 
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, the starting position for the 
determination of this planning application must be the ‘Development Plan’. The decision 
must be made in accordance with the extant policies of that Plan, unless there are 
material considerations, including any impacts upon interests of acknowledged 
importance that would indicate that planning permission should not be forthcoming. The 
assessment of material considerations within the overall ‘planning balance’ has been 
conveyed within Section 7.0 above. 

 
8.2 There are a range of policies in the ‘Development Plan’ to which due regard must be 

had, as well as a number of other material considerations. In considering the 
relationship of the proposal to the ‘Development Plan’, Members are advised note that 
proposals should be judged against the ‘Development Plan’, as a whole, rather than 
against individual policies in isolation and to acknowledge that it is not necessary for 
proposals to comply with all policies to be found compliant. Members are also advised 
of the need to bear in mind, as set out in Section 6.0, the relative weight to be attached 
to the policies in the ‘Development Plan’ relevant to this proposal against that which is 
laid down within national planning policy. 

 
8.3 Following the considerations set out in Section 7.0 above, it is considered that the 

proposal complies with the ‘development plan’ in respect of the following:  

1. Minerals and Waste Joint Plan (February 2022) Policies: M01 (Broad geographical 
approach to supply of aggregates); D01 (Presumption in favour of sustainable minerals 
and waste development); D02 (Local amenity and cumulative impacts); D03 (Transport 
of minerals and waste and associated traffic impacts); D06 (Landscape); D07 
(Biodiversity and geodiversity); D09 (Water environment); D11 (Sustainable design, 
construction and operation of development); I02 (Locations for ancillary minerals 
infrastructure); and, 

2. Richmondshire Local Plan 2012-2028 Core Strategy Policies: SP1 regarding reflecting 
the location of Leyburn within Lower Wensleydale and supporting its rural hinterland and 
the needs of the adjacent part of Richmondshire which lies within the Yorkshire Dales 
National Park; SP3 regarding supporting a sustainable rural economy whilst protecting 
and enhancing its environmental assets and character and SP5 regarding small scale 
development to meet local employment needs; CP1 in planning positively for the future, 
CP2 regarding minimise surface water flood risk, CP3 in respect of consideration of 
extraction of the mineral resource prior to development, CP4 in not having an impact on 
important nature conservation sites such as the Lovely Seat - Stainton Moor SSSI to the 
north, or local water bodies or biodiversity in the area, CP7 in respect of being a local 
development for local needs and CP8 regarding expanding rural business and 
diversification of the agricultural economy, CP12 by avoiding a detrimental impact of the 
significance of any natural or man-made assets and CP13 in respect of limiting the impact 
of light pollution. 

 

Page 32

https://www.richmondshire.gov.uk/media/9616/core-strategy-2012-28.pdf
https://www.richmondshire.gov.uk/media/9616/core-strategy-2012-28.pdf
https://www.richmondshire.gov.uk/media/9616/core-strategy-2012-28.pdf
http://pa-mgov/documents/s11258/Appendix%201%20-%20MWJP%20Policy%20document.pdf
https://www.richmondshire.gov.uk/media/9616/core-strategy-2012-28.pdf


 

commrep/25 

25 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

8.4 As described in Section 7.0 above, the proposed development would provide a  facility  
to the Leyburn area and the local economy as a source of material that would facilitate 
the construction of new development growth anticipated in the local area within the 
Richmondshire Local Plan 2012-2028 Core Strategy such as that described within 
Section 7.0 regarding the Lower Wensleydale Spatial Strategy.  There is though a 
planning balance to judge between the development’s contribution to the economy and 
the following impacts.  While the site is located in a rural area and would result in 
additional traffic and noise in the locality, taking account of all the material 
considerations, it is considered that, on balance, the benefits of providing a new ready-
mix concrete facility within Wensleydale outweigh the negative aspects associated with 
the development.  Amenity safeguards can be put in place via planning conditions to 
ensure that the intensity of any impacts, longevity and cumulative impact that the 
development would have on the amenities of local residents in the vicinity of the site, 
regarding hours of operation, noise or dust emission, visual impact and regarding traffic 
are effectively mitigated and controlled.  

 
Obligations under the Equality Act 2010 

8.5 The County Planning Authority in carrying out its duties must have regard to the 
obligations placed upon it under the Equality Act and due regard has, therefore, been 
had to the requirements of Section 149 (Public Sector Equality Duty) to safeguard 
against unlawful discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct 
prohibited by the Act. It also requires public bodies to advance equality of opportunity 
between people who share a protected characteristic and people who do not share it; 
and foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and 
people who do not share it. It is considered that the proposed development would not 
give rise to significant adverse effects upon the communities in the area or 
socioeconomic factors, particularly those with ‘protected characteristics’ by virtue that 
the impacts of the proposal can be mitigated so that they would not have a significant 
impact on groups with ‘protected characteristics’. 

 
Obligations under the Human Rights Act  

8.6 The Human Rights Act requires the County Council to take into account the rights of 
the public under the European Convention on Human Rights and prevents the Council 
from acting in a manner that is incompatible with those rights. Article 8 of the 
Convention provides that there shall be respect for an individual’s private life and home 
save for that interference which is in accordance with the law and necessary in a 
democratic society in the interests of (inter alia) public safety and the economic 
wellbeing of the country. Article 1 of protocol 1 provides that an individual’s peaceful 
enjoyment of their property shall not be interfered with save as is necessary in the public 
interest. Having had due regard to the Human Rights Act, the relevant issues arising 
from the proposed development have been assessed as the potential effects upon 
those living within the vicinity of the site. Namely those affecting the right to the peaceful 
enjoyment of one’s property and the right to respect for private and family life and 
homes, and considering the interference with those rights, it is, on balance, in 
accordance with the law, necessary and in the public interest. 

 

9.0 Recommendation 

9.1 For the following reason(s): 
i) the proposal complies with Minerals and Waste Joint Plan Policies: M01 (Broad 

geographical approach to supply of aggregates); D01 (Presumption in favour of 
sustainable minerals and waste development); D02 (Local amenity and cumulative 
impacts); D03 (Transport of minerals and waste and associated traffic impacts); D06 
(Landscape); D07 (Biodiversity and geodiversity); D09 (Water environment); D11 
(Sustainable design, construction and operation of development); I02 (Locations for 
ancillary minerals infrastructure and Richmondshire Local Plan 2012-2028 Core 
Strategy Spatial Policies: SP1, SP3 and SP5 and the Lower Wensleydale Spatial 
Strategy and Core Policies: CP1, CP2, CP3 (part 1), CP4 (part 3), CP7, CP8 (part 3), 

Page 33

http://pa-mgov/documents/s11258/Appendix%201%20-%20MWJP%20Policy%20document.pdf
https://www.richmondshire.gov.uk/media/9616/core-strategy-2012-28.pdf
https://www.richmondshire.gov.uk/media/9616/core-strategy-2012-28.pdf


 

commrep/26 

26 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

CP12 and CP13 as well as consistent with those paragraphs of the NPPF(2021) 
identified above. 

ii) the proposal does not conflict with the abovementioned policies as it is considered that 
the highway network is capable of handling the volume of traffic anticipated to be 
generated by the development; the visual impact of the proposed development can be 
mitigated through the design of the proposal and conditions; the environmental impacts 
of the proposed development can by the measures in mitigation and the impact on any 
neighbouring residential properties can be similarly mitigated. Any adverse impacts are 
outweighed when considered against the provision of an additional facility for the 
production of ready-mix concrete within Wensleydale and there are no other material 
considerations indicating a refusal in the public interest; and, 

iii) the imposition of planning conditions will further limit the impact of the development on 
the environment, residential amenity and the transport network 

that, PLANNING PERMISSION BE GRANTED subject to the following conditions: 
 
Conditions:  
1. The development to which this permission relates must be implemented no later than 

the expiration of three years from the date of this Decision Notice. 
Reason: To comply with Section 91 of Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as 
amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 

 
2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 

application details dated 13 December 2019, and the following approved documents 
and drawings and the following conditions which at all times shall take precedence:  
Ref.  Date Title 

- December 2019 Supporting Statement 

WF/NY/19/101 Rev A 06/12/2019 Location Plan 

WF/NY/19/102 Rev A 06/12/2019 Site Layout Plan 

WF/NY/19/103 Rev A 11/12/2019 Block Plan 

WF/NY/19/104 Rev A 18/12/2019 Cross Sections and Elevations 

WF/NY/19/105 Rev A 06/12/2019 Incidental Mineral Extraction Area 

WF/NY/19/106 06/12/2019 Site Context Plan 

Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the 
application details. 

 
3. There shall be no access or egress between the highway and the application site by any 

vehicles in connection with this development other than via the access shown on 
Drawing No. WF/NY/19/101 Rev A and the development shall not commence until that 
access is completed and confirmed to have been completed in strict accordance with 
the specification. 
Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the 
application details. 

 
4. The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the 

December 2019 Supporting Statement Appendix D - Construction Environmental 
Management Plan, with the exception that during site operations the daily Monitoring 
Records shall be held for six months and made available to the County Planning 
Authority upon request within two working days.  
Reason: To protect the amenity of the area, the environment and local residents from 
dust pollution. 

Page 34



 

commrep/27 

27 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

 
5. There shall be no operation of plant hereby approved except between the following 

times: 
07:00-18:00 on Mondays – Fridays and 
07:00-13:00 on Saturdays 

      and at no times on Sundays or Bank or Public Holidays. 
Reason: To protect the amenity of the area, the environment and local residents. 
 

6. Soil Stripping, overburden removal and mineral extraction shall occur only between: 
07:00-18:00 Monday to Friday, and 
08:00-15:00 on Saturdays. 

Reason: To protect the amenity of the area, the environment and local residents. 
 

7. No blasting shall be carried out on any part of the site except between the hours of 10:00 
and 16:00 hours Monday to Friday inclusive and no blasting shall be carried out at any 
time on Saturdays, Sundays, Bank and Public Holidays. 
Reason: To protect the amenity of the area, the environment and local residents. 

 
8. The County Planning Authority shall be notified at least 48 hours before blasting takes 

place of proposed timings for blasting in connection with this development. 
Reason: In the interests of amenity. 

 
9. No rock or aggregate shall be excavated outside of the Incidental Mineral Extraction 

Area as shown on Drawing WF/NY/19/105 Rev A dated 6 December 2019 and no 
excavation shall take place below 260 metres Above Ordnance Datum as shown on 
Drawing WF/NY/19/104 Rev A dated 11 December 2019. 
Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the 
application details. 

 
10. No imported material, other than those in connection with the ready-mixed concrete 

plant, shall be stockpiled, processed or used for any other purpose within, or imported 
to the application site.   
Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the 
application details. 

 
11. The screening mound shall be formed within six months of the date of this permission 

in accordance with Drawing WF/NY/19/102 Rev A dated 6 December 2019 and sown 
as a calcareous grassland in accordance with the details set out in the Agent’s email 
dated 24 January 2020 using seed of northern provenance.  Thereafter, the mound shall 
be retained as built, and the sward managed so as to maintain the calcareous grassland 
interest.  During the establishment period of the planting, arisings from the mowing of 
the developing sward should always be removed rather than spread over the plot. 
Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the 
application details, as amended, in the interests of amenity. 

 
12. All vehicles, plant and machinery shall be well maintained and fitted with effective noise 

attenuating equipment of a type appropriate to their specification and at all times 
measures shall be employed to prevent or counteract the effects of noise emitted by 
vehicles, plant and machinery. 
Reason: To protect the amenity of the area, the environment and local residents. 
 

13. Within one month of the date of this permission, full details of all external lighting at the 
site, including lighting for site security purposes, shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the County Planning Authority. All lighting shall be installed thereafter as 
approved so as not to shine directly towards any dwelling and shall be maintained in 
accordance with the approved details and shall not be used beyond half an hour outside 
of any agreed operational hours. 

Page 35



 

commrep/28 

28 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

Reason: To protect the amenity of the area, the environment and local residents from 
light pollution. 

 
14. A copy of the planning permission, together with all the approved documents, and any 

agreed variations together with all the approved plans shall be kept available at the site 
office at all times. 
Reason: To ensure all employees are aware of the conditions of the planning permission. 

 
Informatives 
 Permitted Process: Activities of this type (concrete batching plants) are regulated as permitted 

activities under the Environmental Permitting (England and Wales) Regulations 2016 by 
Richmondshire District Council. 

 Natural England Standing advice regarding protected species is obtainable by copying the 
following link into a search engine:  www.gov.uk/guidance/protected-species-how-to-review-
planning-applications#standing-advice-for-protected-species  

 

 
Statement of Compliance with Article 35(2) of the Town and Country Planning 

(Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 
In determining this planning application, the County Planning Authority has worked with the applicant 
adopting a positive and proactive manner. The County Council offers the opportunity for pre-application 
discussion on applications and the applicant, in this case, chose to take up this service.  Proposals are 
assessed against the National Planning Policy Framework, Replacement Local Plan policies and 
Supplementary Planning Documents, which have been subject to proactive publicity and consultation 
prior to their adoption. During the course of the determination of this application, the applicant has been 
informed of the existence of all consultation responses and representations made in a timely manner 
which provided the applicant/agent with the opportunity to respond to any matters raised. The County 
Planning Authority has sought solutions to problems arising by liaising with consultees, considering 
other representations received and liaising with the applicant as necessary.  Where appropriate, 
changes to the proposal were sought when the statutory determination timescale allowed. 

 
K BATTERSBY 
Corporate Director, Business and Environmental Services 
Growth, Planning and Trading Standards 

 
Background Documents to this Report: 

1. Planning Application Ref Number: C1/19/00899/CM (NY/2019/0168/FUL) registered as valid on 18 
December 2019.  Application documents can be found on the County Council's Online Planning 
Register Displaying Planning record: NY/2019/0168/FUL (northyorks.gov.uk) 

2. Consultation responses received. 

3. Representations received. 

 
Author of report: Vicky Perkin 

Page 36

http://www.gov.uk/guidance/protected-species-how-to-review-planning-applications#standing-advice-for-protected-species
http://www.gov.uk/guidance/protected-species-how-to-review-planning-applications#standing-advice-for-protected-species
https://onlineplanningregister.northyorks.gov.uk/Register/PlanAppDisp.aspx?recno=10907


 

 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

PLAN 1 
Application Site 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

M
o
o
r 

F
a

rm
 

P
age 37



 

commrep/30 

30 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

PLAN 2 
Aerial Photo 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 38



 

 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

 
PLAN 3 

Site 
Context 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Land with extant planning 
permission for minerals extraction 
under Planning Permissiop 
C1/78/412/MR. 

Page 39



 

commrep/32 

32 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

PLAN 3a 

 

Page 40



 

 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

PLAN 4 
Key 

Constraints 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 41



 

commrep/34 

34 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

PLAN 5 
Site 

Layout 
Plan 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

P
age 42



 

commrep/35 

35 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

PLAN 6 
Cross-

sections 
& 

elevations 
 
 
 
 
  

P
age 43



 

commrep/36 

36 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

PLAN 7 
Incidental 

Mineral 
Extraction 

Area 
 
 
 
  

P
age 44



 

commrep/37 

37 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

PLAN 8 

P
age 45



 

 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

APPENDIX A 
NPPF(2021) references: 
 
Paragraph 11 
For decision-taking this means: 
c) approving development proposals that accord with an up-to-date development plan without delay; or 
d) where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies which are most important for determining the 
application are out-of-date, granting permission unless: 

i. the application of policies in this Framework that protect areas or assets of particular importance provides a clear 
reason for refusing the development proposed; or 
ii. any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when assessed 
against the policies in this Framework taken as a whole. 

 
Paragraph 48 
Local planning authorities may give weight to relevant policies in  plans according to: 
a) the stage of preparation of the  plan (the more advanced its preparation, the greater the weight that may be given); 
b) the extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the less significant the unresolved 
objections, the greater the weight that may be given); and 
c) the degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the  plan to this Framework (the closer the policies in the  plan 
to the policies in the Framework, the greater the weight that may be given). 

 
Paragraph 104 
Transport issues should be considered from the earliest stages of plan-making and development proposals, so that: 
a) the potential impacts of development on transport networks can be addressed; 
b) opportunities from existing or proposed transport infrastructure, and changing transport technology and usage, are 
realised – for example in relation to the scale, location or density of development that can be accommodated; 
c) opportunities to promote walking, cycling and public transport use are identified and pursued; 
d) the environmental impacts of traffic and transport infrastructure can be identified, assessed and taken into account 
– including appropriate opportunities for avoiding and mitigating any adverse effects, and for net environmental gains; 
and 
e) patterns of movement, streets, parking and other transport considerations are integral to the design of schemes, 
and contribute to making high quality places. 

 
Paragraph 111  
Development should only be prevented or refused on highways grounds if there would be an unacceptable impact on 
highway safety, or the residual cumulative impacts on the road network would be severe. 

 
Paragraph 130 
Planning policies and decisions should ensure that developments: 
a) will function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not just for the short term but over the lifetime of the 
development; 
b) are visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate and effective landscaping; 
c) are sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding built environment and landscape setting, 
while not preventing or discouraging appropriate innovation or change (such as increased densities); 
d) establish or maintain a strong sense of place, using the arrangement of streets, spaces, building types and 
materials to create attractive, welcoming and distinctive places to live, work and visit; 
e) optimise the potential of the site to accommodate and sustain an appropriate amount and mix of development 
(including green and other public space) and support local facilities and transport networks; and 
f) create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health and well-being, with a high standard 
of amenity for existing and future users; and where crime and disorder, and the fear of crime, do not undermine the 
quality of life or community cohesion and resilience. 

 
Paragraph 154 
New development should be planned for in ways that:  
a) avoid increased vulnerability to the range of impacts arising from climate change. When new development is 
brought forward in areas which are vulnerable, care should be taken to ensure that risks can be managed through 
suitable adaptation measures, including through the planning of green infrastructure; and  
b) can help to reduce greenhouse gas emissions, such as through its location, orientation and design… 

 
Paragraph 174 
Planning policies and decisions should contribute to and enhance the natural and local environment by: 
a) …; 

Page 46



 

commrep/39 

39 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

b) recognising the intrinsic character and beauty of the countryside, and the wider benefits from natural capital and 
ecosystem services – including the economic and other benefits of the best and most versatile agricultural land, and of 
trees and woodland; 
c) ..; 
d) minimising impacts on and providing net gains for biodiversity, including by establishing coherent ecological 
networks that are more resilient to current and future pressures; 
e) preventing new and existing development from contributing to, being put at unacceptable risk from, or being 
adversely affected by, unacceptable levels of soil, air, water or noise pollution or land instability. Development should, 
wherever possible, help to improve local environmental conditions such as air and water quality, taking into account 
relevant information such as river basin management plans; and 
f) …. 

 
Paragraph 185 
Planning ... decisions should … ensure that new development is appropriate for its location taking into account the likely 
effects (including cumulative effects) of pollution on health, living conditions and the natural environment, as well as the 
potential sensitivity of the site or the wider area to impacts that could arise from the development. In doing so they 
should:  
a) mitigate and reduce to a minimum potential adverse impacts resulting from noise from new development – and avoid 

noise giving rise to significant adverse impacts on health and the quality of life;  

b) …; and  

c) limit the impact of light pollution from artificial light on local amenity, intrinsically dark landscapes and nature 

conservation.  
 
Paragraph 209 
It is essential that there is a sufficient supply of minerals to provide the infrastructure, buildings, energy and goods that 
the country needs. Since minerals are a finite natural resource, and can only be worked where they are found, best 
use needs to be made of them to secure their long-term conservation. 

 
Paragraph 211 
When determining planning applications, great weight should be given to the benefits of mineral extraction, including 
to the economy. In considering proposals for mineral extraction, minerals planning authorities should: 
a) as far as is practical, provide for the maintenance of landbanks of non-energy minerals from outside National Parks, 
the Broads, Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty and World Heritage Sites, scheduled monuments and conservation 
areas; 
b) ensure that there are no unacceptable adverse impacts on the natural and historic environment, human health or 
aviation safety, and take into account the cumulative effect of multiple impacts from individual sites and/or from a 
number of sites in a locality; 
c) ensure that any unavoidable noise, dust and particle emissions and any blasting vibrations are controlled, mitigated 
or removed at source, and establish appropriate noise limits for extraction in proximity to noise sensitive properties; 
d) …; 
e) provide for restoration and aftercare at the earliest opportunity, to be carried out to high environmental standards, 
through the application of appropriate conditions. Bonds or other financial guarantees to underpin planning conditions 
should only be sought in exceptional circumstances; 
f) …; and 
g) …. 
 
END 

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

North Yorkshire County Council 

 
Business and Environmental Services 

 
Planning and Regulatory Functions Committee 

 
8TH MARCH 2022 

 
C1/18/00013/CM - PLANNING APPLICATION FOR THE PURPOSES OF THE VARIATION 

OF CONDITION NO'S 2, 5 & 8 OF PLANNING PERMISSION REF. C1/15/250/PA/F 
DATED 7TH NOVEMBER 1994 TO FACILITATE AN EXTENSION TO THE PERMITTED 
AREA OF EXTRACTION, AN AMENDMENT TO THE RESTORATION DESIGN AND TO 

ALTER THE PERIOD FOR COMPLETION OF ALL MINERAL OPERATIONS FROM 31ST 
DECEMBER 2017 TO 31ST DECEMBER 2024 AND THE RESTORATION OF THE SITE 

FROM 31ST DECEMBER 2018 TO 31ST DECEMBER 2025 ON LAND AT PALLETT HILL 
QUARRY, CATTERICK VILLAGE, NORTH YORKSHIRE, DL10 7JX 

ON BEHALF OF CEMEX UK OPERATIONS 
(RICHMONDSHIRE DISTRICT) (CATTERICK BRIDGE ELECTORAL DIVISION) 

 
Report of the Corporate Director – Business and Environmental Services 

 

1.0       Purpose of the report 

1.1      To determine a planning application for the variation of condition no's 2, 5 & 8 of 
Planning Permission Ref. C1/15/250/PA/F dated 7th November 1994 to facilitate an 
extension to the permitted area of extraction, an amendment to the restoration 
design and to alter the period for completion of all mineral operations from 31st 
December 2017 to 31st December 2024 and the restoration of the site from 31st 
December 2018 to 31st December 2025 on land at Pallett Hill Quarry, Catterick 
Village, North Yorkshire, DL10 7JX on behalf of Breedon Trading. 

1.2      This application is subject to an objection having been raised by a local resident in 
respect of this proposal on the grounds of noise and is, therefore, reported to this 
Committee for determination. 

 
2.0 Background 
 
2.1 Pallet Hill Quarry is located 200 metres towards the north-west of Catterick village, 

where the nearest residential properties are located on the southern boundary of the 
plant site and on the northern boundary of the plant site is Catterick Racecourse. The 
total site area amounts to 61.85ha of which the plant site occupies 9.2ha and the 
extraction area 52.65ha. The proposed extension area is approximately 2ha. The 
plant site and extraction areas are divided by the A6136 as shown on the Committee 
Plan which is Appendix A attached to this report. The red line boundary of the site 
would not be extended by this application and would stay the same as previously 
approved, the further area of extraction would be within the bridge farm extension 
area north of the A6136 and this is shown on Appendix C attached to this report 
which is the bridge farm site area. 

 
2.2 The site is used for the extraction of sand and gravel and is split over two sides of the 

A6136 (Leeming Lane) road. On the southern side of the site there is the plant area 
and associated development in relation to this, including a wheel wash facility. This 
side of the site also has a concrete and bagging plant which is currently not 
operational. North of the road located 350 metres north-west of the entrance to 
southern entrance to Pallet Hill Quarry, on the adjacent side of Leeming Lane, is the 

Page 49

Agenda Item 6



 

commrep/2 

2 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

entrance to Bridge Farm, where the larger area of the site is located, along with the 
new area for extraction. 

 
2.3 The extraction area on the north side is bounded to the north by the River Swale 

whilst the eastern boundary is formed by mature woodland planting, restored gravel 
workings and the River Swale, as shown on the Location Plan (Appendix B) attached 
to this report. The southern boundary is formed by a mature woodland screening belt, 
arable land and the suburban edge of Catterick. The west of the site is bounded by a 
mature woodland screening belt and the A6136. Appendix C shows the Bridge Farm 
extraction area with the restored pond area in the south and small further pond to the 
north.  

 
2.4 The plant site is bounded by the Catterick racecourse to the north, the A6136 to the 

east, and mature woodland screen planting and residential housing to the south. To 
the west lies former mineral workings, now restored to grassland, agriculture and 
woodland. Further west lies the A1 motorway. North of the application site there is a 
waste operation including the operation a mobile crusher and mobile screen for the 
purpose of recycling and reclamation of land through landfill by disposal of 
construction, demolition and excavation waste, this partly screens the application site 
from the racecourse to the north. 
 

2.5 Planning Permission was refused by the County Council in November 1993. However 
this was appealed by the applicant and upheld in November 1994. The development 
allowed the extraction of 4.9 million tonnes of sand and gravel at Bridge Farm until 
December 2017, with the restoration of the site to a lake and agriculture, and the 
retention of the existing plant and machinery at Pallett Hill Quarry. 

 
Constraints 

2.6 The relevant planning constraints to this application are that it is within the SSSI 
impact zone for the Swale Lakes. There are also multiple sites of nature conservation 
interest in the area which are of local to district level importance which include Bolton 
on Swale Lake SNCI, Catterick Gravel Pits (Complex) SNCI, How Hill Riverside 
SNCI, Pallet Hill SNCI and Scorton Quarry SNCI. The site is inside the Bedale and 
Upper Swale Internal Drainage Board Area and within the Environment Agency’s 
Flood Zones 2 and 3 as is within the River Swale flood plain. The land within the 
application site is identified as agricultural land classification 3b and there is no 3a 
best and most versatile land.  

 
 Planning History 
2.7 The planning history relating to the proposed development site relevant to the 

determination of this application is as follows: -  

 Planning permission was refused in November 1993 for the extraction of sand 
and gravel with restoration to a lake and agriculture and retention of the existing 
processing plant at Bridge Farm, Catterick (ref. C1/15/250/PA/F). The Applicant 
appealed this decision Ref. APP/D2700/A/93/231272) and in November 1994 the 
appeal was allowed. 

 C1/15/227B/PA/F, dated 2 October 1998, amended quarry access location and 
ghost island, Racecourse Road, Catterick. Granted and implemented. 

 C1/13/00295/CM, dated 11 February 2015, Use of land for the siting and 
operation of a mobile crusher and mobile screen for the purpose of recycling and 
reclamation of land through landfill by disposal of construction, demolition and 
excavation waste. Granted and implemented, however not currently in use. 

 NY/2016/0141/SCR, dated 19 September 2016, Request for a formal Screening 
Opinion for extension of sand and gravel extraction operations which was issued 
stating an Environmental Statement was required with the proposed further 
application. No scoping opinion was submitted before this proposal was received 
by the County Planning Authority. Page 50



 

commrep/3 

3 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

 
2.8 A plan showing the application site is attached to this report and the details relating to 

this application can be viewed online. 
 
3.0 The Proposal 
 
3.1 Planning permission is sought for the variation of condition no's 2, 5 & 8 of Planning 

Permission Ref. C1/15/250/PA/F dated 7th November 1994 to facilitate an extension 
to the permitted area of extraction, an amendment to the restoration design and to 
alter the period for completion of all mineral operations from 31st December 2017 to 
31st December 2024 and the restoration of the site from 31st December 2018 to 31st  
December 2025 on land at Pallett Hill Quarry, Catterick Village, North Yorkshire on 
behalf of the Breeden Trading LTD.  

 
Mineral Reserves 

3.2 At the time of the submission of the planning application the remaining sand and 
gravel reserves within the quarry were calculated at approximately 0.475 million 
tonnes. The sand and gravel extracted from Pallet Hill Quarry is sold either directly 
from the stockpiles or from the bagging plant that operates next to the processing 
site. The applicant states that the permitted reserves were not fully extracted before 
the expiry of the permission because forecasted output from the quarry when the 
planning permission was originally granted exceeded actual output, primarily because 
of the drop in demand for quarry products during the recession. The new area of 
extraction is being applied for due to the location now being known to not have any 
archaeological interests. This is a change from the time when the application was 
originally determined. 

 
Duration and Annual Output 

3.3 The proposed development involves extending the life of the quarry to 31 December 
2024 to allow the remaining mineral reserve and is giving an extra seven years to 
complete the extraction of existing permitted reserves on the site and the small further 
area of extra extraction. The agent has reiterated that the existing permitted reserves 
have now been extracted and this further area is now required to be extracted for 
extraction to continue on the site with mineral extraction until 31 December 2024. 

 
Mineral Extraction and Phasing 

3.4 Mineral extraction would continue to be completed in the same method as currently 
approved, with aggregate extracted and crushed in the north of the site and then 
transported underneath Leeming Lane via underground conveyor to the main 
processing plant. In the extraction areas there would be two excavators to extract the 
mineral and a single dump truck with approximately 35 loads a day transporting it to 
the primary crusher in the northern extension area. After this mineral has been 
transported underground it would be further crushed and screened before being 
stockpiled. 
 

3.5 The application includes a small 3.35 hectare area of new extraction and would 
involve a release of a further 371,000 tonnes of mineral, as shown on Appendix D 
attached to this report. The additional area of extraction sits within the previous red 
line of the application site. Due to the further extraction there would be a loss of 
hedgerow planted in the 1990’s within the site however there would be no other loss 
of vegetation, the loss of this hedgerow is mitigated with the restoration scheme for 
the site being updated to extend the lake and increase biodiversity in this area 
previously left as an agricultural field. 

 
3.6 Before working ceases in the existing working area, advanced planting hedgerows 

and lake vegetation already in existence would be removed and a 10m metre gap 
would then be punched through the appropriate bund so heavy plant can reach the 

Page 51

https://onlineplanningregister.northyorks.gov.uk/Register/PlanAppDisp.aspx?recno=10466


 

commrep/4 

4 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

upper area of the new extraction field. An excavator would strip the bund material 
east of the new extraction site next to the haul road and place this material north of 
the proposed extraction site. A pump is proposed to be placed in the corner of the 
field with further extraction to facilitate de-watering if required. Thereafter, the mineral 
would be worked via an excavator and loaded into dump trucks and taken to the 
existing primary crusher. Once a large enough area is opened up the remaining 
phases would be stripped and soils placed in their final resting place to ensure double 
handling is minimised, this would include the replacement of bunds on the haul road 
and on the western flank of the extraction site. Once the three main phases of 
extraction are complete the area east of the extraction will be taken out to then 
integrate the new extraction area with the existing lake, creating a final restoration 
profile and one landform, as shown on Appendix E as shown at the end of this report. 

 
3.7 Furthermore, there is no land-filling proposed on the site. In addition, the output 

levels, working hours, site access and general infrastructure would remain 
unchanged. The application seeks to amend the date when quarrying is to cease and 
make minor amendments to the phasing, method and restoration. 

 
Environmental Statement 

3.8 The application is accompanied by an Environmental Statement that reports on the 
results of the EIA and assesses the significance of any potential impact of the 
proposed development in relation to the following: Flood Risk, Landscape and Visual 
Impact, Transport Assessment, Noise, Air Quality, Soils and Agriculture, Soils and 
Agriculture, Cultural Heritage and Ecology.  

 
ES Chapter 6 Flood Risk 

3.9 The application site lies within Flood Zones 2 and 3. The proposals and restoration 
would result in lower ground levels across the extraction area, with the land sloping 
towards the water body. The application does not propose any permanent land 
raising and all temporary soil bunds would be removed. There are also no proposals 
to increase impermeable surfaces within the site or to change the existing haul road. 
The application states no further flood prevention measures are proposed.  

 
ES Chapter 7 Landscape and Visual Impact 

3.10 The site is 61.85 hectares with 9.2 hectares for the plant site, 52.65 for the current 
extraction area and approximately 2 hectares for the proposed extension. The land 
within the red line area has two land uses arable farming and the existing quarry site. 
The site is within the River Swale floodplain with levels ranging from 48AOD and 
60AOD, with the land gently rising towards the A1, where it rises to 70-100AOD. The 
site and area is well vegetated particularly to the east with primarily woodland planting 
associated with former and current minerals workings. This greatly reduces the 
visibility of quarrying operations. Arable fields are contained by hedgerows. The plant 
site is well screened from mature woodland to the south.  

 
3.11 The closest residential receptors are located approximately 100 metres from the 

processing plant, ready mix concrete plant and site access are Bishops Close and St 
Paulinus Crescent. The closest to the minerals extraction area are 175 metres south 
of the boundary to the permitted working area on Willow View and 280 metres to the 
south east of the proposed extraction area. Field House is located to the north west of 
the mineral extraction area approximately 340 metres to the North West of the 
proposed extraction area. Grandstand cottage and properties off Willow View are not 
considered to have any adverse visual effects due to intervening vegetation. Field 
House may experience slight adverse effects which are temporary and short in 
duration with the movement along the boundary of the extension area, which would 
change to slight beneficial on restoration. Properties on St Paulinus Crescent and 
Bishops Close are located to the immediate south of the plant site and views in the 
winter months could potential be available of vehicle movements. The properties 

Page 52



 

commrep/5 

5 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

would experience slight adverse effects during winter and in summer months mature 
woodland provides an effective screen with no views available. After restoration it is 
considered views are slight beneficial. It is considered that the previous mitigation 
measure including screen planting around the extraction area and south of the plant 
site have been successful in preventing views of the site, due to the short duration of 
the proposed time extension no further mitigation is proposed. 

 
3.12 The Swale Lakes SSSI is 500 metres to the east of the site and comprises a shallow 

lake of 11 hectares, feeder streams and a pond 0.7 hectares. The ES states the local 
landscape is confined by the linear features of the A1, A6136 and the River Swale, 
with the river banks well vegetated with mature woodland blocks and screen planting. 
To the north, east and west are former minerals workings which are also screened 
due to vegetation. The ES states overall the landscape within the site is considered 
low sensitivity but due to the presence of cultural and historic features, such as the 
racecourse, a Grade 1 church and Grade II* historic bridge and Grade II buildings and 
structures nearby is it medium sensitivity.  

 
3.13 Table 7.6 Predicted Landscape Effects and Significance is split into receptors which 

would change through the application these are: 

 Changes to Landform – during operations in the temporary and short/medium 

term there would be a reduction in elevation through mineral extraction and 

temporary soil stores which are considered to be of low adverse effect and slight 

adverse effect in terms of significance. In regards to the permanent restoration to 

open water and species rich grassland at a lower level elevation, with land to the 

north restored to similar ground levels to pre-extraction, with the removal of the 

internal bund. In regards to the magnitude of effect it would have a low beneficial 

effect and the significance of this would be slight beneficial. 

 Changes to the type and extent of vegetation cover – during operation no 

perimeter trees or hedgerows would be removed and a further hedgerow would 

be planted in the place of the bund, with negligible adverse effects and the effect 

would not be significant. In regards to restoration it would include a permanent 

increase in tree cover with proposed native woodland and hedgerow planting, with 

a slight beneficial effect. 

 Changes to other notable landscape features – during operation would not affect 

any notable landscape features with no change in regards to magnitude or 

significance of effect. The restoration of the site would include the permanent 

removal of the industrial processes on the site, with low beneficial magnitude of 

effect and slight beneficial effects. 

 Changes in land use – The extension would be contained within the existing site 

boundary and would extend the wetland and grassland areas. On the final 

restoration of the extraction and plant site there would be a change from semi 

industrial to nature conservation, agriculture and amenity/public access. With for 

both magnitude of effects being medium beneficial and the significance of the 

effect being moderately beneficial.  

 Effect on public rights of way and access – during operation the development 

would not impact public rights of way, the quarry entrance would be converted into 

a field entrance to use the nature conservation. Public access to the restored site 

is proposed. With medium beneficial effects. 

 Cultural associations – No direct impact on the Cataractonium scheduled 

monument adjacent to the plant site, listed buildings and structures in proximity to 

the site would be screened by buildings and vegetation. The restoration and 

Page 53



 

commrep/6 

6 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

permanent removal of the plant site would improve the area. This would have a 

low beneficial magnitude and slight beneficial effects. 

 Changes to the pattern, scale of the landscape – temporary medium-term 

changes to the pattern and scale of the agricultural landscape to one of minerals 

extraction and progressive restoration earthworks.  The proposal would expand 

the mosaic of agriculture, open water and species rich neutral grassland, which 

would have negligible adverse impact with no significant effects. 

 Changes to the overall character and qualities of the landscape – The character of 

the area is currently effected by the plant site infrastructure as an industrial 

feature detracting from the rural qualities of landscape, with a low adverse 

magnitude. With it being considered there not being a significant effect. In regards 

to the restoration there would be a permanent localised effect on the 

characteristics of the existing landscape character, with medium beneficial effects 

and moderately significant effects.  

3.14 Overall the assessment of the magnitude of effects in regards to the establishment 
and operation is a low magnitude of effect and slight adverse significance of effects. 
In regards to the landscape effects of the restoration the magnitude of effects would 
be medium beneficial and the significance of effects moderately beneficial.  

 
ES Chapter 8 Transport Assessment 

3.15 The application confirms that there would be no changes to the volume, method and 
direction of traffic flows. The level of activity would typically generate 76 HGV vehicle 
movements during each weekday using the entrance to access Leeming Lane. The 
highways access arrangements and local highways network are suitable to 
accommodate the continued minerals extraction operation. The majority of HGV 
movements would before the A1(M) improvement works were via Leeming Lane, 
A6136 and travel north through Catterick bridge and join the A1(M) to the north of this 
area. The A1(M) improvement works are now complete and allows a more direct 
route to the A1(M) avoiding Catterick Bridge north and instead follows a shorter route 
south through south of the site through Catterick Village and along the A6316 to the 
new A1(M) junction. The proposal involves the continued use of the internal conveyor 
under the road which links the extraction site and plant site area. The existing hours 
of use are to be retained which stated in paragraph 3.17. The proposal includes other 
traffic management methods including sheeting of vehicles, damping of internal 
access roads to avoid dust, maintenance of surfaces and segregation of cars and 
HGV’s.  

 
ES Chapter 9 Noise 

3.16 The four assessment locations at the site a 1 Willow View which is south of the 
extraction site, 2 St Paulinus Crescent south of the plant site, 3 Field House north 
west of the extraction site and 4 Bishops Close to the south of the plant site. The plan 
showing the locations of the noise assessments is Figure 9.1 of the ES in the Noise 
Appendices of the Environmental Statement.  The predicted noise levels in the four 
locations would be 50, 52 and 47 and 54 which the ES states is considerably below 
the PPG Max limit of 70 LAeq,1h dB. In regards to extraction processing and 
restoration. There is a previous condition 22 limiting noise to 55 dB LAeq,1h at noise 
sensitive premises in the vicinity of the site. The predicted worst case noise levels for 
the site are 46, 46, 43 and 52, which the ES states do not exceed the background by 
more than 10dB(A) and are within the maximum limit. Further to this condition 23 
requires fixed plant to not exceed 54 dB LAeq,1h  and the noise assessment states the 
worst case fixed plant noise levels are 36, 42, 28 and 49, which the ES states 
demonstrates that these levels are within the maximum limit. To mitigate and control 
noise measures are recommended within the ES which include ensuring machinery is 
well maintained, avoid unnecessary horn usage, keep internal haul roads well 

Page 54



 

commrep/7 

7 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

maintained, adhere to hours of operation, operations undertaken close to dwelling 
should be completed for short durations and starting plant and vehicles sequentially 
rather than all together. Further to this there would be a requirement for audible 
reversing warning systems on mobile plant and vehicles to be of a type to give 
minimum impact on persons. 
 

3.17 The application proposes no changes to the hours of working that are permitted under 
the current permission ref 1/15/250/PA/F which are set out in condition 17 within the 
permission as follows: - 
“No operations are hereby permitted, including the movement of plant and heavy 
goods vehicles, shall take place except between the hours of: -    

      07.00 to 18.00 Monday to Friday 
07.00 to 13.00 Saturdays and 
13.00 to 18.00 Saturdays (plant maintenance operations only) 
No operations shall take place on Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.” 

 
ES Chapter 10 Air Quality 

3.18 The ES states the minerals extraction processes would not be amended and HGV 
movements would not increase through this application. The operations have the 
potential to generate dust emissions, the first element of these is in regards to soil 
stripping and top soil bund formation, it states these bunds should be seeded as soon 
as is practicable in order to prevent wind blow from this source. The soil stripping 
impact would be minimised by limiting drop heights when handling overburden to 
prevent dust generation, further to this a site speed limit of 15 mph would be 
implemented in the working area to minimise dust generation. In regards to minerals 
extraction and transportation the drop height from the excavator bucket to the dump 
truck would be minimised, material would be evenly loaded onto the dump truck, a 
speed limit of 15mph is implemented and a compacted grade haul route is also used, 
along with a water bowser to minimise dust. Mobile plant equipment is maintained 
regularly to minimise dust. In regards to the restoration of the site the previously 
stated measures all also relevant also with the restoration being completed 
progressively so as to reduce wind blow, with areas seeded as soon as practicable. In 
regards to the plant site the crushers and screens use water throughout the process 
to minimise dust and when the finished processed mineral is shielded from the 
prevailing wind. All HGV’s leaving the site with aggregate are required to be sheeted 
and to pass through the wheel wash and a well maintained entrance also helps 
reduce dust, with a road sweeper to be deployed when necessary. 

 
3.19 In regards to residential amenity the ES states Bishops Way and St Paulinus 

Crescent includes the closest properties to the processing plant, these properties are 
shielded from the site due to a belt of trees, winds from the north, north-east and 
north west would blow dust towards these properties. Willow View properties are the 
closest to the minerals extraction site with a separation distance of 175 to the site 
boundary and 280 metres at the proposed further minerals extraction area. Field 
House is 140 metres south west of current operational site area and 340 metres from 
the nearest extraction area. Bishops Way and St Paulinus Crescent are considered to 
have a Slight Adverse Effect through dust and Willow View and Field House are 
considered to have a Negligible Effect from dust. With the mitigation measure put in 
place the ES states the proposed development would ensure dust is minimised. In 
regards to the Swale Lakes SSSI 480 metres to the south east of the permitted 
development the ES considers the separation distances is over 250 metres which 
IAQM consider adverse dust effects uncommon, dust suppression techniques would 
also mitigate any impact on the SSSI.  

 
3.20 The ES concludes that it is unlikely that any significant decrease in local air quality 

would occur due to the continued working of the site and proposed extension, with 

Page 55



 

commrep/8 

8 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

any dust occurrence being limited and short in duration. While also being minimised 
by the implementation of dust control measures.  

 
ES Chapter 11 Soils and Agriculture  

3.21 The soils resources chapter states that an agricultural land classification survey of the 
site was undertaken in 1993 and it is considered after consultation with the Land 
Drainage Consultancy as to whether there have been any changes to the baseline 
since 1993. The 1993 survey established that the soils across the site were light 
textured and stony being typical of the Wick 1 soil association and occupied of 
moderate agricultural quality, or ALC subgrade 3b. A soil survey has been completed 
to validate the findings from the 1993 survey and confirmed that 100% of the land 2.1 
hectare extension to the site is subgrade 3b. The site would not impact on any best 
and most versatile land (BMV) as ALC classified and it is considered the sensitively of 
the site is low.  

 
3.22 The potential impacts of the proposal is the loss of soils and a deterioration in soil 

physical, chemical or biological quality that might affect the re-use of soil when 
restoring the site. The proposal would include a permanent loss of 0.54 hectares of 
soils from agricultural production to accommodate the new lake and margins. There 
would be a temporary removal of 1.77 hectares of land form agricultural production 
while minerals extraction, soil storage and restoration takes place, which the 
significance of is considered in the ES to be a minor adverse impact on the land. To 
mitigate the loss of 0.54 hectares of agricultural land to the lake the extra topsoil and 
subsoil can be utilised to improve the quality of the of the reinstated agricultural soil 
profiles of the wider areas of the site. The site would provide restoration profiles of at 
least ALC subgrade 3b quality.  

 
3.23 It is considered that handling of soils can lead to long term damage which can take 10 

years to fully mitigate, of which it is considered the magnitude of the impact of the 
proposed development is medium. In terms of mitigation this can be done through soil 
management procedures and the requirement to only move soils under the driest 
practicable conditions and take account of prevailing weather. The optimum period 
being between mid-April and mid-October, ensuring that compaction is minimised. 
Wherever possible the double handling of soil should be avoided and progressive 
restoration should be implemented. In regards to soil storage, soil will be stripped to a 
maximum depth of 3 metres and stored in the designated storage areas shown on 
plan appendix 7.9, sub soil mounds would have a maximum depth of 5 metres. These 
storage mounds would be carefully placed to take into account hedges, fences, 
overhead power lines and the risk of flooding. Topsoil and subsoil would be stored 
separately and duration of time stored should be kept to a minimum. Topsoil mounds 
are required to be kept to under 3m in height and should have gradients which 
minimise the risk of slumping. If in situ for over 12 months they should be seeded to 
assist wed control and reduce soil erosion. 

 
ES Chapter 12 Cultural Heritage 

3.24 The nearest listed buildings to the site are the Catterick Bridge hotel is grade II listed, 
with modern extensions and is approximately 270m from the west of the proposal 
boundary, a further 5 listed structures are situated at Catterick Bridge including the 
bridge itself which is Grade II* listed, the Church of St Anne is Grade I listed and is 
300 metres to the south of the plant site within Catterick village. Catterick Village 
conservation area is approximately 250 south east of the application site centred 
around the Church of St Anne and the historic core of the village. The ES concludes 
that the proposal is well screened from all listed buildings and the Catterick 
Conservation Area due to the topography of the land, vegetation and other 
intervening development. Therefore the setting of these listed buildings would not be 
effected. The proposal is also not visible from the scheduled ancient monument in 
Catterick Village and the extensive scheduled monument centred on Catterick bridge 

Page 56



 

commrep/9 

9 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

and the racecourse comprising of the buried remains of a roman military base and 
settlement are just to the north of the plant site, however the plant site has been 
operational here since the 1970’s and the effects are considered to be neutral. After 
extraction is completed the restoration would improve the setting and the additional 
extraction would not impact the monument. A written scheme of investigation would 
be provided to NYCC for approval subject to a planning condition requiring its 
implementation. 

 
ES Addendum Chapter Ecology 

3.25 The original ES did not include a chapter on Ecology however it has since been 
provided and consulted upon. The ES outlines the Swale Lakes SSSI as a statutory 
designated site within the area, which is predominantly designated for its bird interest 
and is approximately 500 metres to the east of the site, with shallow water, 
vegetation, scrub and grassland. There is also 5 sites of nature conservation interest 
with the 2km search radius which are: 

 Bolton on Swale Lake; 

 Catterick Gravel Pits (Complex) – adjacent to the Site; 

 How Hill Riverside – adjacent to the Site; 

 Pallet Hill; 

 Scorton Quarry. 

3.26 In regards to protected species bat records are dominated by common and soprano 
pipistrelles, the nearest record is 200m to the west and most recent a brown long-
eared bat roost which was found 1km to the north. No roosts were found on the site 
and no on-site structures were considered to have potential roost features. There has 
been no badger activity on site or in the surrounding area although suitable habitats 
were present on site, there is also no signs of brown hare or hedgehog. In regards to 
birds a barn owl could forage on occasion over parts of the site where unmanaged 
grassland may support a higher amount of small mammals. In regards to Great 
Crested Newts there surveys have been carried out with negative results.  

 
3.27 The ES concludes that the proposed remaining activities would have a de minimus 

impact on surrounding habitats as will the progressive restoration of the site, stating 
there are no anticipated negative impacts on the SNCI’s that border the site or the 
Swale SSSI which is 500m south. Further stating that the restoration of the site would 
benefit the ecological receptors identified with positive impacts on bats and birds due 
to increased habitat heterogeneity which would strengthen the swale corridor. Some 
mitigation is stated to be implemented which includes the removal of topsoil from the 
remaining extraction area to be cleared outside bird breeding season which is March 
to July inclusive and extraction works should continue in line with best practice 
guidance for avoidance of surface water and groundwater pollution. Other mitigation 
has been incorporated into the design of the restoration scheme with progressive 
restoration on site, with the restored habitats on site already providing good quality 
habitat. 

 
Restoration and Aftercare Management 

3.28 When compared to the existing approved restoration scheme, there would be the 
following differences: 
- The tree planting/shelter belts have been reduced to reduce raptor refuge habitat; 
- The area of lowland meadow has been increased; 
- The area of open water has been increased to reflect the area of extension; 
- The area of reed bed has been increased. 

3.29 There would remain an element of agriculture involved in the restoration proposals. 
The northern part of site is proposed to be restored to two large agricultural fields 
whilst there would be a passive grazing regime introduced to the rest of the site. 

Page 57



 

commrep/10 

10 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

There would be an increase and diversification of vegetation and habitats on 
completion of the restoration. Although restoration would be carried out progressively, 
upon full completion of operations, the site would be subject to a five-year aftercare 
period in accordance with the existing condition no. 41 to ensure successful 
establishment of the restoration scheme. The existing plant site and extraction 
infrastructure would be removed upon final restoration. 

 
3.30 The five-year aftercare management process would include annual aftercare 

meetings during September of each year with representatives from the Mineral 
Planning Authority, Operator and the Company’s landscape architect. The annual 
review would manage and monitor the restoration undertaken and also plan the 
aftercare works required for the forthcoming year. 

 
3.31 The plant site currently has a restoration scheme approved under the previous 

permission; however changes to the planning application have been necessary, as 
housing has been built on a previous access to the site within the red line boundary. 
A new access to the site was previously approved and the area to the north of the 
plant site has now been restored. However, screening which was required under this 
previous permission was never implemented north of the plant site. Part of the north 
west of the plant site is also now under a separate planning permission through a 
different operator (ref. C1/13/00295/CM, dated 11 February 2015) which has its own 
restoration requirements and would not be part of this application. Furthermore, the 
plant site of the existing operations has now grown to include land which is now 
outside the red line boundary of the original application and this land is proposed to 
be controlled via an updated S106 legal agreement as the land is under the same 
ownership as the rest of the site and controlled by the applicant. 

 
Conditions to be amended 

3.32 Listed below are the conditions which have been requested to be amended under this 
application by the agent. Condition 2 (Time Limits) of planning permission 
C1/15/250/PA/F currently reads: 
‘The Permission herby granted authorises the extraction of sand and gravel and 
retention of processing plant only until 31 December 2017. All plant and buildings 
shall be removed from the site and the site shall be restored to agriculture and a 
condition suitable for water based nature conservation and angling purposes within 
12 months of the completion of extraction or by 31 December 2018 whichever is the 
sooner.’ 
 

3.33 It is proposed to amend Condition 2 to extend the time to complete the development 
in line with the details proposed to be approved under this application. The proposed 
condition is:  
The permission hereby granted authorises the extraction of sand and gravel and 
retention of processing plant only until 31 December 2024. All plant and buildings 
must be removed from the site and the site must be restored to agriculture and a 
condition suitable for water based nature conservation and angling purposes within 
12 months of the completion of extraction or by 31 December 2025 whichever is 
sooner. 

 
Reason: To reserve the rights of control by the County Planning Authority in the 
interest of amenity.” 
 

3.34 Condition 5 (Approved plans) of planning permission C1/15/250/PA/F currently reads:  
‘The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in the accordance with the 
application details and supporting information dated 17 February 1992 as amended 
by the Environmental Statement and accompanying information dated 5 February 
1993 and in accordance with subsequent amendments set out in letters from RMC 
(UK) Ltd dated 11 August 1993, 20 August 1993 and 23 September 1993 and Plan 

Page 58



 

commrep/11 

11 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

Ref Nos P1/1413/1/1, P1/1413/2/1, P1/1413/3/1, P1/1413/4/1, P1/1413/5/1, 
P1/1413/6/1, P1/1413/7/1, P1/1413/8/1, P1/1413/9/1, P1/1413/10/1, P1/1413/11/1, 
P1/1413/12/1 or in accordance with such other details as may be subsequently 
approved in writing by the County Planning Authority.’ 

 

3.35 It is proposed to amend Condition 5 to allow development in accordance with the 
details should they be approved under this application. The proposed condition is:  
“The development hereby permitted must be carried out in accordance with the 
application details dated 12 December 2017 and the following approved documents 
and drawings:  

 

Ref.  Date Title 

Ref. P3/1034/1 Nov 2016 Location Context Plan 

Ref. 
2011_C048_PAL_002 

Dec 2020 Location Plan 

Ref. P3/1034/2 Nov 2017 Site Plan of Additional Extraction Area 

Ref. P3/1034/3 Nov 2017 
Detailed Site Plan of Excavation Area – 
Phase 1-4 

Ref. P3/1034/3 Nov 2017 
Detailed Site Plan of Excavation Area – 
Phase 3-4 Restoration 

Ref. P1/1413/17 5.12.17 Detailed Restoration Sections 

Ref. P3/1034/4 Oct 2017 Site Survey Plan 

No Ref. 15.11.17 Appendix 6 – Biodiversity Action Plan 

No Ref. Dec 2017 
Volume 2 – Environmental Statement and 
Technical Appendices 

Ref. 001/01 16.12.16 Landscape Character and Designations  

Ref. 1002-21282 Not dated Quarry Site Access 

Ref. R17.9827/1/JS Not dated Appendix 5 – Noise Appendices 

Ref. R17.9828/1/DW 
Page 1 

Not dated Appendix 6 Air Quality Appendices 

No Ref.  Not dated Appendix 7 - Soil Appendices 

Ref. 18-049 Rev 2 20.11.18 Preliminary Ecological Appraisal 

No Ref. Nov 2018 Ecology: Addendum Chapter 

No Ref. Oct 2019 
Written Scheme of Investigation for 
Archaeological Monitoring 

Ref. 67411 R1 3.2.2020 Hydrogeological Impact Assessment 

No Ref. 4.9.21 200903 Ltr to NorthYorks - Pallethill 

Ref. P1/1413/10/6 14.9.2020 Final Restoration Masterplan 

No Ref. 15.9.2020 Outline Restoration Masterplan 

 
Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the 
application details. 

 

3.36 Condition 8 (Method of Working) of planning permission C1/15/250/PA/F currently 
reads: 
‘The mineral extraction hereby permitted shall take place only in accordance with the 
phasing arrangements indicated on Plan No P1/143/6/1 unless otherwise agreed in 
writing by the County Planning Authority and no extraction operations shall take place 
in any phase until minerals within the immediately preceding phase have been 
worked out.’ 
 

3.37 It is proposed to amend Condition 8 to allow the phasing to be amended to include 
the new extraction area proposed in this application. The proposed condition is: 
“The mineral extraction hereby permitted must take place only in accordance with the 
phasing arrangements indicated on Plan No P3/1034/3 and no extraction operations 

Page 59



 

commrep/12 

12 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

must take place in any phase until minerals within the immediately preceding phase 
have been worked out.  

 
Reason: In the interests of amenity and to ensure the effective restoration of lands to 
agricultural use.” 

 
4.0 Consultations 
 
4.1 The consultee responses summarised within this section of the report relate to 

responses to consultation undertaken on the 15 June 2018. A re-consultation took 
place on 25 September 2019 in regards to further information submitted by the 
applicant and a further re-consultation was sent on the 10 June 2021 which was in 
regards to an updated location plan and S106 plan. A further consultation was 
completed on 20 December 2021, which expired on 10 January 2022. 

 
4.2 Richmondshire District Council (Planning) – No response received to date from 

any of the four consultations including the latest on the 20th December 2021. 
 
4.3 Environmental Health Officer (Richmondshire) – A response was received on 29 

January 2018 stating the assessment of air quality in chapter 10 of the ES shows that 
the proposal is not likely to cause an exceedances of the Air Quality Objectives. The 
dust assessment shows a slight adverse effect at Bishops Way and St Paulinus 
Crescent and a negligible effect at Willow View and Field House; further stating 
suitable measures in regards to a scheme of dust control are already controlled on 
the site through Condition 20 of the previous permission. In regards to noise the 
assessment in Chapter 9 of the ES show the proposed extension to the permitted 
area of extraction is capable of being operated in compliance with condition 22 and 
23 of the previous permission, with the proposed operations not exceeding the 
background noise levels outline in current minerals planning practice guidance. 
Furthermore, the proposal would not increase the annual output from the site and 
would operate in accordance with the previous hours. They, therefore, have no 
objections to the proposal. A response was received on 21 September 2020 stating 
no further comments. 

 
4.4 Catterick Parish Council – A response was received on 10 January 2018 stating no 

objections to the application. A further response was received on 6 October 2020 
stating no objections to this application. 

 
4.5 Swale & Ure Drainage Board – No response received to date to the consultations in 

2018, 2019 and 2021. 
 
4.6 Historic England – A response was received on 23 January 2018 stating the 

variation seeks to amend the permitted area of minerals extraction.  This area was 
originally omitted from the extraction programme due to the potential for the 
existence of a Roman marching camp. However recent geophysical survey and 
archaeological evaluation did not identify any associated remains or features. There 
are two nationally important Scheduled Monuments within the 1km buffer zone, with 
numerous other nationally important, but undesignated, sites located within the 
landscape such as Roman roads. This is supported by what has been found through 
the recent A1 upgrade. Historic England state the extraction site continues a 
consented programme of works and, as such, is not a new intervention into the 
landscape. The application is supported by an Environmental Statement and Historic 
England agree with its assessment of harm and impact to the designated heritage 
assets outlined in the ES, but they do have concerns in regards to the archaeological 
mitigation as these are not thorough enough.  

 

Page 60



 

commrep/13 

13 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

4.6.1 A further response was received on 14th October 2019 stating, since the original 
consultation, a written scheme of investigation has been submitted. However, this still 
lacks clarity and they state the suggested approach does not present a clear 
strategy. Historic England also state the omission of an archaeological sampling 
strategy is a matter of concern. Therefore, Historic England still have concerns on 
heritage grounds and recommend the WSI be re-written to reflect the needs of the 
particular site providing clarity on methods, techniques and approaches as at present 
does not meet the requirements of NPPF Paragraph 199. A further response was 
received on 4 November 2019 stating the amended supporting information consists 
of a redrafted WSI which addresses the concerns raised in the previous response. 
Therefore, Historic England have no objection to the application on heritage grounds. 
A further response was received on 23 September 2020 stating no further comments. 
A further response was received on 4th January 2022 stating no further comments. 

 
4.7 Yorkshire Wildlife Trust – A response was received on 30 January 2018 stating 

they are happy to see a Biodiversity Action Plan. However, they state an ecology 
chapter in the ES is required and the application should not be determined until this 
has been considered. The consultee further states the application site is close to the 
Swale Lakes SSSI and therefore the restoration will be of benefit of not just at a site 
level, but also at a landscape level being very valuable to the wildlife in the area. The 
Trust further state it “is pleased to see in the BAP that there is a suggestion that that 
Yorkshire Wildlife Trust should be involved with the advisory group involved with the 
restoration plan.” A re-consult letter was sent on 25 September 2019 and no 
response has been received to date. A further response was received on 18th 
January 2022 stating no further comments in addition to those previously submitted. 

 
4.8 Highway Authority – A response was received on 10 January 2018 stating no 

objections to the proposed development. A response was received on 1 October 
2019 stating no objections to the proposed development. A response was received 
on 22nd December 2021 stating no objections to the proposed development. 

 
4.9 Highways England – A response was received on 19 January 2018 stating no 

objections to the application. A further response was received on 15 October 2019 
stating no objection to the proposal. A further response was received on 10th January 
2022 stating no objections to the application and continuation of works until 2025. 

 
4.10 Natural England – A response was received on 22 January 2018 stating no 

objection in regards to statutory nature conservation sites as the application, would 
not damage or destroy the interest features for which Swale Lakes SSSI. Natural 
England also have no objection in regards to the soils and agricultural land quality as 
the proposal would not lead to significant losses of best and most versatile (BMV) 
agricultural land. A further response was received on 17 September 2020 stating no 
further comments. A further response was received on 5 January 2022 stating no 
further comment on the re-consultation. 

 
4.11 Environment Agency York – A response was received on January 2018 objecting 

to the application due to a lack of information in regards to groundwater. A response 
was received on 22 September 2020 objecting to the application due to risks to 
groundwater. The response also states a Hydrological Impact Assessment (HIA) has 
been submitted with the application. However, it does not assess the impact of water 
levels potentially being lowered in a lake at Catterick Racecourse by the proposed 
quarrying. Specifically, the updated assessment must state whether this would limit 
the licence holder’s ability to abstract water from the lake. A further response was 
submitted on 30 November 2020 stating no objections to the application as the HIA 
explains the potential impact on the Catterick Racecourse License holder would be 
dealt with through the abstraction licencing process; therefore stating a new 
abstraction permit or a variation would be required from the Environment Agency 

Page 61



 

commrep/14 

14 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

which would demonstrate the mitigation is adequate. A further response was 
received on 19th January 2022 stating as the consultation was only amending the 
dates of the permission there were no further comments. 

 
4.12 NYCC Heritage - Ecology – A response was received on 9th January 2018 

requesting further information, stating an ecology chapter in the ES needs to be 
prepared before the application can be fully considered. A further response was 
received on 16th October 2019 stating adequate checks have been made 
demonstrating the absence of protected species with the mitigation measures 
requested to be conditioned. The updated consultation response states it would have 
been expected that this application would include a review of the restoration scheme 
for the quarry, especially in regards to a re-assessment of how the area for nature 
conservation can best contribute to the landscape. The response states there is a 
lack of coherency about the restoration’s objectives and requires to be more clarity 
on the management arrangements for the site post restoration. A further response 
was received on 7th September 2020 requesting further clarification on statements 
within the report in regards to species of vegetation and seed mixtures. A further 
response was received on 21st September 2020 after further clarification was 
received from the agent in regards to the outline restoration and aftercare 
management plan stating further revision of the plan is not necessary, but the 
applicant should bear in mind repeated cutting for grassland establishment is 
beneficial and similar seed mixtures to be specified. A response was received on 20th 
December 2021 stating no concerns from an ecology point of view in regards to the 
amended information which was in regards to extending the dates of extraction and 
restoration. 

 
4.13 NYCC Heritage - Principal Landscape Architect – A response was received on 19 

April 2018 stating further information was required this included: 

 An up-to date landscape survey and clarification on the condition of the existing 
landscape in and around the site, including restored / non-restored areas within 
the application areas of the plant and extraction sites (we have no record of 
completed phases of restoration or notification of this. We have no record of a 
detailed scheme of aftercare being submitted, as Condition 41 of 
C1/15/250/PA/F). 

 Restoration details of the Plant Site; the plan referred to is L/1034/17/1 (we have 
a draft submission of this plan together with further draft submissions in relation 
to condition 14 of C1/15/227). This should take account of the access and current 
state of the plant site including screen planting (e.g. the screen planting on 
L/1034/17/1 shown to the NE side of the site seems to be mostly failed on site). 

 There are significant changes to the level of information and detail between the 
approved scheme drawings and the current submitted restoration scheme shown 
on drawing P1/1413/10/2. Clarification is needed to explain the changes. 

 Details of and reference to the S106 agreement dated 17/10/1994 (including the 
Maintenance Plan referred to in the S106 for the main east side extraction area. 
We have no record the MP being submitted). 

4.13.1 A further response was received on 18 November 2019, stating further information is 
still required in regards to the phasing of the restoration, a revised restoration 
scheme for the existing plant site, protection measures for the existing woodland 
screening to the north of the site, a restoration scheme with clear afteruse objectives 
as set out in the S106 agreement along with a long term management plan. 

 
4.13.2 A further response was received on 2nd October 2020 stating the Landscape Officer 

is generally satisfied with outline restoration and aftercare management plan, as well 
as the long term management plan for the wildlife area as a requirement of the S106 
agreement. A further response was received on 27 November 2020 stating the 
updated S106 plan shows the correct area in regards to the nature conservation land. 

Page 62



 

commrep/15 

15 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

A further response was received on 7 January 2022 stating the amended dates for 
extraction and restoration are unlikely to change the landscape and visual effects and 
has no further comments to add to those previously made. 

 
4.14 NYCC Heritage – Archaeology – A response was received on 7 October 2019 

stating the geophysical survey and trial trenching did not reveal any deposits of 
particular archaeological significance. The area is within a general area of 
archaeological sensitivity adjacent to the roman town of Cataractonium and Roman 
marching camp. The response states discrete archaeological features would be 
present within the area. The developer has submitted a written scheme of 
investigation for an archaeological watching brief, which should be a sufficient level of 
field evaluation and has been used in other parts of the quarry. The response 
recommends a condition in regards to the proposal being in compliance with the 
written scheme of investigation. A response was received on 23 December 2021 
stating no objections. 

  
4.15 NYCC Arboricultural Officer – No response received to date to any of the four 

consultations in 2018, 2019 and 2021.  
 
 Notifications 

4.16 County Cllr. Carl Les – Was notified on 5 January 2018 and re-notified 25 
September 2019. 

 
5.0 Advertisement and representations 
 
5.1 This application has been advertised by means of six Site Notices posted on 23 

January 2018 (responses to which expired on 22 February 2018). The Site Notices 
were posted in the following locations: one at the site plant site entrance, one at the 
entrance to the Bridge Farm site area on Leeming Lane, another further north on 
Leeming Lane opposite the entrance to the racecourse, one on the road Bishops 
Way south of the application site and one on a lamppost on Willow View south of the 
application site. A Press Notice appeared in the Darlington and Stockton Times on 2 
February 2018 (responses to which expired on 3 March 2018).  

 
5.2 The proposal has been re-advertised by means of four Site Notices on 2 October 

2019 (responses to which expired on 1 November 2019). The Site Notices were 
posted in the following locations: one at the site entrance, one at the Bridge Farm 
entrance and one in Bishops lane south of the application site. A Press Notice 
appeared in the Darlington and Stockton Times on 4 October 2019 (responses to 
which expired on 3 November 2019). Further site notices were posted on 14 June 
2021 and expire on 13 July 2021. A further Press Notice appeared in the Darlington 
and Stockton Times on 18 June 2021 (responses to which expired on 17 July 2021). 

 
5.3 Due to an update in regards to the dates for the proposed development to take place 

a further full re-consultation was completed. The proposal has been re-advertised by 
means of four Site Notices on 23 December 2021 (responses to which expired on 22 
January 2022). The Site Notices were posted in the following locations: one at the 
site entrance, one at the Bridge Farm entrance and one in Bishops lane south of the 
application site. A Press Notice appeared in the Darlington and Stockton Times on 30 
December 2021 (responses to which expired on 29 January 2022).  

 
5.4 Neighbour Notification letters were sent on 23 February 2018 and the period in which 

to make representations expired on 23 March 2018. Re-consultation neighbour 
notification letters were sent on 25 September 2019 and the period in which to make 
representations expired on 24 October 2019. Further re-consultation neighbour 
notification letters were sent on 11 June 2021 and the period in which to make 
representations expired on 10 July 2021 further letters were sent out on 20 Page 63



 

commrep/16 

16 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

December 2021 and the period in which to make representations was until 19th 
January 2022. The following properties received a neighbour notification letter:  
 1-12, 14-38, 40, 42-47, 49, 51, 53, 55, 64, 66, 68 Bishops Lane, Catterick, Richmond; 

 1-9, 11, 15, 17, 19, 21 St Paulinus Crescent, Catterick, Richmond; 

 Catterick Racecourse, Leeming Lane North Catterick Bridge, Richmond; 

 Field House, Leeming Lane North, Catterick Bridge, Richmond; 

 Grandstand Cottage, Leeming Lane North, Catterick Bridge, Richmond; 

 Racecourse Lodge, Leeming Lane North, Catterick Bridge, Richmond; and, 

 The Bridge House Hotel, Leeming Lane North, Catterick Bridge, Richmond. 

5.5 One letter of representation has been received in 2017, this objection was reiterated 
in 2019 and again on the 28th January 2022 raising objections on the grounds of:  

 Noise from the plant site while operational. 

6.0 Planning policy and guidance 
 

The Development Plan  

6.1 Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that all 
planning authorities must determine each planning application in accordance with the 
Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. In this instance, 
therefore, the Development Plan consists of policies contained within a number of 
planning documents. These documents include: 

 any extant planning policies contained within Plan(s) adopted by the County and 
District (or Borough) Councils ‘saved’ under direction of the Secretary of State; 
and, 

 any planning policies contained within Development Plan Documents adopted 
under the Local Development Framework regime. 
 

6.2 The Development Plan for the determination of this particular application comprises 
the following: 

 The extant policies of the Richmondshire Local Plan (adopted 2014); 

 Minerals and Waste Joint Plan (MWJP) (adopted 16 February 2022). 

6.3 Due to the age of the Richmondshire Local Plan policies, they are to be assessed 
against the more up to date National Planning Policy Framework 2021 (NPPF) to 
determine whether they are consistent with the NPPF and what weight should be 
attached to them.  

 
6.4 Weight in the determination process may also be afforded to emerging local policies, 

depending on their progress through consultation and adoption. Policies are afforded 
an increasing amount of weight as the Plans progress through their stages to 
adoption. The NPPF (Paragraph 48) permits authorities to give weight to policies in 
emerging plans according to:  

 the stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced its preparation, 
the greater the weight that may be given);  

 the extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the less 
significant the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given); 
and  

 the degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to the 
policies [in the NPPF] (the closer the policies in the emerging plan to the policies 
[in the NPPF], the greater the weight that may be given).  

 
Richmondshire Local Plan (2014) 

6.5 The Richmondshire Local Plan (adopted 2014) has particular relevance in the 
determination of this application and the policies most relevant include: 

 Policy SP3: Rural Sustainability; 

 Policy CP1, Planning Positively; 
Page 64



 

commrep/17 

17 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

 Policy CP2, Responding to Climate Change; 

 Policy CP3, Achieving Sustainable Development; 

 Policy CP4, Supporting sites for Development; 

 Policy CP7, Promoting a Sustainable Economy; 

 Policy CP12, Conserving and Enhancing Environmental and Historic Assets; 

 Policy CP13, Promoting High Quality Design. 
 
6.6  Spatial Principle SP3 states “Rural Sustainability Priority will be given to supporting 

the rural sustainability of the whole plan area, protecting and enhancing its 
environmental assets and character, and sustaining the social and economic fabric of 
its communities, by promoting: 
• a sustainable rural economy; 

• social and economic regeneration; 

• conservation or improvement of the rural environment.” 

6.7  This policy is consistent with the NPPF in that it aligns with the objectives as referred 
within Chapter 6 Building a strong, competitive economy, specifically in regards 
paragraphs 84. Therefore significant weight can be given to this policy. 

 
6.8  Core Policy CP1 advises that a positive approach is required reflecting a 

presumption of sustainable development, working pro-actively with applicants to find 
solutions. Wherever possible development should improve economic, social and 
environmental conditions in the plan area. Further stating planning applications which 
accord to the local plan policies would be approved without delay unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise. Where there are no relevant policies the Council 
would grant permission unless material considerations indicate otherwise, taking into 
account any adverse impacts which would significantly and demonstrably outweigh 
the benefits when assessed against the NPPF as a whole and secondly specific 
policies within the NPPF which state developments should be restricted. 

 
6.9 This policy is consistent with paragraph 11 of the NPPF in that it aligns with the 

objectives as referred within Chapter 2 in regards to Achieving Sustainable 
Development. Therefore significant weight can be given. 

 
6.10 Core Policy CP3, in part advises that support will be given for sustainable 

development. Support would be given for sustainable development which promotes 
the health, economic and social well-being, amenity and safety of the population. The 
policy also states support is given for promoting the quality of natural resources 
including water, air, land and biodiversity minimising the impacts of airborne pollution, 
with the protection of best and most versatile land. Development should also promote 
the natural drainage of surface water mitigating the effect of flash flooding of rivers, 
drains and draught and promotes the character and quality of local landscapes and 
the wider countryside. The use and development of land should be assessed against 
the community’s housing, economic and social requirements, with the sustainability 
and enhancement of the natural and built environment, minimisation of the energy 
consumption and need to travel also being key factors. Development which would 
significantly harm the natural and built environment or generate a significant adverse 
traffic impact without appropriate mitigation would not be permitted.  

 
6.11 This policy is consistent with paragraphs 174, 180 and 184 of the NPPF in that it 

aligns with the objectives as referred within Chapter 15 Conserving & Enhancing the 
Natural Environment. Therefore full weight can be given to this policy. 

 
6.12 Core Policy CP4 Supporting Sites for Development states proposals must be of a 

appropriate scale and nature to secure the sustainability of a settlement from the 
hierarchy within Policies SP2 and SP3. Proposals should reflect and deliver an 

Page 65



 

commrep/18 

18 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

effective response to climate change, develop the social and economic needs of the 
community and is proportionate to the settlement size. Point 2 states the location of 
any development proposal should be consistent with the Development Plan, and is 
required to be accessible and well related to existing facilities and within the capacity 
of existing infrastructure. Point 3 states the development should not impact adversely 
on the character of the settlement, important views, lead to the loss of or adverse 
impact on or cause deterioration of important nature conservation, be located in 
areas of flood risk or contribute to flood risk or cause significant adverse impact on 
amenity or highways safety. 

 
6.13  This policy is consistent with paragraphs of the NPPF in that it aligns with the 

objectives as referred within paragraph 186 within Chapter 15 (Conserving and 
enhancing the natural environment). Therefore significant weight can be given to this 
policy. 

 
6.14 Core Policy CP7, advises that “support will be given to (those relevant): 

a. the development of employment activities that diversify the current offer in 
Richmondshire, and in particular those activities that will provide high quality jobs 
which can capitalise on and/or enhance the skills of the resident population; and 
b. development which promotes the sustainable growth of the key economic sectors 
within the area, particularly agriculture, food, military, retail, tourism, leisure and 
equine enterprises”. 

 
6.15 This policy is NPPF-consistent in that it aligns with the objectives as referred within 

paragraph 8 of the NPPF. Therefore significant weight can be given to this policy. 
 
6.16 Core Policy CP12, in part advises that development would be supported where it 

conserves and enhances the significance of the plan areas natural and man-made 
assets. Further stating developments would not be supported where there is a 
detrimental impact upon the significance of a natural or man-made asset or is 
inconsistent with the principles of an assets proper management. In regards to 
environmental impacts where avoidance of adverse impacts is not possible, 
necessary mitigation must be provided to address the impacts, with compensatory 
measures when mitigation are not possible. The stated approach is specifically in 
regards to the landscape character, biodiversity and geodiversity of the plan area 
being maintained, enhanced and where appropriate restored to ensure a sustainable 
future. This approach is also in regards to green infrastructure which would be 
protected where appropriate, enhanced to provide a high quality, accessible, diverse 
and well-connected network of green spaces to meet the needs of the community 
and includes woodlands, grassland, wetland and open space.  

 
6.17 This policy accords with paragraphs 174 and 197 of the NPPF. Paragraph 174 states 

that planning decisions should contribute to and enhance the natural and local 
environment by a) protecting and enhancing valued landscapes, sites of biodiversity or 

geological value and soils; and paragraph 197 states that in determining applications 
local planning authorities should take account of ‘c) the desirability of new development 

making a positive contribution to the local character and distinctiveness.’ Therefore 
substantial weight should be applied to this policy.  

 
6.18  Core Policy CP13, in regards to ‘Promoting high quality design’, advises high quality 

design of landscaping is a priority in all developments and support would be given to 
proposals which would provide a visually attractive, functional, accessible and low 
maintenance, respect and enhance the local context and its special qualities, 
optimise the potential of the site, minimise the use of scarce resources and facilitate 
access to sustainable transport. This policy is NPPF-consistent in that it aligns with 
the objectives as referred within Chapter 12 Achieving well-designed places, 
paragraphs 130 a, b and c. Therefore significant weight can be given to this policy. 

Page 66



 

commrep/19 

19 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

 
 
 

Minerals and Waste Joint Plan (2022)  
6.19 The plan was adopted on the 16th February 2022 and is relevant to the determination 

of this application. The document is a joint local plan between North Yorkshire 
County Planning Authority, the City of York Council and North York Moors National 
Park Authority. As the Joint Plan has been, and continues to be, produced post-
publication of the NPPF, there is no requirement to include herein NPPF-consistency 
statements in respect of the MWJP policies that follow below.  

 
Strategic policies for minerals  

 M01 Broad geographical approach to supply of aggregates; 

 M02 Provision of sand and gravel; 

 M03 Overall distribution of sand and gravel provision; 

 M04 Landbanks for sand and gravel; 

 M07 Meeting Concreting sand and gravel requirements; 

 M10 Unallocated extensions to existing quarries. 
 

Development Management Policies 

 D01 Presumption in favour of sustainable minerals and waste development; 

 D02 Local amenity and cumulative impacts; 

 D03 Transport of minerals and waste and associated traffic impacts; 

 D06 Landscape; 

 D07 Biodiversity and geodiversity; 

 D08 Historic Environment; 

 D10 Reclamation and afteruse; 

 D11 Sustainable design, construction and operation of development; 

 D12 Protection of agricultural land and soils; 

 
6.20 MWJP Policy M01 - Broad geographical approach to supply of aggregates states 

“the plan area outside the North York Moors National Park, the Areas of Outstanding 
Natural Beauty and the City of York will be the main focus for extraction of aggregate 
(sand and gravel)..” 

 
6.21 MWJP Policy M02 - Provision of sand and gravel states provision for sand and 

gravel over the 15 year period would be 35.6 tonnes, with an annual rate of 2.44 
million tonnes. There would be additional provision made through a 5 yearly review of 
the plan if necessary to maintain a landbank of at least 7 years for sand and gravel 
until 31 December 2030 and or to meet additional requirements identified through 
updates to the Local Aggregate Assessment. 

 
6.22 MWJP Policy M03 - Overall distribution of sand and gravel provision states the 

overall provision of sand and gravel will be allocated in the plan with:  

 “Concreting sand and gravel (Southwards distribution area): 50%  

 Concreting sand and gravel (Northwards distribution area): 45%  

 Building sand: 5% “ 
 

Further stating if this cannot be achieved in this ratio, provision shall be made across 
both areas in combination. 

 
6.23 MWJP Policy M04 - Landbanks for sand and gravel states a landbank of at least 7 

years for concreting sand and gravel and a landbank of at least 7 years to be 
maintained throughout the plan period for building sand to be maintained throughout 

Page 67



 

commrep/20 

20 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

the plan period for each of the northern and southern distribution areas detailed in the 
Minerals Key Diagram. 

 
6.24 MWJP Policy M07 - Meeting concreting sand and gravel requirements states 

requirements for concreting sand and gravel would be met through existing 
permissions and through permission on allocated sites. The application site is not an 
allocated site within the Minerals and Waste Joint Plan and part 3 of these policies is 
in regards to permission granted outside allocated sites, preferred areas and areas of 
search. Stating development in these areas would contribute to maintenance of an 
adequate and steady supply of concreating sand and gravel that cannot be met 
through reserves on sites or areas identified within the plan. These proposals would 
also require to be consistent with the development management policies within the 
plan. 

 
6.25 MWJP Policy M10 - Unallocated extensions to existing quarries states when not on 

an allocated site within the Joint Plan a proposal would be permitted if the 
development would not compromise the overall delivery of the strategy for the 
sustainable supply and use of minerals, encouraging the use of alternatives to 
primary minerals and would be consistent with the development management 
policies.  

 
6.26 MWJP Policy D01 - Presumption of sustainable development. The policy states 

there is a presumption in favour of sustainable minerals development and that the 
authorities will always work proactively with applicants to find solutions which mean 
that proposals can be approved wherever possible, and to secure development that 
improves the economic, social and environmental conditions in the area. 

 
6.27 MWJP Policy D02 - Local amenity and cumulative impacts. The policy seeks to 

safeguard communities from any unacceptable impacts on the amenity of local 
communities and residents, businesses and users of the public rights of way network 
as a result of:  
 noise, 

 dust, 

 vibration, 

 odour, 

 emissions to air, land or water, 

 visual intrusion, 

 public health and safety, 

 disruption to the public rights of way network, 

 cumulative effects arising from one or more of the above at a single site and/or as a result 
of a number of sites operating in the locality. 

 
Part 2) states applicants are encouraged to conduct early and meaningful 
engagement with local communities and to reflect the outcome of those discussions 
in the design of proposals as far as practicable. 

 
6.28 MWJP Policy D03 - Transport of mineral and associated traffic impacts encourages 

the use of alternatives to road transport where practicable. It permits proposals where 
road transport is necessary, where there is capacity within the existing network for 
the level of traffic, and there would not be an unacceptable impact on local 
communities, businesses or other users of the network or any such impacts can be 
appropriately mitigated. It also requires suitable access and on-site parking and 
manoeuvring, and requires a transport assessment or green travel plan where 
significant levels of traffic are created. 

 
6.29 MWJP Policy D06 – Landscape: This policy states proposals will be permitted where 

it can be demonstrated that there will be no unacceptable impact on the quality 

Page 68



 

commrep/21 

21 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

and/or character of the landscape, having taken into account any mitigation 
measures. The AONB and other nationally designated areas would have a very high 
level of protection with any unacceptable impact on landscape in these areas not 
being permitted. Where proposals may have an adverse effect on landscape, a high 
standard of design, mitigation and landscape enhancement should be provided. 
 

6.30 MWJP Policy D07 - Biodiversity and Geodiversity. This policy permits proposals 
where it can be demonstrated, having taken into account mitigation measures, that 
there will be no unacceptable impacts on biodiversity or geodiversity, including on 
statutory and non-statutory designated or protected sites and features, Sites of 
Importance for Nature Conservation, Sites of Local Interest and Local Nature 
Reserves, local priority habitats, habitat networks and species, having taken into 
account any mitigation measures proposed. Further stating development would not 
be permitted that would result in an unacceptable impact to locally important sites 
and assets unless it can be demonstrated that the benefits clearly outweigh the 
nature conservation value or scientific interest and the proposed mitigation or 
compensatory measure are equivalent to the value of the site.  
 

6.31 MWJP Policy D08 - Historic Environment: The policy aims to ensure that minerals 
development proposals will be permitted where they will conserve and where 
possible enhance those elements which contribute to the significance of the area’s 
heritage assets including their setting. The policy further states proposal which would 
result in less than substantial harm to the significance of a heritage asset would be 
permitted only where this is outweighed by the public benefits of the proposal. 
Proposals, which would affect an archaeological site of less than national importance 
will be permitted where they also conserve that which contributes to its significance in 
line with the importance of the remains.  

 
6.32 MWJP Policy D09 - Water Environment states minerals proposals would be permitted 

where it can be demonstrate no unacceptable impacts would arise in regards to surface 
and groundwater, taking into account any mitigation which is provided. Proposals 
where necessary should include measures to contribute to flood alleviation and other 
climate change mitigation, through use of sustainable drainage systems.  

 
6.33 MWJP Policy D10 - Reclamation and Aftercare states: “Part 1) Proposals which 

require restoration and afteruse elements will be permitted where it can be 
demonstrated that they would be carried out to a high standard and, where 
appropriate to the scale and location of the development”. The policy requires 
proposals to include community engagement, taken into account the context of the 
site and its environmental infrastructure, give rise to benefits to the area after 
restoration and aftercare, taken into account climate change, provided for 
progressive, phased restoration and provided a longer term implementation of 
management of the site. In addition to this the policy requires in Part 2 that 
“proposals will be permitted which deliver a more targeted approach to minerals site 
restoration and afteruse by contributing towards objectives, appropriate to the nature, 
scale and location of the site” stating where relevant in BMV land area prioritising the 
protection and enhancement of soils and long term potential to create further BMV 
land during restoration and requires the promotion of significant net gains for 
biodiversity and creating biodiversity benefits. 

 
6.34 MWJP Policy D11 - Sustainable design, construction and operation of development: 

The policy aims to allow mineral developments where it has been demonstrated that 
measure appropriate and proportionate to the scale and nature of the development 
have been incorporated into its design, construction and operation in relation to a 
number of items including minimisation of greenhouse gases and the generation and 
utilisation of renewable or low carbon energy. A climate change assessment should 
be required, as appropriate showing how the proposals have taken into account of 

Page 69



 

commrep/22 

22 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

impacts from climate change and include mitigation and adaptation measures where 
necessary.  
  

6.35 MWJP Policy D12 - Protection of agricultural land and soils: The policy seeks to 
protect Best and Most Versatile agricultural land from unnecessary and irreversible 
loss. Aftercare to a high standard of agricultural restoration should be achieved and 
developments are required to demonstrate that all practicable steps will be taken to 
conserve and manage soil resources in a sustainable way.  

 
 Other Policy considerations: 

National Planning Policy Framework (2021) 
6.36 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) sets out the Government’s planning 

policies for England and how these are expected to be applied. The overriding theme 
of the NPPF is to apply a presumption in favour of sustainable development. For 
decision-making, this means approving development proposals that accord with the 
development plan without delay (if plans are up-to-date and consistent with the 
NPPF). The Government defines sustainable development, in paragraph 8, as that 
being which fulfils the following three roles: an economic objective; a social objective 
or an environmental objective. When the development plan is absent, silent or the 
relevant policies are out of date, planning permission should be granted without delay 
unless there are clear reasons for refusing the development proposal or any adverse 
impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, 
when assessed against the policies in the NPPF as a whole (paragraph 11). 

 
6.37 Paragraph 48 states that local planning authorities may give weight to relevant 

policies in emerging plans according to: a) the stage of preparation of the emerging 
plan (the 
more advanced its preparation, the greater the weight that may be given); b) the 
extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the less 
significant the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given); and 
c) the degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to this 
Framework (the closer the policies in the emerging plan to the policies in the 
Framework, the greater the weight that may be given). 

 
6.38 NPPF Paragraphs 55 - 57 regarding ‘planning conditions and obligations’ requires 

local planning authorities to consider if development can be made acceptable by 

using conditions or planning obligations with planning obligations only used where it 

is not possible to address impacts through planning conditions. Planning conditions 

should be kept to a minimum and only imposed where they are met the test for 

condition and likewise planning obligations must only be sought where they meet all 

the tests for being necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms; 

being directly related to the development; and fairly and reasonably related in scale 

and kind to the development. 

 

6.39 Chapter 9 (Promoting sustainable transport) requires (paragraph 104) potential 

impacts on transport networks to be considered from the earliest stages of 

development proposals (c), and the environmental impacts of traffic and transport 

infrastructure can be identified, assessed and taken into account including 

appropriate opportunities for avoiding and mitigating any adverse effects and for net 

environmental gains (d). Paragraph 110 requires safe and suitable access can be 

achieved (b), and any significant impacts from development on highway safety can 

be mitigated (c). Paragraph 111 states ‘development should only be prevented or 

Page 70



 

commrep/23 

23 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

refused on highways grounds if there would be an unacceptable impact on highway 

safety, or the residual cumulative impacts on the road network would be severe’. 

 

6.40 Paragraph 113 within Chapter 9 (Promoting sustainable transport) of the NPPF 

states developments with significant HGV movements would require a travel plan and 

a transport statement so that the likely impacts can be assessed. 

 
6.41 Paragraph 174 within Chapter 15 (Conserving and enhancing the natural 

environment) of the NPPF sets out a number of principles for determining planning 
applications which aims to conserve and enhance biodiversity. These include 
protecting and enhancing valued landscapes including sites of biodiversity, 
recognising intrinsic character and beauty of the countryside, minimising impacts on 
and providing net gains for biodiversity, preventing new and existing development to 
contribute to unacceptable levels of soil, air, water or noise pollution or land 
instability. 

 
6.42 Paragraph 180 within Chapter 15 (Conserving and enhancing the natural 

environment) of the NPPF states the principles including if there is significant harm to 
biodiversity which cannot be avoided, adequately mitigated or as a last resort 
compensated for planning permission should be refused. Development which is likely 
to have an impact on a SSSI should not normally be permitted, with the exception of 
where the benefits of the development in the location clearly outweighs the impact of 
the features itself or the broader impacts of SSSI. 

 
6.43 Within Paragraph 185 within Chapter 15 (Conserving and enhancing the natural 

environment) of the framework it states that …decisions should also ensure that new 
development is appropriate for its location taking into account the likely effects (including 
cumulative effects) of pollution on health, living conditions and the natural environment, as well 
as the potential sensitivity of the site or the wider area to impacts that could arise from the 
development. In doing so they should:  
a) mitigate and reduce to a minimum potential adverse impacts resulting from noise from new 
development – and avoid noise giving rise to significant adverse impacts on health and the 
quality of life;  

b) identify and protect tranquil areas which have remained relatively undisturbed by noise and 
are prized for their recreational and amenity value for this reason; and  

c) limit the impact of light pollution from artificial light on local amenity, intrinsically dark 
landscapes and nature conservation. 

 
6.44 Paragraph 188 within Chapter 11 states “the focus of planning policies and decisions 

should be on whether proposed development is an acceptable use of land, rather 

than the control of processes or emissions (where these are subject to separate 

pollution control regimes). Planning decisions should assume that these regimes will 

operate effectively. Equally, where a planning decision has been made on a particular 

development, the planning issues should not be revisited through the permitting 

regimes operated by pollution control authorities”. In this case, the quarry must 

operate in accordance with the permitting regime of the Environment Agency and the 

Health and Safety Executive regulations. 

 
6.45 Paragraph 194 within Chapter 16 (Conserving and enhancing the historic 

environment) of the NPPF requires local authorities in determining applications: 
should require applicants to describe the significance of heritage assets affected, 
including any contribution made by their setting with the detail proportionate to the 
assets’ importance and no more than is sufficient to understand the potential impact 
of the proposal on their significance. Paragraph 195 requires local planning 
authorities to assess the particular significance of any heritage asset that may be 

Page 71



 

commrep/24 

24 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

affected by a proposal (including where it would affect the setting of a heritage asset) 
and take this into account when considering the impact on a heritage asset, to avoid 
or minimize any conflict between the heritage asset’s conservation and any aspect of 
the proposal. 

 
6.46 Paragraph 197 within Chapter 16 (Conserving and enhancing the historic environment’ 

states that ‘In determining applications, local planning authorities should take account of: 

 a) the desirability of sustaining and enhancing the significance of heritage assets and putting 
them to viable uses consistent with their conservation; 

 b) the positive contribution that conservation of heritage assets can make to sustainable 
communities including their economic vitality; and  

 c) the desirability of new development making a positive contribution to local character and 
distinctiveness.’ 

 

6.47 Paragraph 199 states that ‘When considering the impact of a proposed development on the 
significance of a designated heritage asset, great weight should be given to the asset’s 
conservation (and the more important the asset, the greater the weight should be). This is 
irrespective of whether any potential harm amounts to substantial harm, total loss or less than 
substantial harm to its significance.’ 

 
6.48 When considering potential impacts, Paragraph 200 states that ‘any harm to, or loss 

of, a designated heritage asset’s significance (from alteration or destruction, or from 
development within its setting), should be clearly and convincingly justified’.  

 
6.49   Paragraph 202 states that ‘Where a development proposal will lead to less than substantial 

harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset, this harm should be weighed against 
the public benefits of the proposal including, where appropriate, securing its optimum viable 
use.’ 

 
6.50 Chapter 17 of the NPPF is about facilitating the sustainable use of minerals. 

Paragraph 209 states ‘it is essential there is sufficient supply of minerals to provide 

the infrastructure, buildings, energy and goods that the country needs. Since 

minerals are a finite natural resource, and can only be worked where they are found 

best use needs to be made of them to secure their long-term conservation’. 

6.51 Paragraph 211 of the NPPF is relevant to the proposed development, which states 

that “great weight should be given to the benefits of minerals extraction”. Minerals 

extraction should as far as possible be provided outside AONB’s and ensure no 

unacceptable adverse impact on the natural and historic environment or human 

health taking into account the cumulative impacts from sites in the locality. 

Unavoidable noise, dust and particle emissions including blasting vibrations are 

controlled or mitigated, establishing appropriate noise limits for extraction in proximity 

to noise sensitive properties. Minerals site should provide for restoration and 

aftercare at the earliest opportunity, to be carried out to high environmental 

standards, through appropriate conditions. 

 
6.52 Paragraph 213 states that “Minerals planning authorities should plan for a steady 

and adequate supply of aggregates”. This is to be completed through annual Local 
Aggregate Assessments, using landbanks as a principle indicator of the security of 
minerals supply and the additional provision required for new aggregate extraction, 
maintaining landbanks of at least 7 years for sand and gravel and ensuring that large 
landbanks bound up in very few sites do not stifle completion and calculating and 
maintaining separate landbanks for any aggregate. 

 
 
 

Page 72



 

commrep/25 

25 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

National Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) (2014)  
6.53 On 6 March 2014 the Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) 

launched the National Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) web-based resource. This 
was accompanied by a Written Ministerial Statement which includes a list of the 
previous planning practice guidance documents cancelled. The NPPG supports the 
national policy contained within the NPPF. The guidance relevant to the 
determination of this application is contained within the following sections: - 

 
Air Quality 

6.54 This section provides guiding principles on how planning can take account of the 
impact of development on air quality. It states ‘Mitigation options where necessary 
will be locationally specific, will depend on the proposed development and should be 
proportionate to the likely impact. It is important therefore that local planning 
authorities work with applicants to consider appropriate mitigation so as to ensure the 
new development is appropriate for its location and unacceptable risks are 
prevented. Planning conditions and obligations can be used to secure mitigation’. 

 
Minerals 

6.55 This provides planning guidance for mineral extraction and the application process 
and focuses on the environmental impacts such as noise, dust and quarry slope 
stability and the importance of high quality restoration and aftercare of mineral sites. 

 
Natural Environment 

6.56 This section explains key issues in implementing policy to protect biodiversity, 
including local requirements. It reiterates that ‘the National Planning Policy 
Framework is clear that pursuing sustainable development includes moving from a 
net loss of biodiversity to achieving net gains for nature, and that a core principle for 
planning is that it should contribute to conserving and enhancing the natural 
environment and reducing pollution’. 

 

Noise:  

6.57 The PPG confirms the need for noise to be considered in taking decisions on 
proposed developments having regard to the effects of potential noise from new 
developments and on existing developments. The (Noise) PPG identifies how local 
planning authorities should determine the impact or effect of noise by considering the 
following: 

 ‘whether or not a significant adverse effect is occurring, or likely to occur’; 

 ‘whether or not an adverse effect is occurring, or likely to occur’; and 

 ‘whether or not a god standard of amenity can be achieved’. 
 
6.58 In addition to the above the (Noise) PPG also offers guidance on identifying ‘whether 

the overall effect of noise exposure (including the impact during the construction 
phase wherever applicable) is, or would be, above or below the significant observed 
adverse effect level and the lowest observed effect level for the given situation’. The 
(Noise) PPG sets out the observed effect levels as being: 

 ‘significant observed effect level: this being the level of noise exposure above 
which significant adverse effects on health and quality of life occur’; 

 ‘lowest observed adverse effect level: this being the level of noise exposure 
above which adverse effects on health and quality of life can be detected’; and 

 ‘no observed effect level: this is the level of noise exposure below which no effect 
at all on health or quality of life can be detected’.    

 
6.59 The Noise PPG guidance split the mitigation which can be put in place to reduce 

impact into four categories, these are engineering by reducing the generation of 
noise at the source, layout optimising the distance between the source and noise 
sensitive receptor, planning conditions obligations to restrict activities or specify 

Page 73



 

commrep/26 

26 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

specific levels and finally mitigating the impact on areas like to be affected. A further 
part of the Noise PPG is in regards to the effect of noise on wildlife, in particular 
stating consideration needs to be given to the potential effects of noisy development 
on international, national and locally designated sites of importance for biodiversity.  

 

7.0 Planning considerations 
 
7.1 Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that all 

planning authorities must determine each planning application in accordance with the 
planning policies that comprise the Development Plan unless material considerations 
indicate otherwise. In light of the abovementioned policies the main considerations in 
this instance are principle of the development, local amenity, landscape and visual 
impact, highways matters, cultural heritage and archaeology, ecology, soils, 
restoration and aftercare, planning conditions and section 106. 

  
Principle of the Development  

7.2  This planning application made under Section 73 of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 seeks consent for mineral extraction to continue until 31 December 2024 
which is seven years longer than previously consented (until 31 December 2017) to 
allow the extraction of the remaining reserves (estimated at approximately 0.475 
million tonnes as of 1 January 2017) and a small area of new extraction which would 
be approximately 371,000 tonnes of mineral. The applicant has confirmed that the 
permitted reserves were not fully extracted before the expiry of the permission on 31 
December 2017 because forecasted output from the quarry when the planning 
permission was originally granted exceeded actual output, primarily because of the 
drop in demand for quarry products during the recent recession. This proposal would 
enable the quarry operator to progress sand and gravel extraction, whilst also 
ensuring the completion of the final restoration scheme for the whole site by 31 
December 2025.  

 
7.3  The acceptability of the extraction of sand and gravel from land at Pallet Hill Quarry 

has been established by a number of historical planning permissions and most 
recently by the grant of planning permissions in C1/15/250/PA/F dated 7th November 
1994. Therefore, the principle of minerals extraction has been previously established 
and is therefore material to the consideration of this application that the permission 
for mineral extraction and processing operations at the application site has been 
implemented. The proposed minerals extension would benefit from the presence of 
existing infrastructure (weighbridge, offices and site access) currently in place at the 
quarry before it is removed and the land fully restored. The contribution the extended 
quarry would make towards the supply of sand and gravel would not be significant in 
the region but is still considered in compliance with Policy CP1 and Policy CP4 of the 
Richmondshire Local Plan Core Strategy due to the promotion of sustainable growth 
of key economic sectors. Policy CP7 of the Richmondshire Local Plan Core Strategy 
(2014) in terms of employment and the promotion of sustainable growth of key 
economic sectors also supports this proposed development. 

 

7.4 Policy M07 (Meeting concreting sand and gravel requirements) of the MWJP states 
that requirements for concreting sand and gravel will be met through existing 
permissions and the grant of permission on sites and areas identified in the Joint 
Plan for working. In the supporting text for policy M07 Pallet Hill is listed as one of the 
sites (Northwards Distribution) with permitted reserves of concreting sand and gravel 
as of 30 June 2016. Therefore, Pallet Hill Quarry’s contribution to supply and 
maintaining the landbank is noted. However, this small scale further extraction, 
currently under consideration, is not allocated in the Plan and the amount of 
concreting sand needed to meet requirements over the plan period is relatively small, 
nevertheless PPG for minerals indicates that there is no maximum landbank level 

Page 74

http://randd.defra.gov.uk/Default.aspx?Menu=Menu&Module=More&Location=None&ProjectID=18136&FromSearch=Y&Publisher=1&SearchText=effects


 

commrep/27 

27 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

and applications must be decided on their own merits. The proposed extension is 
small but would release a viable reserve in an operating quarry which has had 
permission in the past. Therefore it is considered that the proposed development is in 
compliance with Policy M07 of the MWJP. Also relevant is MWJP policy M01 in 
regards to the Broad geographical approach to supply of aggregates which requires 
minerals sites where possible to be outside the national parks, areas of outstanding 
natural beauty and the city of York, which this proposal is in compliance with. 

 
7.5 The proposed extension is not allocated within the MWJP and Policy M10 in regards 

to unallocated extensions to existing quarry’s states proposals would be acceptable if 
the site is not in a National Park or an AONB, would not compromise the overall 
sustainable strategy for minerals and would be in general consistent with the 
direction of policies within the MWJP. It is considered that this proposal is in 
compliance with this policy and would make use of existing infrastructure on the site 
for minerals extraction before it is removed and the land fully restored, where it would 
be unlikely in the future to be economically viable in the future to extract this mineral 
on the restored site, after the sites infrastructure is removed. It is furthermore 
considered the proposed development is in compliance with D01 and D11 in regards 
to the presumption in favour of sustainable minerals developments which are 
proportionate to the scale and nature of the site, this is as the proposed extension of 
time and small scale extension would make use of an existing site and its 
infrastructure, while also avoiding a negative impact on local employment and a 
negative impact on the supply of sand and gravel from a site with a long history as a 
quarry. 

 
7.6 The NPPF (paragraph 209), recognises that a sufficient supply of material to support 

the country’s needs are required with minerals being essential to economic growth 
and in regards to paragraph 211 encourages Mineral Planning Authority’s to plan to 
maintain a 7 year landbank for sand and gravel. The MWJP Policy M04 adds to this 
stating this is to be maintained in northwards and southwards distribution areas. 
MWJP Policy M02 and M03 in regards to the provision and distribution of sand and 
gravel provision states 36.6 million tonnes is provided for the period to December 
2030 and the distribution is almost even between the north and south of the County. 
Therefore it is considered the principle of this development is consistent with the 
NPPF and in compliance with the Minerals and Waste Joint Plan. Although small the 
extension to the site would make a valuable contribution towards the supply of 
concreting sand in the County and to the main markets in the sub region.  

 
7.7 Therefore it is considered that the amendment to condition 2 in regards to time limits 

and condition 5 in regards to approved documents are acceptable in principle. In 
regards to condition 2 the extension of time is required to complete the originally 
approved extraction due to the prolonged period required to extract the stated 
minerals which in part was due to the economic downturn in 2007 when rates of 
extraction slowed, the extension of time would also allow further time to extract this 
new small area of extraction which would contribute to the sand and gravel landbank 
of the County Council. In relation to condition 5 it is considered appropriate to allow 
this condition to be amended to include the new extraction area and bring the plans 
up to modern standards from that submitted in in 1993. 

 
7.8 Landbanks are an important aspect of Government policy to ensure continuity of 

supply of minerals and support economic growth and provision of infrastructure. The 
contribution the continuation of quarrying at Pallet Hill would make towards a 
sufficient supply of sand and gravel in the region is consistent with national planning 
policy contained within the NPPF (paragraphs 209, 211 & 213) which advise weight to 
be given to the benefits of minerals extraction. As the proposal is considered in line 
with the Development Plan including Richmondshire Local Plan policies CP1, CP4 
and CP7 it is also consistent with the NPPF paragraph 11 because of the benefits of 

Page 75



 

commrep/28 

28 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

the application. The proposal is also in compliance with MWJP policies M01, M02, 
M03, M04, M07, M10, D01 and D11 in regards to the supply of sustainable minerals 
and waste development, however, any potential adverse impacts on the environment 
and amenity arising from the proposed extension need to be considered in detail and 
further material considerations are addressed in the subsequent sections of this 
report 

 
Principle of the Plant Site Specific Issues 

7.9 Since the grant of the original permission new houses now stand approximately 30 
metres south of the current plant site boundary and approximately 120 metres south 
of the operational plant site. In approving such developments, the District Council 
would have had to have had regard to the presence of the nearby established quarry 
which benefitted from an extant planning permission allowing mineral extraction and 
restoration. The potential impacts on the amenity of these residential properties is 
considered in later paragraphs below. In this instance the application includes 
significant geological investigation of the site and is further supported by the wider 
site being an active quarry and it is considered the information provided with the 
application is adequate in order to allow the determination of the application. In terms 
of the scale of the development and the location of the proposed quarry extension, 
this is located over 250 metres distance from the residential properties south of the 
quarry extraction area. It is acknowledged that the extension to mineral extraction 
would be a minor increase in the size of the quarry site within the landscape and it is 
considered that there would be appropriate mitigation measures in place to assist in 
visually screening the development during its operational phase and the plant site. 
The proposal would also not move any closer than the previously approved extraction 
area. Therefore the scale of development is considered acceptable and should be 
considered against its temporary nature and that it would assist the County Planning 
Authority’s role in securing a long-term supply of sand and gravel in the county. It is 
considered that the application is only a short term extension to the quarry working 
until the end 2024 for extraction and therefore its impacts would be short term as the 
site would be restored in full by the end of 2025. 

 
7.10 In regards to the plant site there is currently a further application to renew consent for 

the current access to the site which expired on the same date as the quarry (Ref. 
C1/19/00587/CM). This application is not currently subject to any objection from 
interested parties and therefore likely to be determined under delegation. It can also 
be confirmed that there are currently properties within St Paulinus Crescent which 
are within the red line boundary for this application brought to committee. These 
properties are located on the previous site access and the properties were built in 
approximately 2001, after the current site access was located further north. Due to 
this properties have been notified that this application includes land under their 
ownership as required by the Town and Country Planning (Development 
Management Procedure) Order 2015 Certificate under Article 14. These properties 
now have been classed as land excluded from the planning permission and would 
not be included in the legal agreement for the site.  

 
7.11 In addition to this it is also considered that the plant site for this application has also 

extended west outside the red line boundary of the application site. This extended 
area outside the red line boundary has been utilised since the site was first operated, 
without planning permission. As this extended area is within the ownership boundary 
of the site it is considered that this area can be controlled via condition. Therefore this 
area outside the red line boundary in the applicants control can be required to be 
restored as well as the rest of the plant site. In addition to this north of the plant site 
there is a further extant planning permission (Ref. C1/13/00295/CM) which has a red 
line boundary which overlaps into the current application permission. This is a 
separate operator which has its own restoration requirements, by December 2022. 
Therefore the applicant would not be restoring this other area which is being utilised 

Page 76



 

commrep/29 

29 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

by the separate operator. It is considered that the site has a complex site history but 
the three issues stated in the above paragraph can be sufficiently controlled via 
conditions and the S106 agreement through this application which gives the 
opportunity to review the existing permission and its conditions to bring these up to a 
satisfactory modern standard.  

 
Local Amenity (noise) 

7.12 The Environmental Statement (ES) contains an assessment of the potential noise 
impact (Chapter 9) at noise sensitive locations as a result of the continued operation 
of Pallet Hill Quarry. It is noted that an objection made reference to concerns about 
noise disturbance arising from the continuation of operations at the plant site. The 
noise assessment within the ES was undertaken at four locations one north of the 
extraction site at Catterick racecourse (Field House), one on Willow View to the south 
of the extraction site, one south of the plant site at St Paulinus Crescent and one 
south of the plant site on Bishops Close. The ES states the predicted noise levels for 
the site would not exceed the background noise more than 10dB(A) and are within 
the maximum limit. The ES concludes that the quarry would be able to continue to 
operate within the controls of the noise limits set by the previous planning conditions 
and relevant government guidance, which include ensuring machinery is well 
maintained, avoid unnecessary horn usage, keeping internal haul roads well 
maintained, limited hours of operation and starting all plant equipment sequentially. 
The operational layout, location of the processing plant, route of internal haul roads 
and location of screening bunds and fences have been designed to offer maximum 
protection from potential impacts, and to protect the amenity at nearby residential 
receptors. 

 
7.13 Whilst the proposals would involve undertaking plant site activity near to the new 

residential properties of Bishops Way and the properties building approximately in 
2001 on St Paulinus Crescent, it should be noted that the continued workings would 
take place over a relatively short period, with total activity to completion of restoration 
occurring by 2025. It is considered that main area of concern is the plant site, the 
operational site north of the road, where extraction takes place has not been the 
subject of any complaints. This area of the site is significantly further away from any 
residential properties and has the same noise mitigation techniques utilised, the two 
relevant noise monitoring locations for this area are Field House 340 metres to the 
north west and Willow View 280 metres to the south east. The Richmondshire 
Environmental Health Officer states the assessment of noise in Chapter 9 of the ES 
is capable of being operated in compliance with conditions 22 and 23 of the previous 
permission (ref. C1/15/250/PA/F), further stating the operations would not exceed the 
background noise level of LA90, 1h) by more than 10 dB(A) and would be within the 
maximum 55 dB(A) LAeq,1h limit outlined in current minerals planning practice 
guidance.  

 
7.14 The relevant Richmondshire Local Plan policy is CP3 (c) and CP4 point 3 in regards 

to sustainable development and sites for development which promotes health, well-
being and safety of the population and requires developments to not cause significant 
adverse impact on amenity. It is considered that the proposed development is in 
compliance with these two Richmondshire Local Plan policies as the proposed 
development does not seek to alter the previously approved hours of operation, 
maximum noise levels or any other operational processes/practises, with the annual 
output from the site also not increasing. Furthermore the continued imposition of a 
maximum noise level and restricted hours of operation would ensure that the site 
continues to operate so as to ensure that the impacts of noise is mitigated so as not 
to result in environmental harm. Therefore, subject to appropriate control and 
monitoring of noise, with a requirement for implementation of additional mitigation 
measures if necessary, it is not considered that any unacceptable impact due to 
noise would arise. 

Page 77



 

commrep/30 

30 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

 
7.15 In light of the above regards to the plant site it is considered that predicted noise 

levels arising from the development would remain within acceptable limits as defined 
in national planning guidance and the unavoidable noise from the site can be 
controlled and mitigated to minimise the impact. It is furthermore considered in 
compliance with Policy D02 of the MWJP is also relevant in relation to noise which 
seeks to safeguard communities and residents form unacceptable impacts in regards 
to noise. It is considered that the mitigation in place through bunding and the mature 
tree planting between the plant site and the residential properties is sufficient to 
safeguard residents from any unacceptable impacts from the site. Furthermore the 
addition of relevant conditions to the application in regards to noise would sufficiently 
mitigate the impact. 

 
7.16 In addition, the hours of working are defined by condition and would not extend 

beyond those previously permitted. The requirement for all plant, machinery and 
vehicles used to be fitted with effective noise attenuating equipment to be regularly 
maintained could be carried forward should planning permission be forthcoming and 
where earth mobile plant is proposed to be operating within Phase 6, non-audible 
reverse warning alarm systems could be deployed (see Condition 24). This planning 
application proposes to maintain the previous application’s minerals management 
operating practices at the site, including hours of operation or methods of working. In 
regards to the NPPF the relevant paragraph is 185 which requires decisions to 
ensure development is appropriate for its location taking into effect the cumulative 
impact on health, living conditions and the natural environment, including mitigating 
and reducing the impact on noise, identifying tranquil areas and limiting light pollution. 
In this instance it is considered the proposal is consistent with the principles of the 
NPPF paragraph 185 in relation to amenity protection and the guidance on noise 
contained within the PPG, which seek to ensure that there are no significant effects 
upon amenity arising from developments, because of the mitigation provided by the 
operator and the noise levels being able to be maintained to a level which would not 
have significant adverse impacts on health and quality of life.  

 
7.17 On the basis that such mitigation and controls are secured by the imposition of 

planning conditions, it is considered that the proposed development would not result 
in significant adverse noise impacts upon any local residential property. As such, it is 
considered that whilst the current proposal represents the second occasion that the 
operator has sought to extend the length of time within which the development shall 
be completed, this is considered unlikely to result in a significant adverse impact 
upon the amenity of local residents living in proximity to the site or to any nearby 
village. This is considered to be consistent with the principles of the NPPF in relation 
to amenity protection, the guidance on noise contained within the PPG, which seek to 
ensure that there are no significant effects upon amenity arising from developments, 
adding further weight in support of this application. In light of the above it is 
considered that predicted noise levels arising from the development would remain 
within acceptable limits as defined in national planning guidance and the unavoidable 
noise from the site can be controlled and mitigated to minimise the impact in 
compliance with the amenity protection elements of CP3(c) and CP4 point 3 of the 
Richmondshire Local Plan Core Strategy (2014). It is also considered that the 
proposed development is in compliance of Policy D02 of the MWJP in regards to 
local amenity and cumulative impacts as it has been demonstrated there would be no 
unacceptable impacts. 

 
Local amenity (air quality and dust) 

7.18 The applicant has provided an air quality assessment within Chapter 10 of the ES. 
The assessment considers the site and surrounding area and existing air quality and 
the effect of meteorological conditions. The assessment also identifies the potential 
sources of dust and considers the emission magnitude and evaluates risk. It sets out 

Page 78



 

commrep/31 

31 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

the proposed prevention and control mitigation measures, which include limiting drop 
heights, site speed limits, progressive restoration, plant crushers and screeners using 
water throughout the process, HGV’s requiring to be sheeted with arriving and 
leaving the site and a road sweeper being deployed when necessary. The 
assessment acknowledges that dust can be generated from the movement of the 
minerals around the site and from earthworks operations, such as soil stripping and 
restoration. In terms of processing this could continue to be restricted to only taking 
place within the plant area (see Condition 25) should Members be minded to grant 
permission. The ES includes an assessment of the nearest residential receptors and 
states that Bishops Way and St Paulinus Crescent have a slight adverse effect 
through dust and Willows View and Field House have a negligible effect from dust. 
The ES concludes that the mitigation would minimise the impact of dust and that the 
proposed continuation of the site is unlikely to cause a significant decrease in air 
quality in the locality.  

 
7.19 The relevant Development Plan policies against which to assess the proposed 

development’s effects associated with dust and its potential for significant adverse 
impact upon both the local community and the natural environment have been 
outlined in Section 6.0 of this report. Richmondshire Local Plan policy CP3 is relevant 
as it ensure proposals do not have a significant adverse impact on the amenity of 
neighbours and required an air quality/dust assessment with mitigation measures to 
ensure there are no significant effects. 

 
7.20 The Environmental Health Officer responded stating air quality assessment shows 

that the proposal is not likely to cause an exceedance of PM10 and PM25 Air Quality 
Objectives in the area. The consultee further states dust on the site is currently 
controlled through condition no.20 of Decision Notice C1/15/250/PA/F dated 10th 
November 1993 and therefore dust mitigation measures should already be in place 
and are to be carried forward to this permission. It is proposed that the dust 
management condition (Condition 20) is updated to include the dust management 
plan which is appendix 6.3 of the Environmental Statement. On the basis that such 
measures are secured through condition and continue to be implemented at the site, 
it is considered that the impact of dust upon local amenity is likely to be minimal. This 
is considered to be consistent with the guidance on dust control contained within the 
PPG in regards to air quality, along with the principles of the NPPF Paragraph 185 in 
relation to the protection of local amenity. Due to the consultation response and the 
air quality assessment in the ES and the mitigation measures in place it is also 
considered that the proposed development is in compliance with Richmondshire 
Policy CP3 as there would be no significant effects and the required information in 
relation to a dust assessment and mitigation measures have been received. 

 
7.21 With regard to the impacts on local air quality from traffic emissions it is noted that 

the application does not propose an increase in HGV traffic above the existing level 
and the traffic generated is not considered to be significant in terms of the air quality 
impact. The potential for dust generating sources have been recognised and 
assessed and there have been no objections raised by the District EHO. It is 
considered that the dust and air quality can be sufficiently controlled and mitigated to 
minimise the impact in compliance with paragraph 211 of the NPPF and policy 
CP3(c&e) of the Richmondshire Local Plan Core Strategy (2014). It is also 
considered that the proposed development is in compliance with policy D02 in 
regards to local amenity and cumulative impacts as there would be no unacceptable 
impacts upon residential amenity. Policy D02 of the MWJP is also relevant in relation 
to dust which seeks to safeguard communities and residents form unacceptable 
impacts in regards to dust. 

 
7.22 For the reasons detailed above, whilst the objection in regards to noise and the 

impacts of further extraction is noted, it is considered that the proposed development 
Page 79



 

commrep/32 

32 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

would not result in any significant adverse impacts upon residential amenity or on 
human health. Therefore, with unavoidable noise from the site being able to be 
controlled and mitigated to minimise the impact and dust also being able to be 
successfully managed and mitigated through conditions, the proposal is consistent 
with paragraph 211 of the NPPF and policy CP3 and CP4 of the Richmondshire 
Local Plan. It is also considered that the proposed development is in compliance with 
MWJP Policy D02 in regards to local amenity and cumulative impacts. 

 
Landscape and Visual Impact 

7.23 Chapter 7 of the ES assessed the landscape and visual effects of the proposal on the 
wider landscape and surrounding residential properties and assessed that there will  
be no significant adverse effects from continued operation of the quarry. The quarry is 
not situated within any nationally designated landscape, and the landscape and visual 
impact assessment (LVIA) has not identified any significant effects or cumulative 
effects on the local countryside as a result of the continuation of working within the 
existing quarry or the further small scale extraction area. The ES includes a site 
assessment has taken into account an assessment of 4 residential receptors Field 
House, Grandstand Cottage, properties of Willow View and properties of Bishops 
Close. In regards to these receptors Grandstand Cottage and Willow View would 
experience no adverse visual effects due to vegetation screening, in regards to Field 
house there is the potential for a ‘slight adverse’ impact during winter months for a 
temporary period while machinery is moved along the boundary and in regards to St 
Paulinus Crescent and Bishops Close which are in proximity to the plant site some 
properties could potentially have a view of the access road to the quarry giving ‘slight 
adverse’ impacts and vehicle movement but are well screened from the actual plant 
site. Once restoration is complete both these properties would have ‘slight beneficial’ 
impacts.  

 
7.24 The control of the plant site restoration, phasing and woodland protection measures 

to be completed could be controlled by condition. The previous restoration scheme 
was approved as part of planning permission reference C1/15/250/PA/F (granted 7th 
November 1994) covering the area where mineral extraction is due to continue as 
part of this planning application, however did not cover the new area of extraction 
which was to be left as an agricultural field. This permission has expired and the 
current application is to extend this time period so this extraction can be completed 
and a small further area of extraction and restoration. The landform would be formed 
from overburden and the replacement of soils taken from the application area 

 
7.25 In regards to the visual impact of the site, it can be split in two from the north of the 

road with the current and proposed extraction area and south of the road which 
includes the plant site. In regards to the northern extraction area it is considered that 
the planting put in place initially to screen the site from Leeming Lane (A6136) to the 
west of the current extraction site has been successful and continues to protect the 
site from significant external views. The extraction area north of the road is very well 
screened from residential properties to the south, the boundary to the west is well 
screened with trees to the north and west with the river swale beyond. In the short 
term there could be some slight landscape impact on the area with the working area 
being closer to the road (Leeming Lane) and the views from Field House however 
this would be limited to winter months and would not any more visually intrusive than 
the currently approved scheme. The short term nature of the further extraction only 
being permitted until December 2024 and allows the restoration to be completed to 
improve the visual impact of the site.  

 
7.26 In regards to the plant site to the south of the road, although this is a more open area 

with views from the racecourse to the north and the re-aligned A1, the site, again, is 
an established part of the landscape and this temporary extension of time to would 
allow it to be fully restored and bring it to a nature conservation end use. The 

Page 80



 

commrep/33 

33 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

screening, and some previously completed restoration, has unfortunately not been as 
successful as that to the north of the road on the current extraction site. This 
application gives the opportunity for an updated plant site restoration plan to be 
considered, as it is unknown whether the plan on file was previously approved. This 
would give the opportunity to strengthen the screening of the site to the north of the 
plant site and to have a new scheme implemented which would bring significant 
benefits to the landscape character of the area. To the south of the plant site is 
significant screening woodland which has been in place since the quarry became 
operational although when previously approved this screened the site from properties 
significantly further away than Bishops Close and St Paulinus Crescent. 

 
7.27 It is not considered that the extension of time would significantly alter the impact the 

site which has been an established part of the visual landscape for over 20 years, it is 
considered that there is considerable screening to the site on both the plant site and 
the extraction site and that this extension of time for a short period in terms of 
minerals extraction would allow for the restoration of the quarry to be completed. 
Furthermore would allow the nature conservation and biodiversity improvements be 
implemented to mitigate the current impact during extraction, therefore concluding in 
an overall beneficial scheme in terms of the impact on the landscape and 
biodiversity.  

 
7.28 Further separate consideration is required of the new extraction area which brings 

quarrying closer to the A6136 and is in proximity to the Grandstand Cottage and Field 
House. The LVIA considers that the proposed extension to the quarry could have a 
slight adverse effect on Field House due to the proposed further extraction area. It is 
though considered that the after restoration there would be a slight beneficial effect, 
during operations the impact can be mitigated through the management of the site 
and conditions. Furthermore the tree’s which were planted on the site boundary next 
to the A6136 west of the site for the original application, will also be in place to 
screen the further proposed extraction area.  

 
7.29 Richmondshire Local Plan policies relevant to the landscape and visual impact of the 

proposed development are SP3, CP3, CP4 and CP13. Policy SP3 relates to 
protecting environmental assets and character with the conservation or improvement 
of the rural environment. Policy CP3 seeks to promote the character and quality of 
the local landscapes and wider countryside and development which would 
significantly harm the natural and built environment would not be permitted. Policy 
CP4 states development should be of an appropriate nature to secure the 
sustainability of each settlements in the hierarchy and be well related to existing 
facilities not adversely impacting the character of the settlement and important views. 
The final relevant Richmondshire Local Plan policy is CP13 promotes a high quality 
design of landscaping which are visually attractive, functional, low maintenance and 
enhance the local context of the area. The site is an established quarry and the on-
going mineral extraction operations within the quarry successfully mitigate the impact 
of the quarry, which fits in well with the scale of Catterick village with no significant 
impacts on the character of the area or the village itself, which is considered in 
compliance with policy CP4. It is further in compliance with SP3 as the restoration of 
the site would bring the site improve the biodiversity of the area and the extraction 
would have limited short term impacts on the environment which can be mitigated. 
The proposal is also in compliance with CP3 and CP13 as it would not have a 
significant impact on amenity or affect the quality of any natural resources including 
air quality, soil quality and water quality, would not significantly harm the natural and 
built environment and is considered to be a high quality design in terms of 
landscapes. 

 
7.30 The NPPF seeks to ensure that developments are sympathetic to local character, 

including the surrounding built environment, historic environment and landscape 
Page 81



 

commrep/34 

34 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

setting. Furthermore, the NPPF indicates that planning decisions should contribute to 
and enhance the natural and local environment by, amongst other things, protecting 
and enhancing valued landscapes and recognising the intrinsic character and beauty 
of the countryside. This is further supported by NPPF Paragraph 174 which requires 
planning authorities to make decisions which contribute to and enhance the natural 
and local environment by protecting landscapes, recognising the character of the 
countryside, minimising impacts on biodiversity, preventing pollution and remediating 
despoiled land. The NPPF requires planning decisions to aim to conserve and 
enhance the natural environment. The impacts of the proposed development are 
considered to be capable of being adequately mitigated by the measures proposed by 
the applicant and are considered capable of being acceptable in land-use planning 
terms should appropriate levels of control be capable of being imposed through 
suitably worded planning conditions. This is further supported through the delivery 
vehicle of a S106 Legal Agreement capable of providing the mechanism to address 
the concerns from consultees in regards to long term management. It is considered 
that the development which comprises the continuation of mineral extraction within 
the existing quarry until 31 December 2024 and restoration until 31 December 2025 
for a further one year would not have an unacceptable or harmful impact on the 
landscape character of the area and is consistent with the NPPF. 

 
7.31 The proposal is also assessed against Policy D06 (landscape) of the MWJP. It is 

considered the proposal is in compliance with policy as there are no significant views 
into the site or detrimental impacts on the local landscape from the development, with 
the slight impacts being mitigated through the imposition of conditions. Furthermore, 
the proposal is also considered to be in compliance with Policy D10 of the MWJP as 
the restoration will be linked to the extant permission area and would be completed 
progressively and on a phased basis, with only onsite materials being used to 
facilitate the restoration. ‘  

 
7.32 The County Principal Landscape Architect is generally satisfied with the scheme after 

further information was submitted to clarify issues with the restoration scheme and 
long term management of the site, the landscape officer requested a condition in 
regards to the restoration of the plant area of the site with an updated restoration 
scheme due to the previous scheme lacking in detail and not having been 
implemented successfully. In addition to this the Yorkshire Wildlife Trust and 
Ecologists state the application site due to its proximity to the Swale Lakes SSSI its 
restoration will be of benefit of not just at a site level, but also at a landscape level 
being very valuable to the wildlife in the area and it is therefore crucial that the 
extension of time is given so a high quality restoration and aftercare scheme can be 
achieved. 

 
7.33 In conclusion this proposal for an extension of time and further area of extraction 

would not significantly alter the character of the site or have a significant visual 
impact further than the approved minerals extraction and plant site. The scheme 
limits the effect of operations upon the character and visual appearance of the local 
landscape and surrounding area. It is considered that the previously approved 
restoration scheme, along with the extraction area off extraction added remains the 
most appropriate method of achieving an improved standard of landscape for the 
site. In terms of an updated plant site restoration plan this is capable of being 
conditioned to any permission so a high quality scheme is approved. The restoration 
of the site would result in a positive impact upon the character of the site and wider 
surrounding area. The closure of the quarry without this extension of time would not 
allow the approved restoration scheme to be completed in its entirety to the highest 
level and whilst it is acknowledged that Paragraph 211 of the NPPF encourages 
“restoration and aftercare at the earliest opportunity” it also requires it to be “carried 
out to high environmental standards”. It is considered the short term nature of the 
working would lead to a long term benefit for the area. It is also considered the 

Page 82



 

commrep/35 

35 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

proposed development is consistent with the NPPF paragraphs 174, 180 and the 
PPG for the natural environment. In terms of policy compliance, it is considered that 
the proposed restoration and aftercare plans would protect the environment and 
those living within the vicinity of the site from potential landscape and visual impacts. 
The proposal is also in compliance with policies D02, D06, D07 and D11 of the 
Mineral and Waste Joint Plan. 

 
Soils, Restoration and Aftercare 

7.34 While the majority of the remaining area to be extracted has already been worked out 
and the soils replaced, the proposal includes a continuation of good practice in terms 
of the handling of soils during stripping and their storage prior to restoration at the 
end of extraction to ensure their long term integrity and viability for future habitat 
creation in the restoration scheme. This is capable of being secured by planning 
condition (see Conditions 7-12) with no additional soils being required to be imported. 

 
7.35 The previously approved restoration scheme for the Pallet Hill Quarry is shown on 

drawing L/1034/17/4 dated July 1990 which was approved as part of planning 
permission reference: C1/15/250/PA/F (granted 7th November 1994). A detailed 5-
year aftercare scheme was also approved as part of the discharge of planning 
conditions of planning permission reference: C1/15/250/PA/F (granted 7th November 
1994). The proposed restoration scheme for this application has been amended to 
integrate into the existing scheme. The proposed development seeking the final small 
area of extraction and its restoration is considered to be an appropriate integration 
with the approved restoration landform for this site as demonstrated within Appendix 
E attached to this report.  

 
7.36 The site is to be restored to a mixture of nature conservation habitats, including 

grazed open parkland, lakes, marginal vegetation, wet woodland and neutral 
grassland. The restoration plan confirms the final shape of the lakes, the lake edge 
planting, the nature of habitat creation on the land surrounding the lakes and the 
provision of public footpaths. In addition, it is proposed that existing hedgerows and 
woodland would be enhanced. The restoration design and implementation is guided 
by the Restoration and Aftercare Management Plan which incorporates a bird 
management plan which influences the size, shape and edge profiling of the 
remaining lakes. 

 
7.37 The restored site would be subject to the statutory 5-year aftercare period, after 

which the applicant has committed to longer term management of the site for a 
further 35 years by an appropriate body for nature conservation, public access and 
recreation. This long term management scheme is to be secured through a deed of 
variation to the S106 agreement. The condition in relation to the five year aftercare 
requirement of the site has been updated to include the details previously approved 
in the document Ref. No ref. Outline Agricultural Five Year Aftercare Scheme, dated 
May 1996) and the updated Outline Management Plan (dated September 2020). This 
is considered to be consistent with the principles of the NPPF which seeks the 
effective restoration of mineral sites at the earliest possible opportunity and as 
outlined within Paragraph 211 of the NPPF.  

 
7.38 The restoration of the plant site was approved through the previous restoration 

scheme as part of planning permission reference C1/15/250/PA/F (granted 7th 
November 1994). Condition 14 of the permission for the new site access approved on 
13 March 1997 (C1/15/227) required the submission of a detailed landscaping 
scheme prior to implementation. The northern section of the plant site has been 
partially restored, however it is considered that planting in this area has failed and is 
not in compliance with the previous plant site restoration scheme. Therefore, this 
planting would be required to be re-placed to complete the restoration scheme. Due 
to this, it is considered that a condition should be attached to any permission 

Page 83



 

commrep/36 

36 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

requiring the applicant to submit a new plant site restoration scheme, which outlines 
the restoration plans for the land under their control. Further to this, looking at the 
application boundary, it is considered the plant site has extended beyond previously 
approved red line boundary. The applicant has confirmed that the land the plant site 
has extended into is still within the applicant’s control and therefore the condition in 
regards to plant site restoration capable of including the restoration of this area of 
land. MWJP policy D06 as the intended use is agriculture, nature conservation and 
recreation which would be the best practicable use of the land. It also includes 
carrying it out at the nearest possible time, in line with the current permissions for the 
restoration of the site.  

 
7.39 Richmondshire Local Plan policy CP3 point f. states the requirement for the 

protection of best and most versatile agricultural land, the policy also in point e states 
proposals should protect the quality of natural resources including land. In regards to 
soils, while this further area of extraction does not include land that is best and most 
versatile, in this instance, the working would, nevertheless, lead to a permanent loss 
of around 0.54 hectares of moderate quality ALC grade 3b land to accommodate the 
proposed lake and the margins of the site. Of the 2.31 hectares of land impacted by 
this proposed development, there would be a temporary loss of 1.77 hectares of 
agricultural production, which, after restoration, would be reinstated to lowland 
grassland with production for grazing using a full soil profile. The agricultural land to 
be reinstated is stated to be restored to at least ALC subgrade quality 3b which is 
capable of being controlled via condition. It is considered that although that the 
proposal is in compliance with Richmondshire Local Plan policy CP3 as although the 
land is not ALC grade 3a the soils and land should still be sufficiently protected. 
Policy D10 and D12 of the MWJP is also relevant in relation to reclamation and 
aftercare which seeks to require restoration to be carried out to the highest standard 
appropriate to the locations scale. Criterion i) of Part of MWJP Policy D10 requires “In 
areas of best and most versatile agricultural land, prioritising the protection and 
enhancement of soils and the long term potential to create areas of best and most 
versatile land during reclamation of the site”. In regards to MWJP Policy D12 
proposals should seek to protect BMV land from unnecessary and irreversible loss, 
with high quality aftercare and proposals are required to demonstrate that all 
practicable steps will be taken to conserve and manage soil in a sustainable way.  

 
7.40 In granting the previous permissions there was a recognition of the benefits of the 

restoration scheme proposed by the applicant. This application does not alter the 
restoration scheme, but would allow for its completion in full after which it would be 
subject to the previously agreed aftercare management period. There are no 
objections from the County Principal Landscape Architect, County Ecologist, Natural 
England or the Yorkshire Wildlife Trust and, through this application, there is 
presented an opportunity to review mitigation and restoration progress via the 
Section 106 legal agreement. It is therefore considered that the proposed restoration 
on the site is capable of being achieved to a high standard and, were it to be 
approved, would be subject to extended aftercare management. It is considered to be 
consistent with the NPPF and PPG Natural Environment and policy CP3 the 
Richmondshire Local Plan Core Strategy (2014). It is also considered that the 
proposed development is in compliance with MWJP policies D02, D06, D07, D10 and 
D12. 

 
Cultural Heritage and Archaeology 

7.41 This is assessed within Chapter 12 of the ES, which states the nearest listed building 
to the site are Catterick Bridge approximately 270m to the west which is grade II 
listed and a further 5 structures beyond it further west at Catterick Bridge itself, which 
is Grade II* listed. The site is also not visible from the Church of St Anne, the historic 
core of the village or conservation area. The site is also in proximity to the scheduled 
ancient monument focused around Catterick Bridge and the racecourse, however the 

Page 84



 

commrep/37 

37 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

ES considers the impact of the proposal on this to be neutral and the plant site being 
operational in proximity to this since the 1970’s. The ES concludes in light of the 
intervening land, topography, bunds and planting, the continuation of mineral 
extraction and further area of extraction would not have an adverse impact upon the 
setting of any heritage assets. The County Archaeologist has confirmed that there 
are no objections to the extension of time and further extraction, subject to the 
applicant undertaking archaeological recording secured by condition (Condition 35 
and 36) included on any permission granted. 

 
7.42 The relevant Development Plan policies against which to assess the proposed 

development’s effects associated with potential heritage and cultural impacts have 
been outlined in Section 6.0 of this report. The Richmondshire Local Plan policy 
relevant to this element of the proposed development is CP12 in regards to 
protecting natural and man-made assets in the area, whether designated or not. The 
aim of this policy is to ensure a heritage asset and its setting is protected along with 
the features which contribute to its historic interest. It goes on to state harm to 
elements of the asset would only be permitted where there is a compelling reason 
and opportunities are sought to outweigh this harm. It is also assessed against policy 
D08 (Historic Environment) of the MWJP which aims for minerals developments to 
conserve and where possible enhance heritage assets. Relevant to this application is 
criterion three which states that proposals that would result in less than substantial 
harm to a designated heritage asset would be permitted where this is outweighed by 
the public benefit of the proposal.   

 
7.43 In this instance, it is considered that no heritage assets designated or non-designated 

would be impacted through this proposed development. The development is well 
screened from all designated assets including Catterick Bridge to the north, all assets 
in Catterick Village and the Catterick Village Conservation Area. The NPPF requests 
in paragraph 199 that the impact of a proposed development on the significance of a 
designated heritage asset is considered in any application and great weight should 
be given to that assets conservation. In this instance the proposed development 
would have no impact on Catterick Bridge Hotel, Catterick Bridge and the Church of 
St Anne and would not result in any harm to these heritage assets due to the location 
of the site and screening put in place to protect the amenity of the area. It could be 
the Scheduled ancient monument comprising of the buried remains of a roman 
military base and settlement would be harmed by the continuation of the use of the 
plant site to the south. In regards to paragraph 200 of the NPPF when considering 
the impacts any harm should be clearly and convincingly justified. Paragraph 202 
further states that where this will lead to less than substantial harm this harm should 
be weighed against the public benefits of the proposed development. In this instance 
it is considered the continued working would have less than substantial harm on the 
scheduled ancient monument and is considered to have a neutral impact on the 
heritage asset. This is supported by there being no extraction in proximity to the 
buried site and that Historic England have no objection to the proposed development. 
It is therefore considered that the proposal would have less than substantial harm on 
the scheduled ancient monument and the public benefit of the need for minerals 
extraction and optimising the use of an existing site is considered to outweigh this 
less than substantial harm on the scheduled ancient monument. 

 
7.44 The NYCC archaeologist has been involved in the consultation process and has 

recommended an archaeological watching brief as mitigation to confirm any previous 
history of the site and protect its value, which is too attached to any permission as a 
condition (draft condition 35 of the schedule). Therefore it is considered that the 
impact of the proposal upon cultural heritage assets have been fully assessed and 
appropriate mitigation included in accordance with policy set down in respect of 
heritage assets within the NPPF and in compliance with Policy CP12 of the 
Richmondshire Local Plan Core Strategy (2014). It is also considered that the 

Page 85



 

commrep/38 

38 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

proposed development is in compliance with Policy D08 in regards to the Historic 
Environment. 

 
Habitats, nature conservation and protected species 

7.45 The application was not initially submitted with a chapter of the Environmental 
Statement in regards to ecology; however, this was submitted after the consultation 
response from the NYCC Ecologists. This states the main habitats on site are arable 
land, reseeded grassland and ponds. The hedgerows on site are considered priority 
habitats and are considered a feature of local importance, with the report stating that 
while the ponds are of least local importance, they do provide bat foraging habitat. 
The ecological impact assessment in the ES Addendum Chapter, stated that 
continued quarrying is capable of being undertaken with no adverse negative effects 
impact upon local ecology and with no anticipated impacts on the Swale Lakes SSSI 
to the south of the site.  

 
7.46 With respect to the Swale Lakes SSSI, this is of importance in regards to breeding 

bids and large numbers of wintering wildfowl and waders. In regards to protected 
species firstly, in regards to bats, at the site the boundary, hedgerows to be retained 
provide large numbers of roosting features and the water bodies provide good quality 
foraging habitat; although there are no structures on site with bat roost potential. The 
ecological survey states no signs of otters were found at the site; however, after the 
completion of the scheme, otter are likely to visit the fishing ponds. It further states 
the Great Crested Newt potential was low with disturbed ground through the existing 
quarrying. In regards to birds, two buzzard nests were located on the site and a large 
number of water birds were using the large lake, including mallard, Canada geese 
and oyster catchers.  

 
7.47 It is considered that the mitigation measures currently in place through the original 

permission are still appropriate and that they have been embedded into the approved 
restoration scheme for the site. The restoration scheme for the main site area has not 
been significantly altered and is considered to still be an appropriate form of restoring 
the site as it provides feature for bats, birds and amphibians, with the restored 
habitats around the edge of the quarry providing a good quality of habitat. At present, 
a significant amount of this restoration has been completed to a high standard. 
Mitigation for the scheme is required to lessen the impact of the operational phase of 
the proposed development limiting the impact of noise, light and vehicle movements 
on the site and increased disturbance around the site. Conditions in regards to 
vehicle movements, noise and soils are to be added to any permission to limit this 
impact during the extraction phase of the development. The County Ecologist and 
Yorkshire Wildlife Trust have stated in their respective consultation responses that 
they are happy to see a biodiversity action plan, as the application site is close to the 
Swale Lakes SSSI and a number of sites of importance for nature conservation. It is 
considered that the biodiversity action plan and the long term management of the site 
are therefore important for the wildlife of the area.  

 
7.48 Relevant extant Development Plan policies against which to assess the proposed 

development’s affect upon the natural environment including protected species are 
Richmondshire District Local Plan SP3 and CP4 in regards to rural sustainability, 
protecting and enhancing environmental assets and character, there are specific 
requirements to deliver development appropriate to the scale and nature of a 
settlement and an effective response to climate change and sustainable 
development. Policy CP4 is also relevant as it requires development to conserve and 
enhance natural assets, with proper management with biodiversity, geodiversity and 
the landscape of the area being maintained. The relevant part of the Minerals and 
Waste Joint Plan is D07 in regards to biodiversity and geodiversity which permits 
proposals which can demonstrate there are no unacceptable impacts on biodiversity, 

Page 86



 

commrep/39 

39 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

SSSI or sites of local interests. Further stating developments should only be 
permitted where the benefits clearly outweigh the impacts on the SSSI. 

 
7.49 The restoration of the site would continue to be carried out in a progressive manner 

which would lessen the impact on the area. Significant beneficial outcomes are 
anticipated through the delivery on restoration of new habitats, including lakes, as 
stated by the Yorkshire Wildlife trust and Ecologists in there consultation responses. 
The restoration scheme is assessed as likely to improve habitat value for key species 
including birds, bats and amphibians. It is considered that this mitigation strategy in 
regards to protected species. 
 

7.50 The mitigation measures put forward by the applicant would be implemented and 
maintained during the course of the development and with this the development 
would overall have a positive impact on biodiversity and habitats after restoration. 
With benefits for the SSSI 500 metres to the south and nature conservation being 
fulfilled on completion of the restoration on the site. Those effects likely to arise 
during extraction are considered to be capable of being controlled by the use of 
appropriately worded planning conditions were planning permission to be 
forthcoming. In regards to the required conditions, these include a condition 
regarding the ecological mitigation measures within the ES being adhered to. It is, 
however, considered important that long term management of the created or 
protected habitats is set out in the long term after-care management plan (35 years) 
secured by a legal agreement which provides detailed information on the appropriate 
care for these habitats and for their long term management beyond the operational 
life of the quarry. The mitigation in the form of conditions and the S106 agreement for 
an extended aftercare period would safeguard the nature conservation on site and 
would ensure proposals do not give rise to unacceptable environmental impacts. 

 
7.51 As stated above a significant amount of restoration has already been completed on 

site and it is considered restoration measures, would give rise to a benefit in 
ecological receptors identified, with it strengthening the Swale Corridor. Further 
stating the Swale Lakes SSSI would experience a negligible impact from continued 
operation of the quarry and Natural England have advised that the SSSI does not 
represent a constraint in determining this application. The Ecologists in their 
consultation response state the proposed quarry extension is of a low nature 
conservation value and adequate checks have demonstrated there is a likely 
absence of protected species and recommend a condition to secure the mitigation 
measures of the ecology chapter of the Environmental Statement. It is considered 
that the development would safeguard sites of nature conservation interest and 
protected species and, in the longer term, restoration has the potential to enhance 
biodiversity in the area. It is therefore considered that the development would be 
consistent with paragraphs 174, 180, 185, 186 and 188 of the NPPF and Planning 
Policy Guidance for the natural environment, which require the protection and 
enhancement of sites of biodiversity value and would mitigate the potential impacts 
on the natural environment. This is also in compliance with Richmondshire Local Plan 
Policies SP3 and CP4 as the proposed development would be a sustainable rural 
use of the land that would allow for the sites long term future to be protected as well 
as enhancing an environmental asset in the area. 

 
 7.52 Policies SP3, CP3 and CP4 of the Richmondshire Local Plan Core Strategy (2014). 

The proposal is also in compliance with MWJP policy D07 as it is considered that the 
development would safeguard sites of nature conservation interest and protected 
species and in the longer term restoration has the potential to enhance biodiversity in 
the area. It is therefore considered that the development would be in accordance with 
the NPPF and Planning Policy Guidance for the natural environment. 

 
 

Page 87



 

commrep/40 

40 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

Flood risk and the water environment 
7.53 Pallet Hill Quarry is located on the floodplain of the River Swale which lies at its 

closed point 50 metres to the north of the site and continuing along the western 
boundary of the site. The ES (Chapter 6) has assessed the potential impact on the 
water resources within the surrounding area and concluded that the proposal does 
not include any permanent land raising and all temporary soil bunds would be 
removed, with no proposals to increase impermeable surfaces with the site. The 
application is also accompanied by a Flood Risk Assessment which concludes that 
the risk of flooding is considered low. The site, the nearest residential properties and 
the surrounding road network all lie several metres above the height of the river and 
no change is proposed to the height of the banks of the river to result in an increase 
in flood potential in this area. 

 
7.54 The relevant Development Plan policies against which to assess the proposed 

development’s effects associated with potential flood risk impacts have been outlined 
in Section 6.0 of this report. It is also assessed against policies D02 (local amenity) 
and D09 (water environment) of the MWJP which have the aims of safeguarding 
communities from emissions to land and water and states proposals are required to 
demonstrate no unacceptable impacts to surface and groundwater, taking into 
account mitigation. These policies indicate that water resources will be protected 
from the harmful effects of development and proposals would not be permitted where 
it is demonstrated that there would be an unacceptable impact on flood risk, having 
taken into account any proposed mitigation measures. 

 
7.55 Richmondshire Local Plan policies relevant to this element of the proposed 

development is CP2 in regards to responding to climate change and steering 
development away from flood risk zones and using sustainable drainage systems. 
The aims of these policies are to protect water resources from adverse effects of 
development; further stating, where required, development should include a site 
specific flood risk assessment and be able to demonstrate the proposal would not 
increase flood risk elsewhere. The relevant point to this proposal is that the ES 
includes a chapter on water resources and within the application there is a flood risk 
assessment. Although it is proposed to extract mineral from below the water table, it 
is not proposed to de-water the workings by pumping. Instead, mineral would be 
extracted directly from beneath the water table using a hydraulic excavator as is the 
case with the current workings (all phases being worked wet). The development 
should not therefore directly affect groundwater levels in the vicinity of the site. As the 
quarry involves extraction of only superficial sand and gravel deposits, no discernible 
impact is foreseen upon the integrity of the underlying aquifers in the Sandstone, 
Magnesian limestone, Millstone Grit and Carboniferous limestone beds beneath.  

 
7.56 The characteristics of the local water environment are such that the effects of 

continued mineral extraction and associated water management are considered to be 
acceptable. The existing condition which relates to ground and surface water 
monitoring are capable of being carried forward on any grant of planning permission 
(see Condition 2). The Environment Agency has no objections to the application and 
it is considered that it would not give rise to any unacceptable adverse impacts upon 
the water environment. The proposal is considered to be consistent with the NPPF 
and PPG flood risk and coastal change and Policy CP3 (e&g) and CP4(d) of the 
Richmondshire Local Plan Core Strategy (2014). It is also considered that the 
proposed development is in compliance with MWJP Policy D09 in regards to the 
Water Environment. 

 
Highways Matters  

7.57 The ES includes in Chapter 8 an assessment of the impact of continued quarrying on 
various transport matters, including access only from Leeming Lane, sheeting of 
vehicles and HGV noise attenuation. The application confirms that there would be no 

Page 88



 

commrep/41 

41 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

changes to the volume, method and direction of traffic flows, with on average 76 HGV 
vehicle movements per day at the site. There are also existing wheel washing 
facilities on site and a mobile road sweeper, which are proposed to remain. The 
Highway Authority has not objected to the proposal as it is considered the proposed 
development would not increase HGV movements above those already permitted for 
the site. Furthermore, there are no objections from the Parish Councils or local 
residents on highways grounds. The existing conditions which restrict HGV access to 
only via the existing access; require the access road to be kept clean and in a good 
condition; and the implementation of precautions to ensure HGVs leaving the site do 
not deposit mud or debris on the public highway (‘Vehicle-borne debris management 
plan’) are capable of being carried forward should planning permission be 
forthcoming (see Conditions 19 and 24-26).  

 
7.58 The relevant local policy in the Richmondshire Local Plan is CP3 in regards to 

sustainable development which requires proposals to be well located to minimise the 
need for travel and CP7 in regards to promoting a sustainable economy making sure 
that developments have the necessary transport investment. The relevant policy 
within the MWJP is Policy D03 in regards to encouraging the use of existing 
infrastructure and permitted transport of materials and also states proposals for road 
transport is to be permitted, where necessary, when there is capacity within the 
existing network and there would be no unacceptable impact on local communities 
and businesses. Paragraph 113 of the NPPF considers transport in relation to new 
development and states that all developments that generate significant amounts of 
movement should be supported by a Transport Statement or Transport Assessment 
and, taking into consideration the proposals as put forward, they are considered to be 
consistent with the NPPF’s aims and objectives in this respect. Other paragraphs 
within the NPPF which are relevant to this application are paragraphs 104-106 which 
require development proposals to consider transport issues at the earliest 
opportunity, significant developments should be focused on locations which can be 
made sustainable and planning policies should support a mix of uses across an area, 
minimise journey lengths for employment and identify and protect sites which could 
be critical in developing infrastructure. Paragraph 111 is also relevant in regards to 
proposals only being refused on highways grounds if there were to be an 
unacceptable impact on highways safety or the cumulative impacts on the road 
network would be severe. 

 
7.59 This application would not lead to a material increase in traffic generation over that 

which was previously considered acceptable. The planning permission relating to the 
quarry combines operational controls and mitigation measures in order to ensure that 
the quarry operations are acceptable in terms of highways and transport and, where 
relevant, it is proposed that those controls are capable of being carried forward within 
any grant of planning permission. In light of the above, it is considered that the traffic 
generated can be accommodated and would not have an unacceptable impact on 
highway safety, capacity or amenity. The proposal is in compliance with the Minerals 
and Waste Joint Plan Policy D03 regarding Transport and associated traffic impacts 
and Policy CP4 (e) of the Richmondshire Local Plan Core Strategy (2014). 

 
7.60 It is noted that a number of conditions were imposed upon planning permission 

C1/15/250/PA/F, dated 10th November 1993 to limit the impact of vehicle movements 
generated by the site on the surrounding highway network and upon local amenity. 
Were planning permission to be forthcoming, it is considered appropriate to attach an 
additional condition in regards to HGV movements being limited to 80 per day (40 in 
and 40 out), which is condition 16 of the proposed schedule of conditions. Other 
measures include restrictions on the permitted hours of working; the inclusion of 
measures to prevent the deposit of material on the highway network and the sheeting 
of vehicles. It is considered appropriate that the conditions relating to further highway 
controls, imposed on the previous planning permission for the application site which Page 89



 

commrep/42 

42 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

is now expired, are brought forward in the event that planning permission is granted. 
This would ensure that the proposed development does not result in any adverse 
impacts upon the local highway network in line with the principles of the NPPF 
Paragraphs 104-106 and 113 in relation to sustainable highway networks, and the 
highway protection elements of CP4 of the Richmondshire Local Plan; all of which 
seek to ensure that vehicle movements generated by developments are both capable 
of being accommodated by, would not have an adverse effect upon the local highway 
network or prejudice the safety of the highway, adding further weight in support of 
this application.  

 
7.61 For the reasons detailed above, it is considered that the proposed development 

would not have an adverse impact upon the local highway network, which is capable 
of continuing to accommodate the proposed vehicle movements. Therefore, the 
proposed development is considered to be consistent with the NPPF, the highway 
protection elements of the Policy CP4 of the Richmondshire Local Plan. It is also 
considered that the proposed development is in compliance with Policy D03 of 
minerals and waste local plan. 

 
Relationship with surrounding Land Uses 

7.62 There is an outstanding Richmondshire District Council planning application between 
the west of the site and A1(M). The planning application is for a motorway service 
area with amenity buildings, a hotel, drive-through food stores, parking, amenity lake 
and landscaping. The proposed development is accessed off Junction 52 of the 
A1(M) which has recently been created. The item was on the agenda for 
Richmondshire Planning Committee on the 21 July 2021, with a report for published 
on the committee website recommending approval of the service station. Due to the 
requirement of an independent alternative sites assessment (ASA) being requested 
to be completed, it was not determined at this committee. It was again placed on the 
agenda for the 21st December 2021 committee meeting with an updated report 
recommending approval however this meeting was also cancelled and the application 
has not as of yet been since determined at the Richmondshire Planning Committee. 
It is considered that if the Richmondshire District Council proposal was to be 
approved that due to the short timescale remaining in terms of the minerals 
permission with extraction completing by December 2024 and restoration 2025 that 
there would limited to no impact on the provision or building of the service station. It 
is considered by the time the proposal is built out and operational the minerals site 
would be either closed or in the process of the final restoration being completed, so 
the views specifically of the minerals plant site would be of the restored site which 
would not have an impact on the proposed service station development. 

 
Planning Conditions 

7.63 All previous conditions, unless otherwise stated are proposed to remain albeit 
updated to reflect the development proposed by this application and any schemes 
approved under conditions since the grant of permission ref. C1/15/250/PA/F, dated 
10th November 1993. Conditions which required works in earlier phases of the 
development which are no longer relevant are not proposed to be carried forward in 
light of the works having been completed.  

 
7.64 The conditions which were previously prefaced by words to the effect of “unless 

otherwise agreed in writing…” (known as ‘open’ or ‘tailpiece’ conditions) have been 
updated to remove such wording so to avoid revisions to the original approved 
documents or authorising development outside of the formal planning application 
process. Below is a summary of the amendments to the conditions from the previous 
application: 

 
 

Page 90



 

commrep/43 

43 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

 
Removed conditions: 

 Previous Condition 1 and 7 have been removed as the permission is now 
implemented and mineral extraction commenced.  

 Previous Condition 6 has been removed as is duplication covered by condition 4 
(Approved Documents). 

 Previous Condition 14 – This has been removed as there is no evidence this was 
discharged at the time and is considered to be covered by condition 40 (Plant 
Site Restoration). 

 Previous Condition 19 – This has been removed as is duplication with updated 
condition 26 (Plant and Vehicle Noise Attenuation) and condition 15 (Hours of 
Operation). 

 Previous Condition 37 has been removed as it is considered repetition of other 
restoration conditions and the information required has been submitted through 
volume 2 of the Environmental Statement and the Outline restoration and 
Aftercare Management Plan.  

 Previous Conditions 40 and 42 have been deleted as it is considered repetition of 
other restoration conditions attached to this permission. 

Updated conditions: 

 Previous condition 2 is now condition 1 (Time Limits) and has been updated with 
new dates for extraction. 

 Previous Condition 5 is now condition 4 (Approved Documents) and has been 
amended to include a table. 

 Previous Conditions 7 and 8 have been combined and is now condition 5 
(Phasing) having been updated to include the submitted phasing plan for the new 
area of extraction. 

 Previous Condition 10 has been removed and replaced with conditions 9-11 (Soil 
Stripping and Handling). 

 Previous Condition 15 is now condition 13 (Soil Stripping and Handling) and has 
been updated to include the plan approved through the discharge of condition. 

 Previous Condition 20 is still condition 20 (Dust Protection) and has been 
updated to include the updated dust assessment document details. 

 Previous Conditions 21-24 and 26 in regards to noise have been updated to the 
relevant updated guidance and are still conditions 21-24 (Noise Limitations, 
Limitation Exception, Monitoring and Exceeded Noise Levels) and 26 (Plant and 
Vehicle Noise Attenuation). 

 Previous Condition 28 is still condition 28 (Building, fixed Plan and Machinery) 
and requires a restoration scheme for the plant site to be submitted and 
approved. 

 Previous Condition 35 is still condition 35 (Archaeology) and has been updated to 
include the approved written scheme of investigation. 

 Previous Condition 42 has been amended to be included in the approved 
aftercare scheme condition 39 (Restoration). 

New conditions: 

 Conditions 16 and 17 (Vehicle Movements) – These conditions limit the amounts 
of traffic movements and are required to control the activity on the site, in the 
interests of the amenity of the area and requires the sheeting of vehicles. 

 Condition 37 (Ecology) – this is requiring the mitigation in regards to Ecology to 
be carried out throughout the duration of the development. 

 Condition 40 (Plant Site Restoration) – plant site restoration submission 
requirement condition. 

 
 

Page 91



 

commrep/44 

44 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

Section 106 Legal Agreement 
7.65 If Members were to be minded to grant planning permission, the Section 106 legal 

agreement would need to be updated and carried forward with the new permission as 
a deed of variation. In this case, a deed of variation would be appropriate to carry 
forward the clauses still relevant such as the Local Community Liaison Group, bird 
management and the long term aftercare management of the restored site. The 
Section 106 agreement would also have to be updated to include the restoration of 
the plant site area, which is currently controlled through previous condition 28 
(condition 25 under the updated list of conditions). However now that part of the plant 
site now lies outside the red line boundary of this current application but is still within 
the control of the applicant, the submitted S106 plan shows the application site and 
other land in control of the applicant  in which is required to be restored under this 
application within the plant site.   

 
8.0 Conclusion 
 
8.1 As referred earlier within this report, under the provisions of Section 38(6) of the 

Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, the starting position for the 
determination of this planning application must be the ‘Development Plan’ and it must 
be made in accordance with the extant policies of that plan, unless there are material 
considerations, including any impacts upon interests of acknowledged importance 
that would indicate that planning permission should not be forthcoming. The 
assessment of material considerations within the overall ‘planning balance’ has been 
conveyed within Section 7.0 above.  

 
8.2 In this particular instance, there are a range of policies in the ‘Development Plan’ to 

which due regard must be had, as well as a number of other material considerations. 
In considering the relationship of the proposals to the ‘development plan’, Members 
should note that proposals should be judged against the ‘development plan’ as a 
whole rather than against individual policies in isolation and acknowledge that it is not 
necessary for proposals to comply with all policies to be found compliant. Members 
will also need to bear in mind the relative weight to be attached to the applicable 
policies in the various elements of the ‘development plan’ relevant to this proposal 
against that which is laid down within national planning policy (Section 6.0 refers).  

 
8.3 The proposed development represents a continuation of an existing mineral working 

with existing associated infrastructure, negating the necessity to search for a new 
quarry on ‘virgin’ greenfield and with a small further extension of the quarry along 
with the continuation of extraction of the previously permitted reserves.  

 
8.4 Other material considerations that must weighed in the ‘planning balance’ have been 

considered in the preceding section of this report such as impacts upon the 
environment and the amenity enjoyed by the local community in regards to the 
proposed amendments to the restoration of the site. These, while acknowledged to 
be impacts arising from the proposed development and understandably of concern to 
local residents living near the proposed site, are not considered to be significantly 
material so as to outweigh the economic benefits of the sustainable development and 
to be so sufficient as to warrant a determination that the application lies in conflict 
with the ‘development plan’ to such a degree as to justify refusal of the application.  

 
Obligations under the Equality Act 2010  

8.5 The County Planning Authority in carrying out its duties must have regard to the 
obligations placed upon it under the Equality Act and due regard has, therefore, been 
had to the requirements of Section 149 (Public Sector Equality Duty) to safeguard 
against unlawful discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct 
prohibited by the Act. It also requires public bodies to advance equality of opportunity 
between people who share a protected characteristic and people who do not share it; 

Page 92



 

commrep/45 

45 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

and foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and 
people who do not share it. It is considered that the proposed development would not 
give rise to significant adverse effects upon the communities in the area or socio-
economic factors, particularly those with ‘protected characteristics’ by virtue that the 
impacts of the proposal can be mitigated so that they will not have a significant 
impact on groups with ‘protected characteristics’.  

 
Obligations under the Human Rights Act  

8.6 The Human Rights Act requires the County Council to take into account the rights of 
the public under the European Convention on Human Rights and prevents the 
Council from acting in a manner which is incompatible with those rights. Article 8 of 
the Convention provides that there shall be respect for an individual’s private life and 
home save for that interference which is in accordance with the law and necessary in 
a democratic society in the interests of (inter alia) public safety and the economic 
wellbeing of the country. Article 1 of protocol 1 provides that an individual’s peaceful 
enjoyment of their property shall not be interfered with save as is necessary in the 
public interest.  

 
8.7 Having had due regard to the Human Rights Act, the relevant issues arising from the 

proposed development have been assessed as the potential effects upon those living 
within the vicinity of the site namely those affecting the right to the peaceful 
enjoyment of one’s property and the right to respect for private and family life and 
homes, and considering the limited interference with those rights is in accordance 
with the law, necessary and in the public interest. 

 

9.0 Recommendation 
 
9.1 For the following reasons: 

i.) The development is in accordance with Policies SP3, CP1, CP2, CP3, CP4, 
CP7, CP12 and CP13 of the Richmondshire Local Plan Core Strategy (2014) 
Minerals and Waste Joint Plan policies M01, M02, M03, M04, M04, M07, M10, 
D01, D02, D03, D06, D07, D08, D10, D11 and D12 and overall is consistent 
with the NPPF (2021); 

ii.) The proposal does not conflict with the abovementioned policies as it is 
considered that the existing highway network is capable of handling the volume 
of traffic generated by the development, the visual impact of the proposed 
development can be mitigated through condition, the environmental impacts of 
the proposed development can be controlled by condition, the impact on 
neighbouring residential properties can be mitigated and adverse impacts are 
outweighed when considered against the existing infrastructure, markets and 
employment at the site along with the final completion of restoration proposals 
and there are no other material considerations indicating a refusal in the public 
interest;  

iii.) The imposition of planning conditions will further limit the impact of the 
development on the environment, residential amenity the transport network and 
restoration and aftercare; and 

iv.) Having taken into account all the environmental information submitted as part 
of this planning application included within the Environmental Statement. 

That, subject to prior completion of an appropriate S106 deed of variation to 
secure:  

 Local Community Liaison Group;  

 Bird Management Plan; and  

 Long Term Aftercare Management Plan. 

Subject to any comments Members may have, the following be proposed to the 
Chief Executive Officer for consideration under his emergency powers 

Page 93



 

commrep/46 

46 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

 
PLANNING PERMISSION BE GRANTED subject to the following conditions: 

 
Time Limits 

1. The permission hereby granted authorises the extraction of sand and gravel and 
retention of processing plant only until 31 December 2024. All plant and buildings must 
be removed from the site and the site must be restored to agriculture and a condition 
suitable for water based nature conservation and angling purposes within 12 months 
of the completion of extraction or by 31 December 2025 whichever is sooner. 
 
Reason: To reserve the rights of control by the County Planning Authority in the 
interest of amenity. 
 
Access and Protection of Public Highway 

2. No vehicular access to the highway must be gained from that part of the site to the 
east of Leeming Lane except as may be necessary for the purposes of access by 
mobile plant at the commencement and cessation of development and for the 
purposes of approved restoration operations, maintenance of plant and equipment, or 
in the case of emergency. 
 
Reason: In the interests of highways safety. 

 
3. No vehicular access must be gained to the plant site west of Leeming Lane except via 

the existing access onto Leeming Lane. 
 
Reason: In the interests of highways safety. 

 
Approved Documents 

4. The development hereby permitted must be carried out in accordance with the 
application details dated 12 December 2017 and the following approved documents 
and drawings:  
 
Ref.  Date Title 

Ref. P3/1034/1 Nov 2016 Location Context Plan 

Ref. 2011_C048_PAL_002 Dec 2020 Location Plan 

Ref. P3/1034/2 Nov 2017 Site Plan of Additional Extraction Area 

Ref. P3/1034/3 Nov 2017 
Detailed Site Plan of Excavation Area – Phase 
1-4 

Ref. P3/1034/3 Nov 2017 
Detailed Site Plan of Excavation Area – Phase 
3-4 Restoration 

Ref. P1/1413/17 5.12.17 Detailed Restoration Sections 

Ref. P3/1034/4 Oct 2017 Site Survey Plan 

No Ref. 15.11.17 Appendix 6 – Biodiversity Action Plan 

No Ref. Dec 2017 
Volume 2 – Environmental Statement and 
Technical Appendices 

Ref. 001/01 16.12.16 Landscape Character and Designations  

Ref. 1002-21282 Not dated Quarry Site Access 

Ref. R17.9827/1/JS Not dated Appendix 5 – Noise Appendices 

Ref. R17.9828/1/DW 
Page 1 

Not dated Appendix 6 Air Quality Appendices 

No Ref.  Not dated Appendix 7 - Soil Appendices 

Ref. 18-049 Rev 2 20.11.18 Preliminary Ecological Appraisal 

No Ref. Nov 2018 Ecology: Addendum Chapter 

No Ref. Oct 2019 
Written Scheme of Investigation for 
Archaeological Monitoring 

Ref. 67411 R1 3.2.2020 Hydrogeological Impact Assessment 

No Ref. 4.9.21 200903 Ltr to NorthYorks - Pallethill 

Ref. P1/1413/10/6 14.9.2020 Final Restoration Masterplan 

Page 94



 

commrep/47 

47 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

No Ref. 15.9.2020 Outline Restoration Masterplan 

 
Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the 
application details. 

 
Phasing 

5. The mineral extraction hereby permitted must take place only in accordance with the 
phasing arrangements indicated on Plan No P3/1034/3 and no extraction operations 
must take place in any phase until minerals within the immediately preceding phase 
have been worked out.  
 
Reason: In the interests of amenity and to ensure the effective restoration of lands to 
agricultural use. 

 
6. Extraction must only take place using a hydraulic excavator emitting a maximum 

sound power level of 108 LWA. 
 
Reason: In the interests of amenity and to prevent pollution. 

 
Soil stripping and Handling 

7. No extraction of mineral must take place unless topsoils and subsoils have previously 
been stripped and stored in accordance with the details P3/1034/3, Phases 1-4 
Restoration, dated November 2017. 
 
Reason: In the interests of amenity and to prevent pollution. 

 
8. Not less than 48 hours’ notice must be given in writing to the County Planning 

Authority of the intended commencement of soil stripping in any phase. 
 
Reason: In the interests of amenity and to prevent pollution. 

 
9. No soils shall be stripped, moved, placed or removed during the months of November 

to March inclusive, unless the soils are in a dry and friable condition. During soil 
stripping, placement and removal, machinery shall be routed so as to avoid 
compaction of such soils. 
 
Reason: To ensure that soils are stripped and stored correctly so that the land is 
capable of being restored to a beneficial after use. 
 

10. All top-soil, sub-soil and overburden materials shall be stripped separately and either 
placed directly to final restoration or stored separately in temporary storage mounds in 
accordance with the submitted application details. All screening mounds and all top-
soil and sub-soil storage mounds shall be graded to an even slope, shall be seeded 
with grass and shall be kept free of weeds until after their removal for use in site 
restoration. No topsoil or subsoil shall be removed from the site. 

 
Reason:  To safeguard the topsoil and subsoil resources in the interests of achieving a 
high standard of restoration of the site. 

 
11. Topsoil storage mounds shall not exceed 3m in height. Subsoil mounds shall not 

exceed 3m metres in height. The mounds shall be constructed with the minimum 
amount of compaction. They shall not be traversed by heavy plant or machinery 
except where essential for purposes of mound construction or maintenance. They 
shall not subsequently be moved until required for restoration. If continuous mounds 
are used, dissimilar soils shall be separated by a third material which has been 
approved in writing by the County Planning Authority.    

Page 95



 

commrep/48 

48 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

 
Reason: To safeguard the character of the site in the interests of visual amenity and to 
ensure that any soils remain in an acceptable condition. 

 
12. No extraction must take place within the stand-off distance of 45 metres from the bank 

of the River Swale. 
 
Reason: In the interests of amenity and to prevent pollution. 

 
13. The flood protection bunds must be maintained in a tidy and weed free condition, in 

accordance with the drawing no. P1/1413/6/1 of the previous permission Ref. 
C1/15/227 for the duration of the permission.  
 
Reason: In the interests of amenity and to prevent pollution. 

 
14. The excavation batter to the northern boundary of the extraction area must not exceed 

a maximum gradient of 1 vertical in 2 horizontal.  
 
Reason: In the interests of amenity and to prevent pollution. 

 
Hours of Operation 

15. Except for the maintenance of plant and machinery, no quarrying or associated 
operations including transport of mineral from the site must take place except between 
the following times: 
07.00 to 18.00 Monday to Friday; 
07.00 to 13.00 Saturdays;  
13.00 to 18.00 Saturdays (plant maintenance operations only); 
And at no times on Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays. 

 
Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the 
application details. 
 
Vehicle Movements 

16. The total number of vehicles carrying waste to the site must not exceed 80 per day 
(e.g. 40 in 40 out). Records of the number of HGV movements per day shall be 
maintained and made available to the County Planning Authority on request. 
 
Reason: In the interest of highway safety. 
 

17. All vehicles involved in the transport of mineral to and from the site shall be securely 
sheeted or otherwise enclosed in such a manner as to prevent dust blowing from 
materials and to ensure no materials may be spilled onto the public highway. 
 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety to prevent material being spilled onto the 
public highway and protect the amenities of the area. 

 
Site Maintenance 

18. For the duration of the development the following maintenance operations must be 
carried out: - 

i) the maintenance of fences in a stockproof condition between any areas 
used for development and any adjoining agricultural land; 

ii) the retention of fences around trees and hedgerows; 
iii) the clearance of mud and silt from settlement ponds to avoid reducing their 

capacity for intercepting sediment; 
iv) the maintenance of all areas, including soil storage and baffle mounds, in a 

weed free condition. 

Page 96



 

commrep/49 

49 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

 
Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the 
application details. 

 
19. No minerals must be imported into the site for processing, stockpiling, merchanting or 

any other purpose. 

 
Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the 
application details. 

 
Dust Protection 

20. The development hereby approved, must, at all times, proceed in accordance with the 
dust monitoring measures detailed within Appendix 6.3 of the Environmental 
Statement (Ref. R17.9828.1.DW, Summary of Dust Control Measures, dated 
December 2017).  
 
Reason: To control dust emissions in the interests of protection of amenity. 

 
Noise Limitations 

21. The equivalent continuous noise level due to operations at the quarry during day time 
hours 07.00 to 18.00 Monday to Friday; 07.00 to 13.00 Saturdays; shall not exceed the 
background noise level (LA90) by more than 10dB(A) at any residential properties St 
Paulinus Crescent and Bishops Way. Measurements shall be hourly LAeq 
measurements and be corrected for the effects of extraneous noise. In the event that 
the noise levels are exceeded, those operations at the site causing the excessive 
noise shall cease immediately and steps taken to attenuate the noise level to ensure 
compliance with the specified levels. 

 
Reason: To control the impact of noise generated by the development in the interests 
of local amenity 
 
Noise Limitation Exception 

22. For site preparation, soil stripping and replacement, bund formation and removal and 
final restoration operations, the free-field noise level due to work at the nearest point to 
each noise sensitive property shall not exceed 70 dB LAeq, 1 hour, free field 
expressed in the same manner as condition no. 20 above. The operations cited in this 
condition shall not exceed a total of eight weeks in any twelve-month period of work 
close to any individual noise sensitive property. 
 
Reason: To control the impact of noise generated by the development while soil 
stripping in the interests of local amenity. 
 
Noise Monitoring 

23. Noise levels at the site must be monitored by the operating Company at three monthly 
intervals at up to four locations to be agreed in writing with the County Planning 
Authority. The results shall include Noise monitoring locations which for the avoidance 
of doubt, should include those in the vicinity of the site; Details of monitoring 
equipment to be used; A plan identifying the position of all monitoring locations (taking 
into account the nearest noise sensitive receptors); and Monitoring periods. The 
results shall be kept during the life of the site and are to be made available to the 
County Planning Authority on request 

 
Reason: To ensure that noise impacts associated with the proposed development 
would be minimised in the interests of local amenity. 

 
 

Page 97



 

commrep/50 

50 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

Exceeded Noise Levels 
24. In the event that any noise levels specified in the scheme submitted and approved 

under Condition No 20 and/or 21 condition number to be added are exceeded, those 
operations at the site causing the excessive noise shall cease immediately and steps 
be taken to attenuate the noise level to be in compliance with Conditions 20 and/or 21. 

 
Reason: To control the impact of noise generated by the development in the interests 
of local amenity. 

 
25. Any pumps used at the site must be inaudible at any noise sensitive property. 

 
Reason: In the interests of amenity and to prevent pollution. 

 
Plant and Vehicle Noise Attenuation 

26. All plant, machinery and vehicles used on any part of the site shall be fitted with 
effective noise attenuating equipment and include either non-audible, ambient-related 
or low-tone reverse warning alarm systems which shall be regularly maintained and 
employed at all times during permitted operational hours.   

 
Reason: To ensure that noise impacts associated with the plant, machinery and 
vehicles at the site would be minimised in the interests of local amenity. 

 
Buildings, fixed Plant and Machinery 

27. The existing Pallet Hill Quarry processing plant, permitted under planning permission 
C1/15/227 dated 25 July 1990, shall be retained solely for the purpose of processing 
sand and gravel extracted from the site hereby approved. 
 
Reason: To reserve the rights of control by the County Planning Authority in the 
interest of amenity. 
 

28. The use of the existing Pallett Hill Quarry processing plant and the crusher housing 
building within the extraction site must be discontinued by 31 December 2024 or upon 
completion of extraction within the site, whichever is sooner, and the plant must 
subsequently be removed and the area previously so occupied reinstated to 
agriculture and woodland in accordance with a restoration scheme submitted to and 
approved by the County Planning Authority, as required by condition 40. 
 
Reason: To reserve the rights of control by the County Planning Authority in the 
interest of amenity. 

 
29. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted 

Development Order 2015 (or any other order revoking or re-enacting that Order) no 
plant or buildings must be erected, except as provided for in the development hereby 
permitted. 
 
Reason: To reserve the rights of control by the County Planning Authority in the 
interest of amenity. 
 

30. The proposed conveyor must be operated in accordance with drawing number 
N2770/MBO/4205 with it located between points A and B so that the top surface of the 
culvert would be no higher than 53.7 metres above ordnance datum.  
 
Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the 
application details. 

 
 

Page 98



 

commrep/51 

51 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

Surface Water Drainage and Pollution Control 
31. All disposal of silt and fines and the discharge of water from dewatering operations 

must be carried out in accordance with the application details. 
 
Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the 
application details. 

 
32. Any oil or liquid chemical storage tanks must be located within a bund having a 

capacity of not less than 110% of the largest tank or the combined tank volume if a 
number of tanks are interconnected. The floor and walls of the bund must be 
impervious to water and the stored liquid. Inlet/outlet/vent pipes must be within the 
bunded area. There must be no uncontrolled discharge from the bunded area and 
arrangements must be agreed in writing with the County Planning Authority for the 
disposal of any contaminated water within the bund. 
 
Reason: To reserve the rights of control by the County Planning Authority in the 
interest of amenity. 

 
Landscaping 

33. Landscaping, tree and shrub planting at the site must be carried out in accordance 
with the details shown on Plan Nos P1/1413/10/6, dated September 2020. Full details 
of the landscaping and planting to be implemented during the next 12 months’ period 
must be submitted to the County Planning Authority annually in May (or at such other 
time as may be agreed in writing with the County Planning Authority) for written 
approval. The annual scheme must include full details of ground preparation, fencing, 
tree and shrub planting including types, sizes, numbers and species, protection of 
plants and management and maintenance of existing and new planting. Thereafter all 
landscaping and planting must take place in accordance with the details of the 
approved annual scheme. 
 
Reason: To reserve the rights of control by the County Planning Authority in the 
interest of amenity. 

 
34. The existing perimeter landscape planting defined on Plan No P1/1413/5/1, must be 

managed and maintained for the duration of the development. 
 
Reason: To reserve the rights of control by the County Planning Authority in the 
interest of amenity. 

 
Archaeology  

35. The development hereby approved, must, at all times, proceed in accordance with the 
Written Scheme of Investigation for Archaeological Monitoring (no ref, dated October 
2019).  
 
Reason: To reserve the rights of control by the County Planning Authority in the 
interest of amenity. 
 

36. Not less than 10 working days’ notice must be given in writing to the County Planning 
Authority of the date of commencement of archaeological works and the County 
Planning Authority must be given the opportunity to monitor such works. 
 
Reason: To reserve the rights of control by the County Planning Authority in the 
interest of amenity. 

 
 
 

Page 99



 

commrep/52 

52 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

Ecology 
37. The development hereby approved, must, at all times, proceed in accordance with the 

Ecology Mitigation Measures detailed within Section 1.7 of the Ecology Chapter of the 
Environmental Statement (No ref. Ecology: ADDENDUM CHAPTER, dated November 
2018).  
 
Reason: In the interests of protection of biodiversity of the site. 

 
Restoration 

38. The operator must submit to the County Planning Authority on an annual basis a plan 
summarising the progress of extraction and restoration works indicating the extent of 
any areas stripped of soils but not yet worked, the location of the working face and the 
extent of restoration works carried out within earlier phases. 
 
Reason: In the interests of amenity and to ensure the effective restoration of lands to 
agricultural use. 

 
39. The restoration of the site must be completed in accordance with the Final Restoration 

Masterplan Plan Ref. P1/1413/10/6, dated September 2020. With those parts of the 
site to be restored to agriculture must be stored in accordance with the detailed 
requirements of the agricultural restoration conditions set out in schedule 2 attached 
hereto. 

 
Reason: In the interests of amenity and to ensure the effective restoration of lands to 
agricultural use. 
 
Plant Site Restoration 

40. Within 12 months of the date of this permission a detailed scheme and programme for 
the phased restoration of the plant site shall be submitted to the County Planning 
Authority for approval in writing. The scheme and programme shall include, details of 
the following:  
a) the sequence and phasing of restoration showing clearly their relationship to the 
working scheme and surrounding landscape;  
b) timing, phasing and method of replacement of top and subsoils;  
c) the ripping of any compacted layers of final cover to ensure adequate drainage and 
aeration; such ripping should normally take place before placing of the topsoil;  
d) the machinery to be used in soil re-spreading operations;  
e) the final levels of the restored land;  
f) drainage of the restored land including the formation of suitably graded contours to 
promote natural drainage and the installation of artificial drainage;  
g) the reinstatement of the plant site by clearing plant, buildings, machinery and 
concrete or brickwork, deep cultivation in both directions to remove rocks and other 
obstructions, replacing of subsoil and then topsoil previously stripped from the sites;  
h) seeding of restored areas with a suitable herbage mixture;   
j) a timetable for implementation.  

 
Thereafter restoration of the plant site shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved scheme and programme. 

 
Reason: To protect the amenity of the area and to ensure the provision and establishment of 
acceptable landscaping. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 100



 

commrep/53 

53 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

Aftercare 
41. The development hereby approved, must, at all times, proceed in accordance with the 

Aftercare Scheme approved 28 June 1996 (Ref. No ref. Outline Agricultural Five Year 
Aftercare Scheme, dated May 1996) and the Outline Management Plan (dated 
September 2020). Upon completion of restoration within each phase a programme of 
aftercare must be implemented in accordance with the approved details and in 
accordance with the detailed requirements of the agricultural aftercare conditions set 
out in Schedule 3 attached hereto. 
 
Reason: In the interests of amenity and to ensure the effective restoration of lands to 
agricultural use. 

 
Miscellaneous 

42. From the commencement of development to its completion, a copy of this permission, 
including all documents hereby approved and any other documents subsequently 
approved in accordance with this permission, must always be available in the site 
offices. 

 
Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the 
application details. 

 
43. In the event that erosion takes place along the bank of the River Swale immediately 

adjoining the northern boundary of the site such that remedial measures are 
necessary to ensure that the river does not breach its banks and enter the site then 
such measures as are necessary to safeguard the banks must be undertaken. Details 
of all bank repair or reinforcement works must be submitted to and agreed in writing by 
the county planning authority before they take place. 

 
Reason: In the interests of amenity and to ensure the effective restoration of lands to 
agricultural use. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 101



 

commrep/54 

54 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

 
 
 
 
Statement of Compliance with Article 35(2) of the Town and Country Planning 
(Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 
 
In determining this planning application, the County Planning Authority has worked with the 
applicant adopting a positive and proactive manner. The County Council offers the 
opportunity for pre-application discussion on applications and the applicant, in this case, 
chose too take up this service.  Proposals are assessed against the National Planning Policy 
Framework, Replacement Local Plan policies and Supplementary Planning Documents, 
which have been subject to proactive publicity and consultation prior to their adoption. During 
the course of the determination of this application, the applicant has been informed of the 
existence of all consultation responses and representations made in a timely manner which 
provided the applicant/agent with the opportunity to respond to any matters raised. The 
County Planning Authority has sought solutions to problems arising by liaising with 
consultees, considering other representations received and liaising with the applicant as 
necessary.  Where appropriate, changes to the proposal were sought when the statutory 
determination timescale allowed. 
 
K BATTERSBY  
Corporate Director, Business and Environmental Services 
Growth, Planning and Trading Standards 

 
 

Background Documents to this Report: 
 
1. Planning Application Ref Number: Ref. C1/18/00013/CM (NY/2017/0326/ENV) 
registered as valid on 20 December 2017.  Application documents can be found on the 
County Council's Online Planning Register by using the following web link: 
https://onlineplanningregister.northyorks.gov.uk/register/ 
2. Consultation responses received. 
3. Representations received. 
 
Author of report: Sam Till 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 102

https://onlineplanningregister.northyorks.gov.uk/register/


 

commrep/55 

55 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

 
Appendix A – Committee Plan 

 
 
 

Page 103



 

 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

Appendix B – Location Plan 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 104



 

commrep/2 

2 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

Appendix C – Bridge Farm Site Area 
 

 
 

P
age 105



 

commrep/3 

3 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

Appendix D – New Extraction Area 

 
 

P
age 106



 

commrep/4 

4 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

Appendix E – Restoration Masterplan 
 

P
age 107



 

 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

 

Page 108


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of Previous Meeting - To agree as an accurate record the Minutes of the meeting held on 22nd February 2022
	5 C1/19/00899/CM - Planning application for the erection of a ready mix concrete plant and associated aggregate storage on land at Washfold Farm, Leyburn, North Yorkshire - Report of the Corporate Director, Business and Environmental Services
	6 C1/18/00013/CM - Planning application for the variation of condition no's 2, 5 & 8 of Planning Permission Ref. C1/15/250/PA/F dated 7th November 1994 to facilitate an extension to the permitted area of extraction, an amendment to the restoration design and to alter the period for completion of all mineral operations from 31st December 2017 to 31st December 2024 and the restoration of the site from 31st December 2018 to 31st December 2025 on land at Pallett Hill Quarry, Catterick Village, North Yorkshire - Report of the Corporate Director, Business and Environmental Services

